
 

 

Agenda 

 

An informal meeting of Future Oxfordshire 

Partnership members - The Future 

Oxfordshire Partnership, (formerly the 

Oxfordshire Growth Board) 

 

Tuesday 25 January 2022 at 2.00 pm 
This will be a virtual, online meeting.  
 
Contact: Kevin Jacob, Future Oxfordshire Partnership Democratic Services Officer 
E-mail: futureoxfordshirepartnership@southandvale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 07917 088356 
Website: www.futureoxfordshirepartnership.org 
 

Members 
Leader of South Oxfordshire District Council  Councillor David Rouane 
Leader of Vale of White Horse District Council  Councillor Emily Smith 
Leader of Cherwell District Council Councillor Barry Wood 
(which holds the Vice-Chair)  
Leader of Oxford City Council Councillor Susan Brown  
Leader of Oxfordshire County Council Councillor Liz Leffman  
Leader of West Oxfordshire District Council  Councillor Michele Mead 
(which holds the Chair)  
Chair, OxLEP Jeremy Long 
Chair, Oxfordshire Skills Board Adrian Lockwood 
Universities representative Professor Alistair Fitt 
OxLEP business representative - Bicester Miranda Markham 
OxLEP business representative – Oxford City Peter Nolan 
OxLEP business representative – Science Vale Angus Horner 
Homes England representative Catherine Turner 
Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group  Dr David Chapman 
Environment Agency representative Emma Hill  
 
Notes: 

1. To watch this meeting, follow this link to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s 
YouTube channel at https://youtu.be/gg_r_V-P9hI Arrangements are subject to 
change at short notice so please refer to the agenda page at 
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=635&MId=2965 

2. One member, one vote for each constituent local authority member only.    

mailto:futureoxfordshirepartnership@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.futureoxfordshirepartnership.org/
https://youtu.be/gg_r_V-P9hI
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=635&MId=2965


 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for absence; declarations of interest and Chair's 
announcement   
 

2.   Minutes  (Pages 7 - 15) 
 

To note the minutes of the Future Oxfordshire Partnership meeting held on 30 November 
2021. 

 
3.   Public participation  (To Follow) 

 
Asking a question and addressing the Partnership 

Questions or requests to make an address (in full and in writing) must be received by 
5pm on Wednesday 19 January 2022, three clear working days before the Future 
Oxfordshire Partnership meeting. 
 

Questions and addresses should be no longer than one side of A4 paper in Arial 12 font. 
The address or question will be circulated to the Partnership and public speakers will be 
invited to speak at the meeting. Written submissions may also be read out by the Chair or 
Democratic Services Officer where requested or if the person making the request for 
public speaking is not able to attend the meeting. A response may be given at the 
meeting or a written answer supplied. The Chair will have discretion to manage the public 
participation procedure as they see appropriate. Questions and notice of addresses must 
be submitted to futureoxfordshirepartnership@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
Note: This meeting may be recorded for live broadcast. At the start of the meeting the 
Chair will confirm the meeting is being filmed. By registering to speak you are consenting 
to being recorded and to the use of those video and audio recordings for webcasting. 

 
4.   Oxfordshire Connect Rail Programme  (Pages 16 - 22) 

 
For information: To receive an update from Network Rail on progress with the 
Oxfordshire Connect Programme. A copy of the slides is attached.  

 
5.   Future Oxfordshire Partnership Scrutiny Panel update  (To Follow) 

 
For action: To receive any recommendations from the Future Oxfordshire Partnership 
Scrutiny Panel meeting held on 17 January 2022. 

 
6.   Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS)- Stage 1  (Pages 23 - 71) 

 
For action: To consider the outcomes of the Stage 1 report for the Oxfordshire 
Infrastructure Strategy and confirm scope of Stage 2. 

 
7.   Delivering a Zero Carbon Oxfordshire Route Map and Action Plan 

Proposal  (Pages 72 - 77) 
 

For action: To receive a proposal from the Environment Advisory Group concerning the 
next steps that can be taken following the recently published “Pathways to a Zero Carbon 

mailto:futureoxfordshirepartnership@southandvale.gov.uk


 

 

Oxfordshire Report.” 
 
8.   Feedback from Joint meeting with the Oxfordshire Health and 

Wellbeing Board  (Pages 78 - 80) 
 

For information: To receive feedback and note any actions arising from a joint meeting 
between the Future Oxfordshire Partnership and the Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

 
9.   Housing and Growth Deal Reports   

 
(a)   Infrastructure Advisory Group update  

 

For information: To receive an update from the Infrastructure Advisory Group held on 12 
January 2022. 
 
(b)   Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Advisory Group update (Pages 81 - 83) 

 

For information: To receive an update from the Oxfordshire Plan Advisory Group.  
Summary notes from the meeting held on 18 November 2021 are attached.  
 
(c)   Environment Advisory Group update (Pages 84 - 86) 

 

For information: To receive an update from the Oxfordshire Plan Advisory Group.  
Summary notes from the meeting held on 26 November 2021 are attached. 
 

10.   Future Oxfordshire Partnership Forward Plan  (Pages 87 - 89) 
 

For information: To note and comment on the Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s Forward 
Plan.   

 
11.   Partnership network  (Pages 90 - 93) 

 
For information: To note a report setting out an update on partnership activities linked to 
the Future Oxfordshire Partnership, with an illustration of how they are related.  

 
12.   Oxford to Cambridge Arc Update  (Verbal Report) 

 
For information: To receive any relevant updates from the Director of the Future 
Oxfordshire Partnership concerning developments within the Oxford to Cambridge Arc. 

 
13.   Updates on matters relevant to the Future Oxfordshire 

Partnership   
 

Future Oxfordshire Partnership members and officers may verbally update the Board on 
progress on matters previously before the Partnership for consideration, listed in the 
forward plan, or relevant to the Partnership’s future decisions.  This is for the sharing of 
information and no decisions will be taken.   

 
 



 

 

14.   Dates of next meetings   
 

The dates of Future Oxfordshire Partnership meetings are below. Please refer to 
https://futureoxfordshirepartnership.org/meetings/ 
for the most up to date information on times and locations.  
 

 Tuesday 22 March 2022 

 7 June 2022 now Monday 13 June 2022 

 Tuesday 26 July 2022 
 
Proposed meeting dates for September 2022 to July 2023. 
 

 Tuesday 27 September 2022 
 Tuesday 29 November 2022 
 Monday 23 January 2023 
 Monday 20 March 2023 
 Tuesday 13 June 2023 
 Tuesday 25 July 2023 
 
Recommendation: That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership note the dates of proposed 
meetings September 2022 to July 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Councillors’ duties on declaring interests 
 
General duty 
You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you.  
 
What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?  
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses 
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses); 
contracts; land in the council’s area; licences for land in the council’s area; corporate tenancies; 
and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each councillor’s register of interests 
which is publicly available on the council’s website.  
 
Declaring an interest  
Where any matter disclosed in your register of interests is being considered at a meeting, you must 
declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of 
the interest.  If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting 
you must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting 
whilst the matter is discussed.  
 
Member’s Code of Conduct and public perception  
Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Councillors’ Code of 
Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer 
an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that “you must not place 
yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is 

https://futureoxfordshirepartnership.org/meetings/


 

 

that the matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the code as a whole and regard 
should continue to be paid to the perception of the public.  
 
*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member themselves, but 
also those of the member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if 
they were civil partners.   



 

 

 

 
 

 



Future Oxfordshire Partnership minutes - 30 November 2021 

Minutes 

OF A MEETING OF THE 

 

The Future Oxfordshire Partnership, 

(formerly the Oxfordshire Growth Board) 

 

HELD ON TUESDAY 30 NOVEMBER 2021 AT 2.00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CHERWELL DISTRICT COUNCIL, BODICOTE 

HOUSE, BODICOTE, BANBURY, OX15 4AA 
 

Link to watch the meeting 

 

Present: 
 
Councillor Susan Brown, (Oxford City Council), Dianne Hedges, (Oxfordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group), Emma Hill, (Environment Agency), Angus Horner, (OxLEP 
business representative - Science Vale), Prof. Linda King, (Universities representative), 
Councillor Liz Leffman, (Oxfordshire County Council), Adrian Lockwood, (Oxfordshire 
Skills Board Chair), Jeremy Long, (OxLEP Chair), Miranda Markham, (OxLEP business 
representative - Bicester), Councillor Merilyn Davies, (West Oxfordshire District Council), 
Peter Nolan, (OxLEP business representative - Oxford City), Councillor David 
Rouane,(South Oxfordshire District Council), Councillor Emily Smith, (Vale of White Horse 
District Council), Catherine Turner, (Homes England) and Councillor Barry Wood, (Vice-
Chair), (Cherwell District Council).  
 
Officers: Richard Byard (OxLEP), Andrew Down, (Future Oxfordshire Partnership), 
Caroline Green (Oxford City Council CEX), Susan Harbour, (South and Vale Councils), 
Giles Hughes (West Oxfordshire District Council CEX), Kevin Jacob, (Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership), Owen Jenkins (Oxfordshire County Council), Archie Martin (Future 
Oxfordshire Partnership), Megan McFarlane, (Oxfordshire Growth Deal Team), Stefan 
Robinson (Future Oxfordshire Partnership, Paul Staines, (Oxfordshire Growth Deal Team), 
Phil Wadsworth, (Oxfordshire Plan 2050) and Kathy Wilcox, (Oxfordshire County Council) 
 
Other councillors: Councillor Andrew Gant, (Chair – Future Oxfordshire Partnership 
Scrutiny Panel) 
 

39. Apologies for absence; declarations of interest and Chair's 
announcement  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Dr David Chapman, Oxfordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group, (substituted by Dianne Hedges), Professor Alistair Fitt, 
Universities, (substituted by Professor Linda King) and Councillor Michele Mead, West 
Oxfordshire District Council, (substituted by Councillor Merilyn Davies).  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7N_UKpnIWy4


Future Oxfordshire Partnership minutes - 30 November 2021 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

40. Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2021 were agreed as a correct record. 
 

41. Public participation  
 
At the start of the item, the Vice-Chair indicated that it was intended to give a common 
answer to questions two, three and four as it was considered there was a high degree of 
commonality between these questions. Full copies of the questions and responses would 
also be published on the Future Oxfordshire Partnership website within ten working days.  
 
1. Helen Marshall asked a question on behalf of CPRE Oxfordshire which referred to 
the decision of the Future Oxfordshire Partnership Scrutiny Panel to support CPRE’s 
concerns the public should be able to understand the decision-making process for the next 
steps of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 and in particular how the number of homes to be built 
will be decided. It expressed concern that by the time of publication, the Regulation 19 
consultation on the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 would be a fait accompli with growth options 
and spatial distribution selected and embedded. The Future Oxfordshire Partnership was 
asked who was going to make the decisions on which direction the Plan should take, on 
what basis these decisions would be taken and how this process would be made 
transparent to the public? 
 
At the invitation of the Vice-Chair, Giles Hughes, Chief Executive West Oxfordshire District 
Council, and senior responsible officer for the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 responded to the 
question. He informed the Partnership that the decision on the policies to guide 
development as part of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 would be taken by the five local 
planning authorities (the City and the four district councils) with consideration of national 
planning policy. This would be taken through formal decisions when they approved the 
draft Oxfordshire Plan 2050 for consultation, which was planned for July 2022. The 
principal Oxfordshire Councils would work together to assess the options and to reach a 
common position through discussion ahead of those formal decisions.  Any decision would 
be taken following Overview and Scrutiny Committee consideration at the Councils in the 
normal way. Decisions would be taken in accordance with all relevant access to 
information legislation, requiring, for example, forward notice of decisions to be published 
etc. The Vice-Chair added that there would also be opportunity for the public to make 
representations about the Plan to their local district or city council through the public 
engagement processes of those councils.  
 
2. Ian Green asked a question on behalf of Oxford Civic Society which referred to the 
three growth projections originating from the Oxfordshire Growth Needs Assessment, 
(OGNA) set out as part of the recent Regulation 18 Part 2 consultation which could be 
used as the basis for assessing the scale of longer-term housing growth in Oxfordshire. 
The question expressed the view that there was widespread and deep public concern 
regarding the OGNA. This related to its methodology, length and what was considered to 
be an overly technical nature which had resulted in the document being inaccessible and 
opaque to the public, a concern shared by a number of groups and reflected in responses 
to the Regulation 18 consultation. The question asked that an independent review be 
commissioned of the OGNA and that ideally, there be input from local civic groups on the 
terms of reference of such a review? 

Page 8



Future Oxfordshire Partnership minutes - 30 November 2021 

 
3. David Young asked a question on behalf of Planning Oxfordshire’s Environment 
and Transport Sustainability which whilst welcoming the decision to produce a strategic 
plan for Oxfordshire expressed the view that many of the Plan’s aspirations around climate 
action could not be achieved at the levels of growth currently envisaged. The question also 
expressed concerns that the OGNA had not met its brief, was inaccessible to non-planning 
experts and went on to express the view that a number of planning assumptions and 
national methodologies were changing, and would need to continue to change, if climate 
actions ambitions were to be achieved. The Partnership was asked to commission an 
independent peer review of the OGNA and that there be input from local civic groups on 
the terms of reference of such a review?  
 
4. Ian Ashley asked a question on behalf of Need Not Greed Oxfordshire which also 
welcomed the decision by the Future Oxfordshire Partnership Scrutiny Panel to request a 
peer review of the OGNA. The question expressed the opinion that any peer review would 
provide an opportunity for an assessment of the OGNA methodology and increase public 
transparency of the OGNA rather than generate a new set of housing number projections. 
In the view of Need Not Greed Oxfordshire, an assessment of the OGNA would show that 
arbitrary choices had taken that increased the number of homes to built and that housing 
numbers alone would not solve the affordable housing crisis, increase pressure on local 
infrastructure and encourage high levels of in-migration. The Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership was asked whether it would initiate a review of the OGNA and consider very 
carefully how the Oxon 2050 plan could deliver the housing that Oxfordshire actually 
needed whilst helping to achieve net zero? 
 
At the invitation of the Vice-Chair, Giles Hughes responded to questions two, three and 
four with a common response. He informed the Partnership that recent consultation on the 
Oxfordshire Plan included a consultation on the draft Oxfordshire Growth Needs 
Assessment (OGNA). It was stressed that this had been a draft document, on which the 
public’s feedback had been sought. These documents outlined three different scenarios on 
the future housing need up to 2050. Officers were currently considering the responses to 
the recent consultation. To date 3,830 responses have been logged from 420 individuals 
and organisations.   
 
The final selection of the housing target would be made through the formal decisions taken 
by the City and District Councils when they approve the draft Oxfordshire Plan for 
consultation.  These decisions, which were planned for July 2022, would be taken 
following Scrutiny Committee consideration at the Councils. The principal Oxfordshire 
Councils would work together to assess the options and to reach a common position 
through discussion ahead of those formal decisions.  The Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Advisory 
Group will be an important forum for discussion.   
 
Following analysis of the consultation responses, the different options will need to be 
assessed against the agreed Oxfordshire Strategic Vision, the objectives of the 
Oxfordshire Plan, the National Planning Policy Framework and through Sustainability 
Appraisal.  This process will take some time and a conclusion is unlikely this year. It is 
important to recognise that the consultation covered many other important areas, such as 
addressing climate change, improving environmental quality, and creating jobs.  We are 
very grateful for all of the responses that we have received on these and other topics. 
 
The Future Oxfordshire Partnership cannot itself commission a peer review of the OGNA, 
as decision making powers relating to the Oxfordshire Plan lie with the city and district 

Page 9



Future Oxfordshire Partnership minutes - 30 November 2021 

councils.  Further, it is not appropriate to decide on this request at this moment as it is 
important that all of the comments made are properly considered before decisions are on 
an independent review were made.  
 
5. Linda Ward had submitted a written question which expressed her concern that the 
OGNA was not fit for purpose and which stated the opinion that: 1) it was in the public 
interest to know the status and role of the two consultancy companies (Cambridge 
Economics and Iceni Projects) commissioned to prepare the OGNA; and 2) the Council’s 
input to drafting and internal review process which resulted in the final approved version of 
the OGNA. Attempts to obtain this information through Freedom of Information requests 
had been rejected and a complaint about this was currently being considered by the 
Information Commissioner. The representatives of the Future Oxfordshire Partnership 
were asked to confirm their commitment to the spirit of Freedom Of Information around the 
OGNA by undertaking to investigate and to ask their FOI Officers to cooperate to provide 
the requested information and secondly, if they agreed with West Oxfordshire District 
Council’s contention that the Councils’ participation in drafting and approving the OGNA 
should be considered to be ‘commercially sensitive’ and potentially prejudicial to future 
council negotiations’. If so, on what grounds? 
 
It was noted a written answer would be supplied, but in addition Giles Hughes commented 
that if Linda Ward remained concerned about the response, she had received from West 
Oxfordshire District Council in respect of her Freedom of Information request, she did have 
the opportunity to ask for a review of the response. 
 
6. Suzanne McIvor, on behalf of Cherwell Development Watch Alliance asked a 
question which referred to the notes of the meeting of the Future Oxfordshire Partnership 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Advisory Group held on 14 October 2021 and which quoted an 
extract from the notes which set out a summary of the Advisory Group’s discussion 
relating to the potential for a Green Belt review and officer advice that such a review could 
only be commissioned at a county level and not done individually by the district and city 
councils. The view was expressed by Suzanne McIvor that contrary to what was implied in 
the notes, the proposed policy option 10 as set out in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
consultation document, had not set out details of a potential Green Belt review and had 
instead concentrated on enhancements to the Green Belt. Any review would in any case 
be too late for existing planned development in the Green Belt and be contrary to the 
National Planning Policy Framework. The Future Oxfordshire Partnership was asked to 
clarify:  
 

 Would there be a Green Belt Review? 

 Why there had been no explicit mention of this in the recent Regulation 18 Part 2 
consultation? 

 How could a Green Belt review be justified given the NPPF guidelines? 

 How did the Partnership plan to ensure that any review of the Green Belt was done in 
a transparent way and was fully consulted on?   

 
Giles Hughes responded that given the strategic nature of the Oxfordshire Plan, and its 
plan period up to 2050, Green Belt was an issue that needed to be looked at.  The 
commissioning of a Green Belt study was being considered in order to make sure that the 
Plan had a comprehensive evidence base, and to help the Plan ensure that Green Belt 
boundaries remain appropriate up to 2050 and beyond.  This would set an important 
context for subsequent Local Plan reviews.   
 

Page 10



Future Oxfordshire Partnership minutes - 30 November 2021 

Plans were supported by evidence and new evidence is frequently commissioned at each 
stage of their development. Any new studies would be published as part of the next 
consultation stage in the normal way. Any Green Belt study will need to be consistent with 
the guidance in the National Planning Policy Framework.   
 

42. Future Oxfordshire Partnership Scrutiny Panel update  
 
The Vice-Chair invited Councillor Andrew Gant, Chair of the Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership Scrutiny Panel, to present the six recommendations arising from the Panel’s 
meeting on 23 November 2021. 
 
Councillor Gant highlighted that recommendation one had echoed many of the sentiments 
expressed in the first public question and whilst he acknowledged the response to that 
question, he did not think it had fully addressed the issue of how the text of the final 
consultation draft of the Oxfordshire Plan would be arrived at. There was reference to 
consideration of the draft by individual council overview and scrutiny committees, but 
Councillor Gant expressed concern that overview and scrutiny committees had only 
previously been able to express comments and not make recommendations to their 
cabinets, because of the sequencing of the approvals process across the respective 
councils.  
 
The Panel’s second recommendation asked that the Future Oxfordshire Partnership 
initiate a peer review of the OGNA, a request also made by a number of the public 
questioners. He noted the officer response to those requests but expressed the view that 
such a review would add value to the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 going forward.  
 
Recommendation three supported the establishment of a Green Belt review and 
recommendation four raised the important issue of taking into account gender specific 
dimensions as part of the planning and development of infrastructure projects.  
 
Recommendation five related to the review of the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal 
Infrastructure Programme and the proposal that funding from the programme be 
reallocated from the A4095 Howes Lane re-alignment to the A34 Lodge Hill Interchange 
and to the Milton Heights Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge. The Panel noted and understood 
the reasons behind the proposals but asked that the Future Oxfordshire Partnership do all 
it could to support the identification of alternative funding to deliver the Howes Lane re-
alignment scheme. 
 
Finally, recommendation six highlighted the need to explore what retrofitting infrastructure 
was needed at a community level, for example access to communal ground source 
heating and also how the tension between the need to maintain cycleways and protect 
flora and fauna might be reduced.  
 
The Vice-Chair thanked Councillor Gant for the Scrutiny Panel’s work and provided the 
Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s initial response to the recommendations. He commented 
that that recommendation had been largely accepted, but that the full written responses 
would be published on the Partnership’s website in due course. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11

http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/documents/b8594/Responses%20to%20public%20questions%20and%20Scrutiny%20Panel%20recommendations%20Tuesday%2030-Nov-2021%2014.00%20The%20Fu.pdf?T=9


Future Oxfordshire Partnership minutes - 30 November 2021 

43. Housing and Growth Deal Reports 
 

(a) Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Progress Report - Quarter 2, 
Year 4  

The Partnership considered a report updating them with progress with the Oxfordshire 
Housing and Growth Deal as of the second quarter, Year 4 (2021/2022).  
 
RESOLVED: That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership notes the progress as at Quarter 2, 
2021/2022 towards the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal. 
 

(b) Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Financial Report Quarter 2, Year 
4  

The Partnership considered a report setting out an update of the financial position of the 
Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal as of the second quarter, Year 4 (2021/2022).  
 
RESOLVED: That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership notes the Quarter 2, 2021/2022 
financial report. 
 

(c) Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme - Six 
Month Review and changes  

The Partnership considered a report setting out the results of the latest six month review 
by Oxfordshire County Council of the cost and delivery profiles of schemes within the 
Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme.  
 
Owen Jenkins, Director of Growth and Economy at Oxfordshire County Council, 
highlighted that the A4095 Howes Lane scheme had been identified in previous monitoring 
reports with a red RAG risk rating because of a slowdown in the delivery of accelerated 
housing associated with the scheme and because of insufficient funding available to 
deliver it. It was proposed to re-allocate the funding currently allocated to the A4095 
Howes Lane Scheme within the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Infrastructure 
Programme to the A34 Lodge Hill interchange scheme and the Milton Heights Pedestrian 
and Cycle bridge. As result of the changes, it was expected that there would be a net 
increase in the delivery of 200 homes accelerated by the provision of infrastructure.  
 
Mr Jenkins commented that throughout the programme review process, relevant officers 
had worked closely with colleagues at Cherwell District Council about the A4095 Howes 
Lane scheme and that they would continue to do so in order to find alternative funding 
solutions and delivery routes to provide the scheme.  
 
Councillor Leffman, Leader of Oxfordshire County Council commented that the County 
Council Cabinet would be formally considering the changes in due course, but that she 
fully understood the concerns felt within the Bicester community regarding the proposed 
removal of the Howes Lane scheme from the infrastructure programme and housing 
development in the area. However, given the time sensitive nature of funding for the 
Infrastructure Programme through the Deal and the need to make the most effective use of 
the funds, the Infrastructure Advisory Group had agreed that it was necessary to re-
allocate the funding. The County Council would continue to look at alternative ways in 
which the strategic road network in Bicester could be supported.  
 
Councillor Smith commented that she also understood and appreciated the concerns of 
the Bicester community regarding the removal of the Howes Lane scheme, but that given 
the pressures around the Lodge Hill interchange she supported the re-allocation of the 

Page 12



Future Oxfordshire Partnership minutes - 30 November 2021 

funds to that scheme. The issue did though highlight the strict conditionality around of use 
of funds within the Housing and Growth Deal.  
 
The Vice-Chair supported these comments and added that the time sensitive nature of the 
parcels of funding to accelerate housing delivery though Deal meant that it was necessary 
to make a decision in order to ensure funding remained available for schemes within 
Oxfordshire as a whole. It was also important to understand that re-allocation of funding 
from the Deal away from the Howes Lane scheme did not mean a cancellation of the 
scheme and partners would continue to need to work together to deliver it.  
 
Councillor Brown added that when members of the Housing Advisory Group had 
considered the housing implications of the proposed changes, they had expressed 
disappointment, but had acknowledged the changes were necessary to make the best use 
of available resources and keep funding within the county. This was consistent with the 
history of the councils’ collaboration through Future Oxfordshire Partnership to reallocate 
funding between projects if necessary.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership endorse the proposed changes to 
the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal Infrastructure Programme as recommended by 
Oxfordshire County Council as follows: 
 
1. the removal of further funding from a scheme currently within the H&GD – the A4095 

[Howes Lane] re-alignment  
 

2. re-allocating this funding, to introduce a scheme presently outside the H&GD – the 
A34 Lodge Hill interchange. 

 
3. Increasing funding to Milton Heights Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge to cover a cost 

pressure. 
 

(d) Infrastructure Advisory Group update  
Councillor Leffman referred to the notes of the Infrastructure Advisory Group meeting held 
on 1 November 2021.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership notes the update. 
 

(e) Housing Advisory Group update  
Councillor Brown referred to the notes of the Housing Advisory Group meeting held on 2 
November 2021 and highlighted that the group had held an important discussion around 
the potential for Oxfordshire’s councils to continue to work together to meet shared 
challenges around the affordability of housing across the county in the future. The group 
had also looked at lessons learnt in respect of the housing elements of the current 
Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal and had suggested a joint workshop with the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 advisory group around affordable housing.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership notes the update. 
 

(f) Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Advisory Group update  
Councillor Smith referred to the notes of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Advisory Group held 
on 14 October 2021 and also referred to the most recent meeting of the advisory group 
held on 18 November 2021. Councillor Smith highlighted that the advisory group had felt it 
was very important to maintain a good level of engagement with the Planning Inspectorate 

Page 13



Future Oxfordshire Partnership minutes - 30 November 2021 

and the new ministerial team at the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities as the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 process moved towards the Regulation 19 
stage so as to ensure the plan was developing in an acceptable technical manner.   
 
At its most recent meeting the advisory group had considered an initial and interim high-
level summary of themes starting to emerge from the analysis of the Regulation 18 
consultation responses. The advisory group had discussed how the output from the 
consideration of the consultation responses might be made available publicly and it was 
expected that a report setting out further information would be available in the New Year 
with the intention that it be considered by the district and city council overview and scrutiny 
committees.   
 
RESOLVED: That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership notes the update. 
 

(g) Environment Advisory Group update  
Councillor Rouane referred to the notes of the Environment Advisory Group held on 23 
September 2021 and paid tribute to Councillor Sue Cooper for her tenure as the previous 
Chair of the advisory group. He referred to the discussion held at the September meeting 
relating to transport and the tensions involved in addressing the dichotomy between the 
aspiration to reduce carbon usage and the provision of major road infrastructure.  
 
The Partnership was informed that at its most recent meeting on 26 November 2021, the 
advisory group had considered a presentation around retrofitting challenges and had 
supported the development of a methodology focussing on the role of local authorities for 
the implementation of the Pathways to a Zero Carbon Oxfordshire, (PaZCO) report. It was 
fully recognised by all of the advisory group’s members that the challenge was to move 
forward and turn the important discussions that had taken place into an action plan for 
change.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership notes the update. 
 

44. Future Oxfordshire Partnership Name Change Update  
 
The Partnership considered a report that summarised the steps taken since the 
Partnership’s previous meeting to transition from the Oxfordshire Growth Board to the 
Future Oxfordshire Partnership.  
 
Andrew Down, Future Oxfordshire Partnership Director indicated that the available 
feedback to date indicated that the name change had been implemented smoothly.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership notes the update. 
 

45. Future Oxfordshire Partnership Forward Plan  
 
RESOLVED: That the Future Oxfordshire Forward Plan be noted. 
 

46. Appointment of Chair of the Environment Advisory Group  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Susan Brown and seconded by Councillor Liz Leffman that 
Councillor David Rouane be appointed as Chair of the Environment Advisory Group for the 
remainder of the 2021/2022 year. There being no other nominations it was:  
 

Page 14



Future Oxfordshire Partnership minutes - 30 November 2021 

RESOLVED: That Councillor David Rouane be appointed as Chair of the Environment 
Advisory Group for the remainder of the 2021/2022 year.   
 

47. Oxford to Cambridge Arc Update  
 
Andrew Down, Future Oxfordshire Partnership Director provided a verbal update. The 
Partnership was informed that announcements by HM Government in respect of the next 
steps around the establishment of an Oxford to Cambridge Arc Growth Body and an Arc 
spatial framework following its consultation on an Oxford to Cambridge Arc Vision were 
still awaited. The Vice-Chair added that it was possible that there might be more certainty 
following the publication of HM Government’s Levelling Up White Paper, which was now 
expected in January 2022.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership note the update. 
 

48. Updates on matters relevant to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership  
 
At the invitation of the Vice-Chair, Councillor Brown updated the Partnership that the 
project to expand Oxford railway station had taken an important step forward with the 
granting of a prior approval planning application to redevelop the west of the station. The 
granting of the application allowed Network Rail to submit a bid for additional funding from 
the Department for Transport. Once completed, the expansion would allow for a significant 
increase in the number of passengers that could use the station.  The scheme would also 
allow for the provision of a new bridge over the Botley Road in Oxford.  
 
Network Rail had also indicated that they had taken the next steps necessary in the re-
opening of the Cowley branch line. This would be a significant infrastructure improvement 
for Oxford and Oxfordshire, reduce road use and unlock areas for housing and 
employment.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership note the update. 
 

49. Dates of next meetings  
 
The Future Oxfordshire Partnership noted the dates of future meetings as set out in the 
agenda. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 3.00 pm 
 
 
 
Chairman Date 

 

 
 

Page 15



OFFICIAL

Oxfordshire Connect

Update to Future Oxfordshire Partnership

January 2022

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 4



OFFICIAL

Oxfordshire Connect - Programme
• Provides an integrated strategy for aligning the major rail

programmes that are seeking to introduce new services 
into Oxford (East West Rail, Midlands Engine Rail 
(Leamington to Coventry Capacity Enhancement, Chiltern 
Route Upgrade North) and North Cotswolds Line
Transformation) and collect ively ident ifying the most
optimal way to deliver these

• Presents a cohesive vision for how rail programmes can be 
aligned, developed and delivered

• Strategic interventions drawn from Oxfordshire Rail 
Corridor Study - will need to be prioritised; development 
and delivery strategically phased and co-ordinated to 
enable project synergies to be ut ilised to maximise
benefits and minimise impacts on passengers and 
customers.

Oxford Phase 2 is the critical enabler for any service increases 
across the region, with the Phase 2 infrastructure 
underpinning this programme

P
age 17



OFFICIAL

Oxford Phase 2 – Scope overview

P
age 18



OFFICIAL

Oxford Phase 2 – Update 
• OBC funding of £68m received May 2021. This supports the delivery of safety improvements with level crossing closures 

(Yarnton & Sandy Lane); increase in through line capacity for freight and passenger services and a two-minute journey 
time improvement through the installation of higher-speed crossovers between Oxford and Bicester.

• The OBC funding also supports further design work, the TWAO application, essential land and property acquisitions and 
key enabling works to de-risk the overall programme.

• TWAO formally submitted on 04 June 2021. Objection period closed 24 July 2021. 

- Public Enquiry commenced 7th Dec 21, concluded 9th Dec 21. Awaiting output from Planning Inspectorate and 
decision from SoS. Expected March 22. 

• YHA acquisition – exchange of contracts took place on 31 July 21 with final completion due in March 2022.

• Re-design of western entrance achieved Prior Approval (Phase 2C & 2D) 9th November 2021.

• Procurement activities in progress for design and delivery works

• Full Business Case produced and governance ongoing ahead of requested funding decision April 2022.

- 5 case business model submitted to DfT for CoE assurance.

- Internal NR governance commenced November 21 – January 22

- DfT board requests January – February 22

• If funded, programme completion is planned for December 2024 to align Entry into Service with East West Rail

P
age 19



OFFICIAL

East West Rail

• A new direct east-west rail link between Oxford and Cambridge, 
and beyond. Serving communities across the area, it will cater 
for future growth, bring faster journey times and lower 
transport costs as well as easing pressure on local roads. This 
will support the thriving OxCam Arc of science and business. 

• Initial funding for a East West Rail Connection Stage 1 has 
been achieved for two trains per hour into Oxford from 2024

• Development continues for further service enhancements and 
configuration states for four trains per hour into Oxford around 
2027/28. Further infrastructure will be required for this. 

• The Oxford Phase 2 scheme provides platform and pedestrian 
flow capacity at Oxford station to support these services in 
2024.

P
age 20



OFFICIAL

Cowley Plus
• Key priority for industry and stakeholders to support 

connectivity across the region, the next service change 
with EWR CS2 and Restoring your Railway initiatives

• Development funding secured to progress initial designs 
to single option and support creation of an Outline 
Business Case

• Programme needs funding spent by the end of this 
financial year – 31/03/22

• Joint working with Local Authorities on wider transport 
integration and connectivity to the new stations to 
complement the rail-led work.  

New Station

P
age 21



OFFICIAL

Questions….?P
age 22



   
    
 

To:  Future Oxfordshire Partnership (formerly the Oxfordshire 
Growth Board) 

Title of Report:  Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS)- Stage 1 

Date:    25 January 2022 

Report of:  Paul Staines, Interim Head of Programme 

Status:  Open 

 

 
 
  

Executive Summary and Purpose: 

This report introduces the completed, updated first stage of the Oxfordshire 

Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS), which looks at the prioritisation of Oxfordshire’s 

identified infrastructure needs to 2040. It asks the Future Oxfordshire 

Partnership to endorse stage one of OxIS and to recommend its adoption by 

relevant partners as part of their methodology for infrastructure assessment and 

prioritisation. 

 

The report also introduces the Future Oxfordshire Partnership to some 

principles of development for OxIS Stage 2, which will support the Oxfordshire 

Plan 2050. 

  

How this report contributes to the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision Outcomes: 

 

The updated OxIS is cited within the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision as helping to 

support delivery of Good Growth. The needs-based assessment at the core of 

OxIS ensures that proposed infrastructure schemes can be reviewed based 

upon priorities that align to the Strategic Vision. 

 

Recommendations: 

1. That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership endorses the OxIS Stage 1 as the 

framework for prioritising Oxfordshire’s strategic infrastructure priorities to 

2040 

 

2. That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership asks partner councils to consider 

using OxIS as part of their methodologies for assessing and prioritising 

future infrastructure requirements  

 

3. That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership delegate any minor textual changes 

to the OxIS report prior to publication to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership 

Director. 

Appendices: 

One- OxIS Consultation summary  

Two- OxIS Stage One Summary Report 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Introduction 
 
1. The original Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS) was endorsed by the then 

Oxfordshire Growth Board in November 2017. It has helped secure significant 
investment for infrastructure in Oxfordshire, particularly for transport schemes 
being funded through the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal (the Deal) and 
the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF). 
 

2. A refresh of OxIS was a commitment in the Deal and offers an opportunity to 
update our infrastructure requirements to reflect submitted and approved local 
plans together with proposals identified by third party infrastructure providers 
such as utility companies and the Health Service Clinical Commissioning Group. 

 

3. Importantly, the OxIS refresh also allows us to re-evaluate our infrastructure 
requirements in the context of the current priorities of the Partnership, enabling 
us for example to rank or prioritise them in the light of declared climate change 
emergencies and a wish to maximise environmental enhancements. 

 

4. The outline scope of the OxIS update was presented and agreed by the then 
Growth Board in April 2020. This included: 
 

 A set of five key themes in which to consider infrastructure prioritisation/ 
investment- aligned to the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision 

 The arrangements for overseeing the delivery of the project, with 
agreement that the County Council would project manage, alongside 
consultants engaged to undertake technical work. 

 Agreement of the governance arrangements for the project with a key role 
for the Infrastructure Advisory subgroup. 

 Consultation with residents and stakeholders.  

 The need to ensure wide ranging engagement with key infrastructure. 
providers such as the Clinical Commissioning Group, Utilities and 
Education. 

 The outline budget to undertake the consultancy technical work, drawn 
from the Growth Deal Capacity Fund. 

 
5. The then Growth Board also agreed to split the project into two parts. The first is 

OxIS Stage One, which looks to 2040 with the key documents informing this 
stage being the submitted and adopted local plans and their associated 
documents, particularly the Infrastructure Delivery Plans.  
 

6. The second stage, OxIS Stage 2, is planned to align with the Oxfordshire Plan 
2050 and will provide an assessment of the strategic infrastructure requirements 
emanating from the conclusions of this Plan.  

 
7. Following endorsement to the project scope, the process for procurement of 

consultants was undertaken in summer 2020, with City Science being successful 
and beginning work in Autumn 2020. Stage 1 of the OxIS update is now 
complete, with commencement of Stage 2 to align with the development of the 
Oxfordshire Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 
 

OxIS Methodology 
 
8. The main elements to stage 1 of OxIS are as follows: 
 

 An outline of the Oxfordshire spatial and place-based context, including 
showing those areas where new housing and employment is planned.  

 A summary of currently planned housing and employment as outlined in 
local plans in Oxfordshire -as well as surrounding areas- that could impact 
on Oxfordshire, and the consequent areas of focus for consideration of 
new infrastructure. 

 Identification and description of Oxfordshire’s future infrastructure needs 
to 2040. This also shows the spatial impact of planned schemes, as well 
as where there are gaps in planned infrastructure both against identified 
needs and the themes identified as our priorities. 

 The development of a Multi-Criteria Assessment (MCA) framework for 
assessment of identified infrastructure schemes, detailed in the next 
section. 

 The appraisal and scoring of identified strategic infrastructure schemes - 
271 in total - against the MCA and the grouping of these by areas of focus 
and by spatial impact. 

 An assessment of infrastructure funding issues and opportunities, 
including the outline funding ‘gap’. 

 
9. At the core of the refresh of OxIS is a re-examination of the method used to 

rank or prioritise infrastructure, the so called Multi Criteria Assessment or MCA. 
 
10. The earlier version of OxIS had a well-developed MCA which the refresh could 

build upon. It was however a child of its time and no longer reflects the current 
priorities of Oxfordshire. 

 

11. The new MCA has been developed to reflect these priorities. Amongst other 
things it places greater emphasis upon either maximising the benefits or, where 
necessary, minimising the climate and environmental impacts of the 
infrastructure. It is closely aligned to the Oxfordshire Vision previously endorsed 
by the then Growth Board and then approved by its partner councils 

 

12. The revised MCA is built upon the five pillars or themes that the then Growth 
Board approved in April 2021, and these are. 

 

 Environment  

 Health  

 Place-making (updated to be place-shaping in the final report)  

 Productivity 

 Connectivity 
 

13. Within these five pillars there are a further set of sub-categories against which 
infrastructure schemes are assessed, a total of 25 in all. The net effect of this is 
to allow a more connected, sophisticated and comprehensive understanding of 
the impacts and benefits of proposed infrastructure, beyond how it enables 
housing growth, and it marks a departure from the MCA in the previous OxIS 
which placed emphasis on enabling planned housing growth. 

  

Page 25



 
 

14. Having established this method, the summary report- at appendix two- then 
demonstrates how this is applied to the current infrastructure requirements of 
Oxfordshire.  

 

15. In particular, a total score is given in the report for both how a proposed 
infrastructure scheme aligns with the needs-based appraisal under each of the 
five core themes, as well as a score for how far it aligns and supports delivery 
of planned housing and employment growth, allowing these two issues to be 
separated.  

 

16. To ensure that this illustration of how OxIS would prioritise infrastructure is as 
current as possible, all partners were asked to ensure that the list of 
infrastructure projects was as up to date as it could be, with the understanding 
that these projects needed to be worked to at least an agreed level of detail 
such that there was sufficient scheme information necessary for correct 
assessment.  

 

17. Where infrastructure projects are promoted by partners but had not yet reached 
the detail needed for assessment they are noted in the report as such.  The 
opportunity is there to add these or other projects in the future, subject to the 
necessary information being available. 

 

18. It is important to note that in endorsing OxIS, the Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership is not being asked to agree the infrastructure lists contained within 
it. The purpose of the project is to agree a common MCA method for 
infrastructure assessment, and it is this methodology for which endorsement is 
sought. To enable this the report offers an illustration - at a point in time- of 
what the current known infrastructure requirements of Oxfordshire would look 
like when this prioritisation methodology is applied. Inevitably this list of 
schemes will change over time. 

 
19. Overall, OxIS Stage 1 provides a comprehensive and up to date assessment of 

current infrastructure needs in Oxfordshire, as well as giving an updated 
framework for prioritisation of identified strategic infrastructure schemes.  

 
20. The project has not in itself generated new schemes but has drawn these 

together from other evidence-based documents in engagement with key 
partners. Importantly this process has shown that there are gaps in planned 
schemes against the themes identified. This is particularly the case for the 
environment and health-based themes. 

 
Project governance arrangements. 
 
21. OxIS Stage 1 has been progressed as a partnership project, recognising that all 

Future Oxfordshire Partnership members have an interest in ensuring that the 
planning and funding of strategic infrastructure is done in an effective and co-
ordinated way.  To enable this to happen, proper governance was put in place 
at the outset of the project including: 

 

 Establishing structured project management processes, including a 
dedicated project management resource from the County Council. 

 Setting up an officer project working group to oversee the projects 
delivery, with representatives from all Oxfordshire local authorities and the 
Local Enterprise Partnership (OxLEP). 

Page 26



 
 

 Supplying regular updates to the Growth Deal Programme Board and to 
the Executive Officer Group of the Future Oxfordshire Partnership. 

 Ensuring that the Infrastructure Advisory Group had political oversight on 
OxIS progress.  

 Procurement of specialist consultants, City Science, within a budget to 
undertake the technical project work.  

 
Stakeholder engagement 

 
22. To ensure that OxIS Stage 1 took a comprehensive approach to identification of 

infrastructure needs and schemes, it was recognised at the outset that wider 
engagement was needed to complete the work effectively. This was done in 
two stages: 

 

 Winter 2020/21: Several themed workshops were set up with important 
infrastructure stakeholders, particularly those involved in infrastructure 
provision. This ensured that key policy, strategy, and planning documents 
were identified, as well as any strategic projects that could be put forward 
for appraisal. 

 

 Summer 2021: A wider public/stakeholder engagement process on the 
draft Stage 1 reports was undertaken over 6 weeks, which ensured that 
everyone had the opportunity to feed back on the Stage 1 work. It has 
also enabled the Stage 1 report to be refined, as well as allowing more 
proposed strategic infrastructure schemes into the appraisal process, 
using evidence submitted as part of the engagement.  

 

23. The consultation process utilised an interactive project map that enabled users to 
identify where infrastructure projects were and to see how they scored against 
the 5 themes of OxIS- so as to understand its relative priority. Feedback on this 
consultation method was overwhelmingly positive. 

 
24. Overall, we received about 150 responses from individuals and organisations- the 

key messages were: 
 

 Strong support for prioritising the environment in any infrastructure 
considerations, followed by health and place shaping. 

 An emphasis on ensuring that OxIS supports the urgency of achieving 
net zero carbon ambitions. 

 A wish to ensure that future infrastructure requirements recognise the 
changing ways of working post COVID-19. 

 A request that the connectivity and interrelationship between 
infrastructure schemes be reflected in the MCA. 
 

25. A table showing how OxIS relates to and has been altered in response to the 
consultation outcomes is contained in Appendix One. 

 
 Outcome of work undertaken for Stage 1 

 
26. The outcome of the Stage 1 work is set out in two reports: 
 

 Stage 1 Technical Report, Dec 2021: This gives full detail on the OxIS 
process, infrastructure context for all relevant areas, identification of future 
infrastructure needs, the method and outcome of the MCA for all 

Page 27



 
 

proposed infrastructure schemes. This is offered as a background 
document to this report  

 

 Stage 1 Summary Report: Dec 2021: This gives an overview of the Stage 
1 work, including key points from the full technical report. This is 
contained in appendix one of this report 

 
Next Steps 

 
27. The success of the OxIS Stage 1 project will be in its continued use by partners 

as a common assessment method for the infrastructure needs of Oxfordshire. For 
this reason, the Future Oxfordshire Partnership is asked to recommend to partner 
councils that they consider utilising OxIS as one basis for prioritisation of 
infrastructure requirements. 

 
28. Following completion of Stage 1 of the project, the scope of OxIS Stage 2 will be 

further developed. The principles underpinning OxIS stage 2 are proposed to be: 
 

 It will need to support the Oxon Plan 2050 Reg 19 consultation. 

 It should assess infrastructure linkages with agreed planned growth to 

2050. 

 It should build upon other evidence-based work being undertaken for the 

Oxfordshire Plan that will help to identify priority infrastructure, for 

example the transport assessment and water cycle study. 

 It should use the MCA developed in Stage 1 as the basis for infrastructure 

ranking, but review this in the context of any relevant policy and strategy 

updates. 

 It should be developed in a collaborative way, following similar 

governance arrangements as Stage1. 

  

Financial Implications 
 
29. The Stage 1 consultancy work undertaken by City Science has been funded 

from the Growth Deal Capacity Fund. It is planned that the Stage 2 work is also 
drawn from this fund, with the total costs expected to within the originally 
agreed budget. The project has been managed by resources drawn from OCC 
and the Core Growth Deal Team 

 
Legal Implications  
 
30. There are no legal implications arising from the endorsement of OxIS Stage 1 

by the partnership.  OxIS is not a statutory document, and any of the proposed 
schemes included in the document would have their own decision-making and 
statutory processes to go through to enable delivery.  

 
Conclusion 

 
31. OxIS Stage 1 has allowed Oxfordshire to undertake a thorough and evidence-

based assessment of current infrastructure needs in Oxfordshire in 
consideration of current policy and strategy, including the Oxfordshire Vison, as 
well as currently planned development to 2040 as set out in district local plans.  

 

Page 28



 
 

32. It has also used this needs assessment to appraise proposed infrastructure, 
including assessing how it links to delivery of proposed development at a more 
local level.  

 

33. Finally, it provides a sound basis to further develop infrastructure planning 
across different sectors, including looking for relevant funding. It also helps 
identify where further work may be needed to support development of schemes 
that fit specified needs, especially where infrastructure scheme gaps have been 
identified against the agreed themes. 

 
Background Papers 
 
Link to access Oxfordshire Infrastruture Stategy, (OxIS) Stage 1(2021-2040) 

Technical Report 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Report Authors:  Paul Staines- Growth Deal Interim Head of Programme 

                                           James Gagg- Principal Infrastructure Planner -OCC 

Contact information:  Paul.staines@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

                                           James.gagg@oxfordshiore.gov.uk 

 

Page 29

http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=635&MId=2965
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=635&MId=2965
mailto:Paul.staines@oxfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:James.gagg@oxfordshiore.gov.uk


   
    

Appendix One Summary of key consultation messages and responses 

Key Message OxIS Response 

 

 

Urgency of achieving Net Zero and questioned 

importance of a growth bonus score applied to 

schemes 

 

•Accounts for current adopted policy and strategy context, including Local Plans 

•Increased prominence of total needs-based score and strengthened emphasis of bonus nature of growth 

scores 

•Flexible scoring system allows decision-makers to rank scores by each of the six components depending on 

individual priorities 

 

 

Potential impact of changing ways of working post 

COVID-19 on infrastructure scheme investment e.g., 

transport  

 

•Where appropriate and known, relevant infrastructure needs from additional pressures (e.g., digital) accounted 

for. 

•Acknowledgment of long-term COVID-19 uncertainty in Stage 1 Report with potential to be re-visited in future 

(e.g., Stage 2 or future Stage 1 update) 

 

 

Desire for clearer link between Neighbourhood 

Plans and Local Plans.  

 

•Neighbourhood Plans less strategic in nature, hence lower priority 

•Prominence of Neighbourhood Plans strengthened in Stage 1 Report 

 

 

Concern that inter-reliance / dependency of 

schemes not reflected in Multi-Criteria Assessment. 

•Where appropriate, schemes amalgamated and altered to account for this 

•Dependencies already accounted for in deliverability appraisal of schemes 

 

 

P
age 30



Page | 1  
 

 

 

  

Oxfordshire 

Infrastructure 

Strategy (OxIS) 

Stage 1 (2021-2040) - 

Summary Report  

Page 31



Page | 2  
 

 

Date issued:     22/12/2021 

Document status:    OxIS Stage 1 Summary Report 

Version number:    1.2 

Document history: 

 

Authored by: 

Elliot Reid Principal Consultant, City Science 

Simon Lusby Technical Director, City Science 

Key contributions from: 

Dr Andrew Allen, Alex Dawn, Bob Hickish, Chloe Bates, City Science  

David Fraser, Elliot Reid, Felicia Baily, Grace Solsby,  

Jade Baker-Edwards, Jamie Ridley, Jo Muncaster,  

Simon Drake, Simon Lusby, Dr Stephen Welbourne  

& Laurence Oakes -Ash 

Approved by:  

Laurence Oakes-Ash CEO, City Science 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Author Version Change reference 

Elliot Reid & Simon Lusby 0.1 Summary Report – First Draft 

Jo Muncaster 0.2 Update for Infrastructure Advisory Group 

Elliot Reid & Simon Lusby 1.0 Summary Report – Final Draft for Consultation 

Elliot Reid & Jo Muncaster 1.1 Summary Report – Final for Consultation 

Elliot Reid & Jo Muncaster 1.2 
Summary Report – Updated for Amendments post public 
Consultation 

Page 32



Page | 3  
 

1. Stage 1 - Summary Report Introduction 

1.1. Context 

This updated Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS) was commissioned on behalf of the Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership (formerly Oxfordshire Growth Board), to provide a holistic assessment of the infrastructure needs of the 
county aligned to the priorities of both the Future Oxfordshire Partnership and the district and city councils and to 
support the emerging Oxfordshire Plan 2050. This OxIS Stage 1 Report provides a strategic framework for Oxfordshire 
County Council (OCC), Oxfordshire’s four District and City Councils and key strategic partners to prioritise currently 
proposed infrastructure scheme investment aligned to the five OxIS themes as well as identify potential delivery and 
funding opportunities to 2040.  

This report will be followed by the OxIS Stage 2 Report in 2022 that will consider new proposals for strategic 
infrastructure required to meet Oxfordshire’s needs in the period to 2050. The OxIS Stage 2 Report will be aligned 
with the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, which is a forthcoming Joint Statutory Spatial Plan identifying key areas where 
sustainable housing and employment growth can occur to 2050 and which will underpin the next iteration of 
Oxfordshire’s Local Plans. 

OxIS aims to: 

• Set out the priority strategic infrastructure investment needed to support good growth as defined in the 
Oxfordshire Strategic Vision and aligned to the five OxIS Themes  

• Continue to shape and influence investment strategies at a national, sub-national and local level; maximising 
the efficiency and effectiveness of existing infrastructure and reducing the demand for new infrastructure, 
supporting Oxfordshre’s role as a global innovation hub 

• Plan for infrastructure over a longer-term horizon to complement and provide evidence to support the 
emerging Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

• Provide an investment prioritisation that can be applied as relevant funding sources become available 

 

Page 33



Page | 4  
 

1.2.   OxIS Themes 

The Future Oxfordshire Partnership (formerly Oxfordshire Growth Board), in partnership with key strategic 
partners, have agreed five OxIS Themes. These themes are consistent with established and emerging policies 
across Oxfordshire, including Oxfordshire’s Strategic Vision for Long Term Sustainable Development (2021) and 
the Local Transport & Connectivity Plan.  

The purpose of the five OxIS Themes is to provide a structural framework for the identification of future 
infrastructure needs to 2040 to support sustainable, clean, healthy and inclusive growth in Oxfordshire. Six 
policy documents are provided as examples against each OxIS Theme.  

 

  

                           
                

                          
                      

                         
            

                        
                        

                     
       

                     
           

                           
                         

                          
                         

                      
    

                          
                     

      

                            
     

                  
                

                        
                       

      

                 
                 

                        
                       

     

               
                     

    

                     
                      

                      
             

                       
                       

    

                        
              

                            
      

                        
                     

        

                  
                          

                       
           

                    
                       

                  
                         

                  

                      
                      

                          
     

                   
               

                      
                
             

                                                      

            
                       
                        
                       
                     
                     
               

                      
               

                     
                      

                           
                     
                     
                  

                         
                     
                        
                      
                    
                     

        

                      
                    
                      

         
              

                       
                    
                    
                

         
                  

                    

                      
              

                  
                       
                     

                
                  

                      
                     
                         
                
                  
                     

           

               
                 

                         
                  
                    
                

                        
           

                 
         

                       
                          
                           
                        
                       

                
                          
                         
                         
                       

                       
                          
                    
                       
                       
                       
                        
                      

                         
                   

                           
                           

Page 34



Page | 5  
 

1.3.   OxIS Stage 1 & Stage 2 Scope 

This document constitutes the OxIS Stage 1 Report (aligning with Regulation 18, part 2 of the Oxfordshire Plan 
consultation). It is formed of a short OxIS Stage 1 Summary Report and a longer OxIS Stage 1 Technical Report. 

It seeks to: 

• Conduct a refresh of the evidence base and a re-prioritisation of strategic infrastructure schemes to 
2040 

• Align with the current forecasts of District Local Plans, where possible 

• Embed a ‘needs-based approach’ to the multi-criteria appraisal aligned to the five OxIS Themes from 
the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision and 13 infrastructure types  

• Considers infrastructure schemes identified within existing strategy documents such as District Local 
Plans and Infrastructure Delivery Plans (IDPs) 

• Support, but not replicate District IDPs 

• Support and champion the Oxfordshire Local Industrial Strategy and Investment Plan 

• Establish a consensus, on strategic infrastructure schemes  

• Support opportunities to facilitate strategic funding 

This Report will be followed by an OxIS Stage 2 Report, which plans to: 

• Consider strategic infrastructure required to meet Oxfordshire’s needs to 2050  

• Form a core part of the evidence base underpinning the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

• Align with Regulation 19 of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 consultation 

• Apply a broadly similar appraisal approach adopted in the Stage 1 Report 

• Identify and rank new strategic infrastructure requirements emerging from the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
growth options 

• Reflect outcomes of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 consultation process 

 
 

Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

This is a forthcoming Joint Statutory Spatial Plan which is a commitment of the Oxfordshire Housing and 
Growth Deal. The Plan will identify key areas where sustainable housing and employment growth can 
occur. It will be used as a key foundation for the subsequent preparation of future District Local Plans. 

Page 35



Page | 6  
 

1.4.   OxIS Stage 1 Summary Report & Technical Report 

This OxIS Stage 1 Summary Report provides a high-level outline of the broader OxIS Stage 1 Technical Report. 
The Technical Report covers the following in detail. 

  

•Outlines background and 
purpose of this Stage 1 Report

•Sets out key stakeholders

•Public consultation outcomes 

•Provides context of the previous 
work in 2017

•Outlines the scope, themes 
and structure of this OxIS 
Stage 1 Report

1. Background

•Contextually reviews the 
places people live across the 
County

•Identifies key data including 
age and economic 
demographics

•Introduces the OxIS spatial 
framework and place-based 
approach

2. Oxfordshire’s 
People & Places

•Outlines the most recent 
County forecasts of 
population and employment 
growth to 2040, based on 
ONS and available 
information provided by 
Oxfordshire Local Authorities

3. Oxfordshire’s Future 
Change Trajectory to 
2040

•Outlines Oxfordshire’s existing 
infrastructure context across 
13 infrastructure types

•Indicates stakeholder 
responsibilities, infrastructure 
locational context and 
capacity

4. Oxfordshire’s 
Existing Infrastructure

•Identifies and summarises 
Oxfordshire’s future needs to 
2040 across the five OxIS 
Themes and 25 sub-themes

•Outlines the strategic policy 
needs and level of importance 
(sourced from key national, 
County and District policies) 

5. Oxfordshire’s Future 
Needs to 2040

•Outlines the methodology for 
the identification, sifting, 
grouping and filtering of OxIS 
infrastructure schemes 

•Identifies strategic gaps 
(absence or lack of tangible 
infrastructure schemes) to 
address future needs to 2040

6. OxIS Infrastructure 
Scheme Identification 
& Gaps

•Introduces the bespoke multi-
criteria appraisal approach 
for assessing the OxIS schemes

•Sets out scoring logic maps

•Outlines needs based and 
growth-based scoring elements

•Provides an outcome for 
each OxIS scheme

7. Multi-Criteria OxIS 
Scheme Appraisal

•Identifies the total scheme 
cost alongside the funding gap 

•Outlines potential funding 
sources to address the gap

8. Scheme Funding & 
Deliverability

•Provides an overarching 
conclusion to the Stage 1 
Report

•Introduces the next steps that 
will be pursued in the OxIS 
Stage 2 Report to 2050

9. Conclusions & Next 
Steps

Page 36



Page | 7  
 

1.5.   Existing Oxfordshire Infrastructure Governance Context 

Given its importance to achieving multiple goals, responsibility for the identification of infrastructure need, planning 
and delivery in Oxfordshire is multi-tiered across National, County and District governments. This broad governance 
structure reflects the collaborative relationship within Oxfordshire, between the Future Oxfordshire Partnership 
(formerly Oxfordshire Growth Board) and OCC, Oxfordshire’s five District Councils, key infrastructure providers and 
key strategic partners. The Future Oxfordshire Partnership (formerly Oxfordshire Growth Board) has a key co-
ordination role across these stakeholders including: 

• Coordinating local efforts to manage economic, housing and infrastructure development in a way that is 
inclusive and maximises local social and environmental benefits 

• Supports the development of local planning policy that meets the UK Government’s stated aim of net 
zero carbon by 2050 and contributes towards biodiversity gain  

• Seeks to secure funding in the pursuit of these aims 

 

Page 37



Page | 8  
 

1.6.   Policy Review - Key National Policy Framework & Legislation 

The below provides an overview of national policies and strategies impacting the planning of infrastructure and 
land use, categorised by government department and OxIS Theme. This reflects the broad national policy 
framework which OxIS operates within and is summarised in the OxIS Stage 1 Technical Report. 

 
Additionally, OxIS must follow key national legislation as well as local county and district policies. 

• Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004): Obligates local planning authorities to prepare Local 
Plans and accompanying IDPs 

• Planning Act (2008): Decision making framework for nationally significant infrastructure projects 

• Climate Change Act (2008): Obligates the UK to meet net zero carbon emissions by 2050 

• Equalities Act (2010): Obligates local authorities to provide services which eliminate discrimination 

• Environment Act (1995): Obligates local authorities to monitor and manage air quality 

• Environmental Protection Act (1990): Obligates local authorities to collect and treat waste appropriately 

• Care Act (2014): Obligates local authorities to promote an effective provision of social care services 

• Education Act (1996): Obligates local authorities to ensure that school education meets local demand 

• Road Traffic Act (1988): Obligates highway authorities, like local authorities, to manage road safety 

• Transport Act (2000): Obligates local transport authorities to provide suitable transport services and facilities 

Page 38



Page | 9  
 

1.7.   A Place-Based Approach to OxIS 

The previous Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy completed in 2017 (OxIS-17) was underpinned by a spatial 
framework which reflected Regional, Countywide and Local Infrastructure. Local infrastructure was categorised 
into nine groups, with Oxford City being at the hub and the remaining eight groups forming corridor-based 
spokes to the edge of Oxfordshire. This approach has been reviewed as part of OxIS Stage 1 through discussions 
held as part of the OxIS Working Group, as well as in discussions with key stakeholders.  

As with OxIS-17, it is recognised that Oxfordshire’s future needs and the nature of schemes vary according to 
the county’s various spatial levels. OxIS complements the more detailed work at a District level and as such this 
work is not aimed to duplicate this but to collaboratively draw together the view across Oxfordshire. The three 
spatial groupings have thus broadly been retained, however, the local level has been adapted away from a 
corridor- to a place-based approach.  

The use of this spatial framework forms a coherent thread throughout OxIS in relation to the identification of 
existing infrastructure, future needs, scheme identification and grouping and scheme appraisal.  

 

 

Spatial Level Sub-Level Description 

Sub-National Sub-National • Oxfordshire’s needs and infrastructure schemes in the context of the wider area, 
including the South East and Oxford-Cambridge Arc.  

Regional Cross-County • Needs and schemes with a cross-county boundary importance or spatial impact 

County-wide • Needs and schemes with a county-wide importance or spatial impact 

Cross-District • Needs and schemes with a cross-district boundary importance or spatial impact 

District-wide • Needs and schemes with a district-wide importance or spatial impact 

Local OxIS Towns & 
Surrounds 

• Needs and schemes directly relevant to towns in Oxfordshire with notable 
projected future growth to 2040 (2040 to 2050 will be covered in Stage 2) 

OxIS Rural 
Communities 

• Needs and schemes directly relevant to rural communities, including villages and 
those in the rural-urban fringe, with notable projected future growth to 2040  

1.7.1. OxIS Local Areas of Focus 

Place based local areas of focus have been introduced to replace the corridor-based approach of OxIS-17. This 
enables a greater consideration of schemes which may be lower in cost but remain strategically important to 
the creation of successful places. The benefits and practicalities of this approach include: 

Page 39



Page | 10  
 

• Direct Relationship with Growth: Many of the identified OxIS schemes have a direct relationship to 
supporting growth. Local areas of focus allows the growth appraisal score to be applied objectively  

• Integration with District Local Plans: The place-based approach is consistent with the spatial 
frameworks identified with the various District Local Plans and IDPs  

• Correlates with Place & People Approach: It aligns with the reorientated priorities of the Future 
Oxfordshire Partnership (formerly Oxfordshire Growth Board) for growth delivery in a healthy, 
sustainable, and inclusive way  

• Relationship to Decarbonisation: Research for the Royal Town Planning Institute identifies that place-
based solutions are critical to achieving net zero carbon emissions, particularly from transport   

• Links to Potential Funding Opportunities: Place-based schemes have a clearer link to potential funding 
opportunities; particularly in relation to their interaction with supporting growth  

• Community Integration by Active Travel: The extents of the place based local areas of focus has been 
informed by an evidence base of cycling distance between places  

The District and City Council Local Plans take a sustainable approach to allocate growth to Oxford, other market 
towns and larger villages across the county. Consideration of this spatial distribution has also highlighted a need 
to consider the different characteristics of these places given there are different requirements and priorities for 
infrastructure need. The OxIS place-based approach recognises this and local areas have therefore been split into: 

• OxIS Towns & Surrounds: Established urban areas comprising Oxford City and key towns where notable 
levels of change are forecast to 2040 

• OxIS Rural Communities: Rural communities across Oxfordshire constituting both villages and urban-
rural fringes where notable levels of change are forecast to 2040 

                

OxIS Towns & Surrounds:  

1. Oxford City 

2. Abingdon & Surrounds 

3. Banbury 

4. Bicester 

5. Carterton 

6. Chipping Norton 

7. Didcot & Wallingford 

8. Wantage & Grove  

9. Witney 

OxIS Rural Communities:  

10. Berinsfield 

11. Chalgrove 

12. Eynsham & Long Hanborough 

13. Grenoble Road & Northfield  

14. South Cherwell area & Woodstock 

15. Upper Heyford 

16. Faringdon & Shrivenham 

17. Bayswater Brook  

Page 40



Page | 11  
 

2. Future Change Trajectory  

2.1. Change Trajectory to 2040 (OxIS Stage 1) 

The OxIS Stage 1 Technical Report provides an indication of the key policy changes that have occurred since 
OxIS-17, including the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal, adoption of District Local Plans and the emerging 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050, as well as the emerging Oxford-Cambridge Spatial Framework. Growth to 2050 will be 
captured in the forthcoming OxIS Stage 2 Report. 

Through use of up-to-date information provided by Oxfordshire District Councils, it projects the future housing, 
employment, and population growth to 2040. To reflect the uncertainty of the period after the Local Plan horizons, this 
considers: 

• Core Local Plan Period: 2020 – 2031 / 2035 / 2036 

• Horizon Planning Period: 2031 / 2035 / 2036 – 2040 

The population estimates to 2031 and 2040 are necessary to inform the county’s future infrastructure needs both 
during the Core Planning Period and the Horizon Planning Period to 2040. This is applicable to infrastructure types 
that are predominantly demand driven such as Education, Potable Water, Waste and Health and Adult Social Care. 

 

Page 41



Page | 12  
 

3. Strategic 2040 Needs 
Through a robust evidence gathering process, including thorough engagement with multidisciplinary stakeholders, a 
review of key policies and strategies and a detailed analysis of the geospatial evidence base, these themes have been 
used as a framework to refine 25 outcome-led sub-themes. These sub-themes represent Oxfordshire’s future needs 
for infrastructure investment to 2040 and underpin the needs-based appraisal component of the infrastructure 
scheme multi-criteria appraisal (see Chapter 7 of the OxIS Stage 1 Technical Report).  

  

3.1. Thematic Stakeholder Workshops 

A series of thematic workshops and targeted engagement forums were held with key subject matter stakeholders and 
infrastructure providers to verify and refine the future needs to 2040 as well as to agree the core measurable outcomes.  

OxIS Theme Workshop Topic Workshop Attendees 

Environment 
Environment  

• Council Climate Action Teams 

• Environment Agency 

• Council Natural Environment Teams 

• County Flooding Team 

Waste & Recycling  • OCC Waste Disposal Team • District Waste Collection Teams 

Health Health  

• Oxford University Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust 

• Healthwatch Oxfordshire 

• OCC Active Travel Team 

• OCCG 

• Healthy Place-Shaping Team 

• Sport England  

• Active Oxfordshire 

Place-Shaping Place-Shaping  
• OCC Cultural & Community Team 

• Communities First Oxfordshire  

• OCC Healthy Place-Shaping Team 

• OCC Community Safety Team 

• OCC Road Safety Team 

• OCC Active Travel Team 

Productivity 
Business Productivity  • OxLEP • OCC Economic Development Team 

School Education  • County School Team  

Connectivity 

Digital Connectivity  
• County Digital Infrastructure & 

Strategy Team 

• Openreach 

• Virgin Media 

• Zzoomm 

• Airband 

Energy Connectivity  
• County Energy Team 

• SGN  

• SSEN 

• WPD 

Water Connectivity  • Thames Water  

Transport 
Connectivity  

• OCC Transport Team 

• Stagecoach West 

• Network Rail 

• Oxford Bus Company 

• Great Western Rail 

• Chiltern Railways 

Environment

E1. Net Zero 
Carbon Emissions

E2. Resilience to 
Climate Change

E3. Enhanced 
Natural 

Environment & 
Biodiversity

E4. Efficient Waste 
& Recycling

E5. Reduced 
Water & Noise 

Pollution

Health

H1: Reduced 
Health Inequalities

H2: Improved 
Access to Spaces 

for Physical Activity

H3: Improved 
Health Service 

Access

H4: Cleaner Air

H5: Enhanced 
Mental Health & 

Wellbeing

Place-Shaping

PS1: Local & 
Liveable 

Communities

PS2: Safe & Secure 
Communities

PS3: Resilient 
Heritage & Culture

PS4: Socially 
Integrated Places

PS5: Inclusive & 
Integrated Active 

Travel

Productivity

P1: World Class 
Inclusive  

Education & Skills 
Development

P2: Reduce 
Oxfordshire's 

Socio-Econmic 
Inequalities

P3: Attract & 
Retain Talent in 

Oxfordshire

P4: Global Business 
Innovation 
Ecosystem

P5: Drive 
Economic Growth 

& Productive 
Employment

Connectivity

C1: A Digitally 
Connected 
Oxfordshire

C2: Clean & 
Secure Energy Grid 

Capacity & 
Connectivity

C3: Secure Water 
Supply & 

Wastewater

C4: Improved 
Sustainable Transport 
Connectivity Across 

Oxfordshire

C5: Strategic 
Transport 

Connectivity Into & 
Out of Oxfordshire

Page 42



Page | 13  
 

3.2. Public Consultation 

Following stakeholder engagement workshops on the key themes, the draft report for Stage 1 to 2040 was 
published on the Future Oxfordshire Partnership (formerly Oxfordshire Growth Board) website 
(oxfordshireopenthought.org) for public consultation between 16th July and 31st August 2021.  

Comments were invited from the public and wider stakeholder groups which have been used to refine the Stage 
1 Report and the process for Stage 2. All technical stakeholders engaged in Stage 1 of OxIS were also requested 
to provide feedback on the Stage 1 Technical and Summary Reports.  

The public consultation was supported by a digital, interactive tool (developed in-house by City Science) that 
enabled users to explore potential infrastructure schemes in their region and the thematic, growth and 
deliverability scoring for each scheme.  

Consultees were invited to answer a series of questions in an online survey to collate their feedback, a direct 
email address was also provided for more detailed feedback. 78 online survey responses and 63 written 
responses were received, this included members of the public, businesses, landowners, and stakeholder 
interest groups. A more detailed summary of responses can be found in the OxIS Technical Report.  

Key Emerging Message Response 

Multiple respondents highlighted the 
overwhelming importance for reducing CO₂ 
emissions and questioned the importance of a 
growth factor above the need to meet Net Zero 
targets. 

The scoring system takes into account current policy and strategy 
context against each identified need (including drawing on the 
Oxfordshire Vision), as well as links with planned development as set 
out in current local plans. Scoring can also be reviewed for each need 
alongside the growth score so it is clear how each scheme performs 
against the environmental need score individually. 

Respondents noted the potential impact of 
changing ways in working post COVID-19 and 
the possible impact on infrastructure 
requirements as a result. 

Remote working places additional pressures on infrastructure such as 
digital connectivity, these needs have been assessed as part of the 
report and are included in the thematic indicators for scoring. 

A clearer link should be demonstrated between 
Neighbourhood Plans and Local Plans for 
identifying infrastructure schemes.  

 

Neighbourhood plans focus on specific areas of a district, such as a 
parish or town. As a result, the infrastructure schemes tend to be of a 
less strategic nature, however, where strategic infrastructure schemes 
have been identified from Neighbourhood plans, they have been 
assessed and incorporated into OxIS.   

Any specific comments regarding technical points have also been assessed and incorporated into the Stage 1 
Report where appropriate. Improvements on the process and information pertaining to schemes running to 
2050 have been recorded for assessment in Stage 2 of OxIS 

Page 43

https://www.oxfordshireopenthought.org/


Page | 14  
 

3.3.   Environment Needs to 2040 

The Environment theme responds to the climate emergency declared by OCC and the five District Councils, as well as 
the net zero carbon targets identified in the various Climate Action Frameworks and by the Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership (formerly Oxfordshire Growth Board). Through building resilience to the long-term effects of climate 
change, it also considers wider needs such as nature recovery alongside defending against flooding and ensuring 
sufficient waste disposal to support the creation of sustainable communities. Needs to 2050 will be covered in the 
forthcoming OxIS Stage 2 Report. 

E1
: N

et
 Z

er
o

 C
ar

b
o

n
 

Em
is

si
o

n
s 

There is a strategic need to fulfil national legal obligations and the County-wide Climate Action Framework to achieve 
net zero carbon emissions in Oxfordshire by 2050, and the more recent Future Oxfordshire Partnership (formerly 
Oxfordshire Growth Board) target identified within Oxfordshire’s Strategic Vision for net zero by 2040. There is also a 
need to achieve the carbon neutral target years, ranging from 2030 to 2050, identified in the five Oxfordshire District 
Council climate action strategies. The carbon emission inventory indicates a need to reduce emissions particularly 
reducing road transport tailpipe emissions (46% of total emission) and Oxfordshire’s energy network emissions to 2040.  

This includes urgently reducing carbon emissions within Cherwell and South Oxfordshire to enable their ambitions to 
achieve net zero carbon emissions by 2030. Primarily due to the presence of the M40, emissions originating in these 
Districts comprise the largest proportion (30% and 20% respectively) of total County emissions.  

E2
: R

es
ili

en
ce

 t
o

 C
lim

at
e 

C
h

an
ge

 

The Met Office forecasts that the impacts of climate change will result in warmer temperatures and drier periods in 
summer and an increase in the frequency of extreme weather events including heavy periods of rainfall in winter by 
2040. A series of national strategies, including the Climate Change Risk Assessment and the Environment Agency’s 
National Framework for Water Resources identify this as a strategic need to plan resilient infrastructure which can cope 
with these additional pressures. This includes ensuring infrastructure can reduce flooding risk to communities and 
managing the impact of warmer drier periods on the public water supply and people’s health.  

From various Strategic Flood Risk Assessments and Water Cycle Studies produced by Oxfordshire’s Local Authorities, the 
greatest need to improve resilience to flooding events is within Oxford, where around 16.5% of properties are situated 
within Flood Zone 2 or 3. Both the Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire also have a higher fluvial flooding risk 
than the rest of the county due to the presence of the River Thames.  

E3
: E

n
h

an
ce

 N
at

u
ra

l 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
&

 B
io

d
iv

er
si

ty
 The UK Government’s 25 Year Environment Plan (2018) identifies a need for a Nature Recovery Network rich in wildlife 

and biodiversity through the creation or restoration of 500,000 additional hectares of wildlife-rich habitat outside of 
protected sites by 2042. This sets the tone for the emerging Environment Bill (2020) which proposes to establish a 
mandatory requirement for biodiversity net gain and to embed connected Nature Recovery Networks.  

Oxfordshire’s Nature Recovery Network has recently been drafted by a partnership of local environmental 
stakeholders led by Wild Oxfordshire with local authority input, under the direction of the Biodiversity Advisory 
Group, although is yet to be agreed. The work establishes three recovery zones, with the overarching aim to 
create connected habitats and fulfil the wider aspiration for doubling the area of land well-managed for nature 
in the county by 2050. There is a further need to protect Oxfordshire’s established areas of rich landscape 
quality, including its three Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

E4
: E

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
W

as
te

 &
 

R
ec

yc
lin

g 

Oxfordshire’s local authorities have a primary legal obligation to ensure continued safe and efficient waste collection 
and disposal services in accordance with the waste hierarchy. As identified in the Oxfordshire Resources and Waste 
Strategy, this is supported by fulfilling the strategic need to reduce household waste generation, increase the 
proportion which is recycled and embed more of a circular economy approach in the county, including a focus on 
reusing, repairing, and upcycling material and goods. This has shared benefits such as reducing carbon emissions. 

In recent years, whilst waste sent to landfill/energy recovery has reduced despite population growth (attributed to the 
country-leading recycling rate), substantial future population growth by 2040 necessitates further infrastructure 
investment such as increased Waste Transfer capacity and a review of Household Waste Recycling Centre provision.  

E5
: R

ed
u

ce
 W

at
er

 &
 N

o
is

e 

P
o

llu
ti

o
n

 

Water:  The UK Government’s 25 Year Environment Plan (2018) identifies the key national strategic need for 
‘clean and plentiful’ water by 2042. This includes exceeding water quality objectives identified in the Thames 
River Basin Management Plan (DEFRA, 2015). This strategic need is also reflected in the Water Cycle Studies 
and Local Plans produced by Oxfordshire’s Local Authorities. As identified in the Thames Water Pollution 
Incident Reduction Plan (2020), a key need is to reduce sewage outfall incidents in Oxfordshire by 30% by 2025. 
There is also a need to improve water quality and to reduce water pollution incidents. 

Noise:  The strategic need, identified in the Noise Policy Statement for England (DEFRA, 2010) and NPPF (MHCLG, 2019) 
focuses on limiting the impact of additional noise generated through new development sites and improving people’s 
health and quality of life. The strategic need to reduce and manage noise levels through the local planning process in 
Oxfordshire is established in the Adopted Oxfordshire Minerals & Waste Core Strategy (OCC, 2017) and reflected in the 
Districts’ Local Plans. There is a need to reduce noise in Oxford City given it has been designated by DEFRA as a noise 
agglomeration area whist there is also a need to reduce environmental noise levels on key transport corridors. 

Page 44



Page | 15  
 

3.4.   Health Needs to 2040 

The Health theme is associated with reducing Oxfordshire’s health inequalities and supporting people to lead 
more active and healthier lifestyles. Needs to 2050 will be covered in the forthcoming OxIS Stage 2 Report. 

H
1:

 R
ed

u
ce

 H
ea

lt
h

 

In
eq

u
al

it
ie

s 

Alongside a legal obligation, the strategic need to reduce health inequalities within Oxfordshire is set out within OCC’s 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2018 – 2023. This identifies a future need to shift the focus towards a more 
preventative approach to physical and mental health by addressing issues such as inequalities in opportunity or 
outcomes alongside inequalities in relation to health service access. This strategic need is also reflected within the 
Oxfordshire’s Strategic Vision, Local Plans as well as the five District Council’s Corporate Plans. 

There is a need to address inequalities within specific urban areas, where healthy life expectancy can be less than 60 
years of age. Many of these same places also rank in the 10% of the most health-deprived areas in the UK according to 
the Index of Multiple Deprivation. Most of the health-deprived places with Oxfordshire lie adjacent to areas identified 
for future growth which provides a future opportunity for infrastructure investment to address. 

H
2:

 A
cc

es
s 

to
 S

p
ac

es
 

fo
r 

P
h

ys
ic

al
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

The need to improve physical activity rates is identified in a suite of national policies which identify physical inactivity as 
detrimental to physical and mental health. In an Oxfordshire context, the strategic need for improved access to spaces 
for physical activity is reflected within the Local Transport Plan (LTP4) (OCC, 2015), the Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
(Oxfordshire Health & Wellbeing Board, 2019) and the Rights of Way Management Plan (OCC, 2014). 

Evidence collected by Sport England’s Active Lives Survey (Sport England, 2020) identifies a need to increase physical 
activity levels within Oxfordshire’s urban areas, particularly in more deprived communities. This includes building physical 
activity into people’s everyday routines by investing in infrastructure such as dedicated sport and leisure facilities as well 
as high quality walking and cycling routes. 

H
3:

 Im
p

ro
ve

 H
ea

lt
h

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
cc

es
s 

The NHS Long Term Plan (2019) and the Health Infrastructure Plan (2019) identify the long-term strategic need for an 
integrated approach to the NHS service model across primary, community and social care to prioritise ‘out of hospital care’. 

The Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy (Oxfordshire Health & Wellbeing Board, 2019) identifies the strategic need to 
tackle inequalities of accessing healthcare services given the underlying challenge that some people in Oxfordshire face 
of being unable to get to or use services. The Oxfordshire Primary Care Estates Strategy (OCCG, 2021) identifies a need 
to ensure resilient and accessible primary care services which reduce current pressure and can meet future demand.  

Alongside the Care Act (2014), the Market Position Statement (OCC, 2019) identifies a need to meet future demand 
from Oxfordshire’s ageing population through additional supply in extra care housing and care homes. Housing-based 
population projections also indicate there may be an additional 42,000 people aged 75 and over living in Oxfordshire by 
2040. This triggers a need for around 1,700 additional extra care housing units and almost 3,000 care home beds. 

There is a need to enhance the infrastructure so that primary care working with community health and social care can 
offer more locally integrated services and to enhance capacity and infrastructure of primary care throughout 
Oxfordshire.  

H
4:

 C
le

an
er

 A
ir

 

The strategic need for cleaner air in Oxfordshire relates to a national legal obligation which identifies legal 
limits for air quality. These limits relate to Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) and Particulate Matter (PM), comprising of 
both PM10 and PM2.5, which are the most harmful pollutants to health. The Clean Air Strategy 2019 (DEFRA, 
2019) identifies the strategic need at a national level to fulfil these legal obligations rapidly, through achieving a 
73% reduction in oxides of nitrogen (NOx) emissions and a 46% reduction in PM2.5 by 2030.  

Despite recent improvements, there is a strategic need to revoke Oxfordshire’s 13 Air Quality Management 
Areas as soon as possible by ensuring that NO2 emissions, primarily caused by road transport, are reduced 
below legal limits. The most pressing need to invest in infrastructure, such as sustainable transport, to achieve 
cleaner air is within OxIS Towns and Surrounds with annual NO2 emissions above legal limits, such as Banbury. 

H
5:

 E
n

h
an

ce
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

W
el

lb
ei

n
g 

The 2011 Mental Health Strategy alongside Public Health England’s Prevention Concordat for Better Mental 
Health (PHE, 2020) identifies the strategic need to improve people’s mental health at a national level. This 
emphasises the need to take a prevention-focused approach, impacting on the wider determinants of mental 
health and well-being, and increasing the impact on reducing health inequalities.  

Oxfordshire’s Strategic Vision (Oxfordshire Growth Board, 2021) identifies the need for happier, healthier and 
inclusive communities with a focus on prevention and healthy place-making for all. This is underpinned by a range of 
strategies including the Oxfordshire Mental Health Prevention Framework 2020 – 2023  (Mental Health Prevention 
Concordat Partnership Group, 2020) which identifies a need to address wider social determinants of mental health 
and the differences in opportunities for people. The evidence indicates that there is a need to reduce levels of 
depression across Oxfordshire, with data identifying that around 12% of people over 18 have been diagnosed with 
depression in 2019/2020, which is marginally higher than the national average. Prevalence rates are also higher for 
GP surgeries in some OxIS Towns & Surrounds alongside the rural communities of Kidlington and Berinsfield.  

Page 45



Page | 16  
 

3.5.   Place-Shaping Needs to 2040 

The Place-Shaping theme is associated with the creation of sustainable and resilient communities which provide 
a high-quality environment, reflecting the urban and rural dynamics of Oxfordshire. Needs to 2050 will be 
covered in the forthcoming OxIS Stage 2 Report. 

PS
1:

 L
o

ca
l &

 L
iv

ea
b

le
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

The need to create local and liveable communities is set out in both local and national planning policy to ensure 
communities are safe and healthy. The need for easy access to social, recreational and cultural facilities is also 
highlighted and encouraging reduced travel or a shift to travel by sustainable transport through providing key 
services and facilities within local reach of residents.  

In Oxfordshire, large rural parts of the county, particularly across Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire, 
are defined by Indices of Multiple Deprivation as being in the top 10% deprived Lower-layer Super Output 
Areas associated with barriers to housing and services. With new development coming forward, careful 
planning and place-shaping is required to adhere to policy by creating liveable, local communities with access 
to local amenities and sustainable transport. 

PS
2:

 S
af

e 
&

 S
ec

u
re

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

Although the perception of crime given the context nationally is diminished, crime has been rising in Oxfordshire and 
with population growth predicted, measures need to be put in place now to minimise the risk to people’s safety. 
Measures set out by Safer Oxfordshire Partnership, highlights the importance for infrastructure and the heathy 
place-shaping of communities to prevent crime. Theft and violence represent 80% of crimes in Oxfordshire and 
urban areas have proportionally higher levels of crime than the county’s rural areas. This is further supported by 
Indices of Multiple Deprivation data, showing that Oxfordshire is home to a number of top 10% deprived areas (e.g. 
parts of Oxford, Banbury and Bicester) in England and Wales associated with crime, identifying a stronger need.  

Analysis of road safety, identifies a need to address the number of road collision casualties county-wide in 
Oxfordshire, particularly around urban areas with evidence suggesting walking and cycling issues are present. 

PS
3:

 R
es

ili
en

t 
 

H
er

it
ag

e 
&

 C
u

lt
u

re
 

Heritage:  As identified in the Historic England Corporate Plan (Historic England, 2020), Oxfordshire’s Strategic Vision 
(Oxfordshire Growth Board, 2020), NPPF (MHCLG, 2019) and the Oxfordshire Districts’ Local Plans, there is a strategic need 
to protect and conserve the county’s rich and varied heritage assets both from future development as well as the threats of 
climate change. Evidence from the Heritage at Risk Register (Historic England, 2020) indicates that there are 30 heritage 
sites in Oxfordshire at risk. 
Culture:  The Arts Council Ten 2020 – 2030 Strategy (Arts Council England, 2020) identifies the strategic need 
from a national perspective to improve community access to high-quality cultural experiences. This is 
complemented locally by Oxfordshire’s Strategic Vision (Oxfordshire Growth Board, 2020) and Arts & Culture 
Strategic Framework (OxLEP, 2019) which identify a strategic need for enhanced and more inclusive arts and cultural 
spaces across Oxfordshire.  
The emerging Strategic Framework for OCC Libraries & Heritage Services (OCC, 2021) emphasises the need for such 
services to address increased demand from population growth, while Active Lives Survey (Arts Council England, 2018) 
and the Taking Part Survey (DCMS, 2020) indicate a need to improve use of public library services in specific parts of 
Oxfordshire. Data at a national level also suggests there may be a need to enhance cultural participation rates amongst 
lower socio-economic groups, those with disabilities and amongst the Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic community. 

PS
4:

 S
o

ci
al

ly
 In

te
gr

at
ed

 

P
la

ce
s 

The need to maintain social interaction between people in communities helps fight loneliness and provides 
support networks, especially for people at vulnerable points. This is reflected in national Government policy which 
focuses on healthy place-shaping and connecting people through transport and digital infrastructure. With new 
developments planned, it is even more important that considerations are made to improve social cohesion 
through preventative measures in the county. 

Loneliness is a well-established health risk and is associated with poor health and well-being. In Oxfordshire, 
pockets throughout the county (e.g. parts of Oxford City and around Banbury) demonstrate high risks of 
loneliness, which has increased as a result of the COVID-19. There is an immediate need to address this, 
particularly in Vale of White Horse, Cherwell and Oxford City, where rates are highest. There is a need for 
investment in green space as this is proven to encourage social interaction and bring people together. 

PS
5:

 In
cl

u
si

ve
 &

 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 A

ct
iv

e 
Tr

av
el

 National policy ambitions demonstrate the strong need to reduce private vehicle journeys and replace these 
with walking and cycling journeys, to support several initiatives including reducing carbon emissions, tackling 
congestion and enhancing people’s mental health and wellbeing. This is followed up by local policy at both a 
County and District level as, although active modal share in Oxfordshire, notably in Oxford, is good compared 
to the national picture, national and local targets are ambitious and require a step-change in behaviour.  

There is good potential for further cycling take-up in Oxford, South Cherwell, Abingdon, Carterton, Bicester and 
Wallingford with delivery of the right cycling infrastructure whilst investment in the Rights of Way Network can 
support greater active travel in more rural areas. The needs link to previous sections as active travel relies on local 
& liveable and safe & secure communities to encourage and support walking and cycling journeys.  

Page 46



Page | 17  
 

3.6.   Productivity Needs to 2040 

The Productivity theme is associated with supporting increased economic productivity within Oxfordshire, considering 
the needs of both citizens and business. Needs to 2050 will be covered in the forthcoming OxIS Stage 2 Report. 

P
1:

 W
o

rl
d

 C
la

ss
 In

cl
u

si
ve

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 &

 

Sk
ill

s 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 

There is a statutory future need for Local Authorities, like OCC, to ensure every school-age child and young 
person can access suitable education, as well as sufficient early-years education and childcare provision for all 
children of four years and under. Oxfordshire’s Pupil Place Plan 2019 – 2023 (OCC, 2019), which assesses the 
suitability of provision to meet future demand, identifies a strategic need for OCC to continue to offer a high 
percentage of parents a place at their first choice school. Future population projections indicate there is likely 
to be around an additional 12,000 primary school places and 10,500 secondary school places required by 2040.  

The Special Educational Needs & Disabilities Sufficiency of Places Strategy (OCC, 2018), identifies a strategic need to 
address the deficit of OCC school places and to reduce the reliance on ‘out of county’ provision and reliance on 
Independent providers. Future population projections indicate there may be a need for additional capacity for around 
450 children with Special Educational Needs & Disabilities by 2040.  

Build Back Better (HM Treasury, 2021) alongside the White Paper ‘Skills for Jobs’ identifies a strategic need to upskill 
people to ensure employers’ needs are met in the future and to guarantee a strong COVID-19 recovery. Oxfordshire’s 
strategy, including the emerging OxLEP Local Skills Report and Plan (2021) as well as Oxfordshire’s Economic Recovery 
Plan (OxLEP, 2021), identifies a productivity need to ensure provision of post-16 training and education.  

P
2:

 R
ed

u
ce

 O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e’
s 

So
ci

o
-

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 In
eq

u
al

it
ie

s 

Although most metrics indicate Oxfordshire has a high-performing economy, it is not delivering for everybody – 
as evidenced by a geographic disparity in Indices of Multiple Deprivation. The pockets of high deprivation occur 
in every district, but the most pressing need is in parts of south Oxford City, Banbury, and Bicester.  

There is need for highly targeted interventions to maximise impact for these communities. Forecasts of future 
inequality are difficult to make because the COVID-19 pandemic has disrupted pre-existing economic trends. 
Prior to the pandemic, housing affordability problems within the county were a key indicator of socio-economic 
inequality. However, in the short-term, the pandemic has only exacerbated this and also driven up youth 
unemployment – reducing this is another key need. 

The aim to reduce socio-economic inequality is included in policies at both the County and District level within 
Oxfordshire, and is considered across multiple themes (e.g. climate action and industrial strategy). This 
interconnectedness to other aims, and across branches of government, gives rise to the need for a coordinated 
approach in order to maximise effectiveness. It should be noted that whilst the national Levelling Up Fund (HM 
Treasury, 2021) is currently available for regenerative infrastructure projects, all District Councils within 
Oxfordshire have been given the lowest priority to receive funds. 

P
3:

 A
tt

ra
ct

 &
 R

et
ai

n
 

Ta
le

n
t 

in
 

O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e 

The Oxfordshire Local Industrial Strategy (OxLEP, 2019) has identified the scarcity of affordable housing as a key barrier 
to attracting and retaining talent. This is to the detriment of productivity targets and contributes to socio-economic 
inequalities within the county. As such, there is a pressing need to provide a greater quantity of affordable housing.  

Based on a review of evidence, the price of houses relative to earnings is greater in all districts of Oxfordshire than 
the English average – indicating poor housing affordability. The need is greatest in Oxford City which is the least 
affordable UK city for housing. This need in part, can be delivered by the 100,000 new homes planned within the 
Oxfordshire Housing & Growth Deal by 2031 (Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal, 2017).  

P
4:

 B
u

ild
 A

 G
lo

b
al

 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

In
n

o
va

ti
o

n
 

Ec
o

sy
st

em
 

Oxfordshire’s Local Industrial Strategy (OxLEP, 2019) plans to build upon the world-leading science and 
technology clusters within the county and position it as one of the top three global innovation ecosystems by 
2040. There is a strong business case for the 2040 target, with forecasts estimating the return as an additional 
£23bn in Gross Value Added to the economy and 108,000 new jobs.  

Critical to success will be ensuring that Oxfordshire provides citizens with a sustainable and affordable high quality of life. 
This will support the attraction and retention of the necessary world-class talent, and the skills development of existing 
citizens in order to fulfil the business needs. There is also a need to nurture key industries by providing the infrastructure 
they need to thrive, including transportation, business accommodation, and support services.  

P
5:

 D
ri

ve
 E

co
n

o
m

ic
 

G
ro

w
th

 &
 P

ro
d

u
ct

iv
e 

Em
p

lo
ym

en
t 

Economic growth and greater productive employment can raise the living standards of Oxfordshire’s citizens, and is 
intertwined with many of the other themes within OxIS. For greatest overall success, there is a need for economic growth 
to support and be supported by other strategic goals. For example, the need to reduce socio-economic inequality or move 
towards a ‘green economy’. Fortunately, this is recognised in national policy and Oxfordshire’s Local Industrial Strategy 
(OxLEP, 2019) - which plans develop the county’s economy as a knowledge-based innovation ecosystem by 2040.  

Some forecasts predict that Oxfordshire’s economy might increase £20bn by 2040, despite the COVID-19 
pandemic (Cambridge Econometrics, 2021). However, to realise the potential, it will be critical for County and 
District Council investments to target promoting greater productive employment.  

Page 47



Page | 18  
 

3.7.   Connectivity Needs to 2040 

The Connectivity theme is associated with ensuring that communities, particularly locations identified for growth, 
across Oxfordshire are connected both digitally and from a transport perspective as well as with wider utilities 
including clean and secure energy and water supply. Needs to 2050 will be covered in the OxIS Stage 2 Report. 

C
1:

 A
 D

ig
it

al
ly

 C
o

n
n

ec
te

d
 

O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e 

There is national focus on full-fibre connectivity and 5G mobile data and policy sets out the need to provide full coverage of 
full-fibre by 2033 to support economic growth, social connectivity and rural communities, alongside providing 4G to 
95% of the country. These ambitions are mirrored in the Oxfordshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy (OCC, 2020), aligning 
with the need to facilitate productive economic growth and employment as well as supporting the delivery of more 
efficient cultural and health and social care and services and playing its part in replacing road journeys. 

Oxfordshire currently has 16.5% of the county covered by full-fibre broadband, behind national averages although 
marginally higher than comparable neighbouring counties (thinkbroadband, 2021). Alongside addressing these 
coverage gaps, particularly in urban areas like Oxford City, there is a further need to increase the roll-out of full fibre to 
keep pace with future growth to 2033 of approximately 74,000 homes. There is a particular need to address coverage 
gaps in Bicester, Wantage & Grove, Grenoble Road, Northfield, Abingdon, Berinsfield and Upper Heyford. 

C
2:

 C
le

an
 E

n
er

gy
 S

u
p

p
ly

 G
ri

d
 

C
ap

ac
it

y 
&

 C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

The Government’s Ten Point Plan for a Green Industrial Revolution sets the ambition for the UK’s net zero 
carbon target for 2050 by minimising energy demand and moving away from fossil fuels. The Oxfordshire 
Energy Strategy (OxLEP, 2019) further establishes a need for a clean, modern and smart energy system as well 
as a need for flexibility in infrastructure planning to better align demand and local renewable supply.  

Energy consumption analysis by District shows relatively consistent levels as well as consistent fuel type proportions 
over the past ten years, with bioenergy and wastes only partially replacing other traditional fuel sources. 
Oxfordshire’s reliance on petroleum products and gas must reduce at a fast rate to meet national 2030 targets and 
clean energy goals. This need is exacerbated by the population growth expected in the county. Electricity 
consumption has, however, shown a reduction between 2008 and 2019 in all Districts showing efficiency gains. 
However, alongside population growth, other factors will result in a need to address electricity consumption (e.g. 
transition to electric vehicles and decarbonisation of heat). Targets for electric vehicle use raise specific concerns 
over the requirements for large scale investment in the electrical grid and network infrastructure. 

C
3:

 S
ec

u
re

 W
at

er
 S

u
p

p
ly

 &
 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 

Along with the unpredictability of water supply due to climate change, Oxfordshire’s growing population and 
environment concerns around the pressure being placed on rivers and groundwater, there is an ever-increasing 
need to predict and manage the demand and supply of potable water to support growth in the region. This is 
why Thames Water has forecast a supply demand deficit in the Swindon & Oxfordshire Water Resource Zone 
by 2023. This need to reduce the deficit can be addressed through targeted infrastructure to support water 
efficiency, smart meters, reusing treated wastewater and carrying out water transfers. In terms of wastewater, 
there is a need for targeted infrastructure investment, such as in the proximity of Carterton, to address current 
sewage outflow events to improve local water quality and support biodiversity restoration (see E2 and E5). 
Future population growth will further impact the efficiency of wastewater infrastructure and areas of high 
growth (e.g. Banbury, Bicester and Oxford) require wastewater treatment plant sites to be upgraded, and the 
capacity for the receiving environment to receive treated water without deterioration of water quality. 

C
4:

 Im
p

ro
ve

 S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 C

o
n

n
ec

ti
vi

ty
 

A
cr

o
ss

 O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e 

The Government’s priorities for transport are underpinned by the need to achieve net zero carbon emissions 
by 2050, reflected in a myriad of emerging national and county strategies. They are directly relevant to 
Oxfordshire and these needs are met in county- and district-wide policy, identifying measures such as space 
reallocation, better, integrated, high-quality public transport and managing demand.  

Although the rise in electric vehicles will tackle transport carbon emissions, it will not tackle the county’s congestion or 
wider health & place-shaping needs. For most Oxfordshire residents, the car is the first choice; particularly in rural areas. 
With Oxfordshire’s predicted substantial growth in both housing and employment, transport connectivity plays a vital 
role. For these needs to be met, whilst contributing to decarbonisation efforts, sustainable transport has a significant 
role to play. To deliver the need of improved sustainable transport connectivity across Oxfordshire requires a 
significant enhancement in public transport service reliability and connectivity between OxIS Towns & Surrounds. 

C
5:

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 in
to

 &
 o

u
t 

o
f 

O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e 

England’s Economic Heartland’s Transport Strategy identifies the ambition for people and businesses to be 
connected through the region and with international gateways, to support local economic growth, harness the 
globally renowned centres of innovation and improve the quality of life of its residents. Together with LTP4 
(OCC, 2015), they identify the need to improve Oxfordshire’s public transport access with key destinations (e.g. 
London), transport interchanges (e.g. Heathrow) and key settlements (e.g. Birmingham and Reading). Currently 
many public transport journeys suffer from long travel times, delays from traffic congestion and multiple 
connections, further contributing to the use of private car for strategic journeys. There is a specific need to 
improve rail and road freight travel; demand is forecast to grow and Oxfordshire is key as it hosts a number of 
significant freight routes such as from the Port of Southampton to the Midlands. 

Page 48



Page | 19  
 

4. Strategic Infrastructure Schemes 
A robust four-stage identification, sifting, grouping and filtering process has been applied, to capture those 
schemes which are ‘strategic’ infrastructure. With no existing national or local definition of ‘strategic’ 
infrastructure, a broad definition has been applied to select not only schemes with a significant spatial impact 
but also smaller scale schemes which remain strategically critical to the creation of successful places.  

4.1. Identification of Strategic Infrastructure Schemes 

The objective identification of schemes has considered a wide breadth of sources reflecting the Future 
Oxfordshire Partnership’s (formerly Oxfordshire Growth Board) strategic ambitions: to achieve good growth as 
defined by the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision aligned to the five OxIS Themes. Therefore, schemes have been 
considered which are required to deliver District growth aspirations and fulfil Oxfordshire County’s needs to 
2040.  

A broad definition has been applied for OxIS which: 

• Recognises key stakeholder’s views and captures schemes with a significant geographical coverage, 
scale or capital cost  

• Captures smaller scale schemes which remain strategically critical to success of places 

• Accounts for the longer-term horizon of OxIS 

• Excludes non-capital schemes, as well as those fully funded, currently in delivery or advanced delivery 
stage 

• All identified schemes have been subject to a robust three-stage sifting, grouping and filtering process 
to assesses their strategic context. 

 

Key scheme sources include: 

• District Infrastructure Delivery Plans & 
Infrastructure Funding Statements 

• District Local Plans 

• Oxfordshire Local Transport Plan 4 (Area & 
Corridor Strategies) 

• Oxfordshire Bus Service Improvement Plan 

• Oxford Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure 
Plan 

• Oxfordshire Rail Corridor Study 

• Thames Water Resource Management Plan 

• Oxfordshire Investment Plan  

• Oxfordshire Clinical Comissioning Group 
(OCCG) Primary Care Estates Strategy 

Context of Scheme Identification & Sources 

It should be noted that this process considers infrastructure schemes that are already proposed in 
established sources by key stakeholders across the county, rather than the devisal of new proposals. As a 
result, some of the schemes included within this Stage 1 Report predate significant policy shifts that have 
since occurred across the county (e.g. in relation to net zero carbon targets & Oxfordshire’s Strategic Vision).   

Page 49



Page | 20  
 

4.2.   OxIS Strategic Infrastructure Schemes 

The outcome of the sifting and filtering process resulted in the identification of 271 OxIS strategic infrastructure 
schemes qualifying to appraisal. Over half these schemes fall into the transport infrastructure type. Schemes 
across the remaining twelve categories are generally evenly distributed; except for Digital (IF5) where no 
schemes have been identified; due to the commercial nature in which digital infrastructure is delivered. 

 
 

Around 30% of OxIS Stage 1 schemes have a regional spatial impact; varying from cross-county, county-wide, 
cross-district and district-wide schemes. The remaining schemes have a local spatial impact, split across the OxIS 
Towns & Surrounds (51%) and the OxIS Rural Communities (21%). The location of schemes is shown overleaf. 

Emerging Schemes Excluded from the Stage 1 Appraisal 
The robust appraisal methodology is reliant on schemes having a minimum level of known detail to provide a 
level of consistency. There are several schemes where this level of detail is not yet known and remain subject 
to an ongoing optioneering process which means appraisal has not been possible: 

• OAIDP1: Third Thames Crossing north of 
Reading 

• C307: Reconfiguration of primary care services 
in Bicester Central around the Horton Hospital 

• SO42: Western Rail Link to Heathrow Airport  

• SO43: Great Western Railway Modernisation 

• SO85: Abingdon Southern Bypass 

• SO86: Southern Didcot Road 

• OC10: A40 – A40 Strategic Link Road 

• OC55: GP Surgery to serve Oxford West End and 
Osney Mead 

• WO90: East Chipping Norton Link Road 

• EEH1: Varsity Cycleway (Oxford-Cambridge) 

• SO87: A4130 Road Corridor Capacity 
Improvements 

• EA1: Abingdon Flood Alleviation Scheme 

• EA2: Thames Valley Flood Alleviation Scheme 

• TWB1: South East Strategic Reservoir 

• TWB2: Oxford Canal Raw Water Transfer 

• STW1: Severn to Thames Water Transfer 

• VoWH205: Wantage Western Relief Road 

• VoWH210: A417 (Reading Road) Improvement 
Scheme including Ardlington Junction upgrade 

Future progression of these schemes have the potential to address some of the strategic gaps subsequently 
identified in Section 6.6. There is an opportunity through future updates of OxIS to consider these schemes 
further as more information becomes available 

 

3%

54%

1%

16%

0%
4%

5%

3% 4%
5%

IF1: Energy
IF2: Transport
IF3: Flood Alleviation
IF4: Education
IF5: Digital Connectivity
IF6: Innovation & Enterprise
IF7: Green & Blue Infrastructure
IF8: Community & Cultural
IF9: Sport & Leisure
IF10: Primary Healthcare & Adult Social Care
IF11: Waste & Recycling
IF12: Potable Water & Wastewater
IF13: Emergency Services

41%

9%10%

35%

3% 3%

IF2A: Active Travel

IF2B: Bus, Coach and Rapid Transit

IF2C: Rail

IF2D: Road

IF2E: Traffic Management

IF2F: Electric or Hydrogen Vehicle
Charging Infrastructure

Page 50



Page | 21  
 

 

 

Scale Spatial Impact Number of Schemes Percentage of Schemes 

Regional 

Sub-National 1 0% 

Cross-County 1 0% 

County-Wide 19 7% 

Cross-District 21 8% 

District-Wide 31 12% 

Local 
OxIS Towns & Surround 132 51% 

OxIS Rural Community 54 21% 

TOTAL 259 100% 

Page 51



Page | 22  
 

5. Outcome of OxIS Stage 1: Infrastructure Schemes 

5.1. OxIS Scheme Gaps – Infrastructure Providers 

The OxIS Stage 1 scheme list has some outstanding gaps associated with infrastructure that is the responsibility 
of key external infrastructure providers and utility providers including commercial digital infrastructure 
companies as well as the Environment Agency, Thames Water and SSEN. Extensive engagement with these 
stakeholders has been undertaken through the Stage 1 process, however, limited information has been 
provided on schemes that remain reliant on funding; some of which is a result of commercial sensitivities. This 
means that there is presently a lack of some of these related schemes considered within OxIS Stage 1  

5.2. OxIS Scheme Gaps – Unmet Needs 

A key finding of this work is that the identified OxIS schemes do not fully address Oxfordshire’s needs to 2040 
(see Chapter 5 of the OxIS Stage 1 Technical Report). These gaps are amplified by the challenge in engagement 
with infrastructure providers as well as policy and societal changes since District IDPs were prepared. Additional 
infrastructure planning will be needed to help deliver the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision and good growth. 

The below outlines unmet needs for each theme alongside recommended schemes that should be brought 
forward by key stakeholders to ensure these are met (see Section 6.5 of the OxIS Stage 1 Technical Report for 
further detail). Scheme gaps to address needs to 2050 will be covered in the forthcoming OxIS Stage 2 Report. 

5.2.1. Environment Related Scheme Gaps 

Many of Oxfordshire’s plans and wider policy and strategy documents pre-date the declaration of a climate emergency 
in 2019 and the subsequent county-wide and district Climate Action Frameworks produced in 2020 and 2021. This 
recent shift in priorities means there is a substantial absence of schemes currently identified which specifically aim to 
reduce carbon emissions across the county, further highlighting the need for this updated and needs-based OxIS.  

The National Infrastructure Commission Annual Report (2020) identifies a critical need for future infrastructure schemes 
to reduce carbon emissions both from energy and transport sources (approximately 82% of Oxfordshire’s carbon 
emissions).  

 
Recommended Additional Future Schemes to Address Environment Needs to 2040 

• Home Energy Efficiency Retrofitting Schemes: Domestic energy is responsible for 26% of 
Oxfordshire’s carbon emissions. Aside from local authority funding through the Better Homes, Better 
Health support service and some ongoing schemes to retrofit Oxford City council housing stock, there 
are no other identified similar domestic retrofitting schemes. Schemes should differentiate between 
those who are fuel poor and need grant support and those need market / structural incentive. 

• Zero Carbon Heat Network Schemes: Gas networks currently heat over 240,000 of Oxfordshire’s buildings 
whilst approximately 20% of buildings in Oxfordshire are off grid. It is critical to rapidly switch to zero 
carbon sources by retrofitting buildings, including the installation of heat pumps, or exploring 
alternative fuels. New gas connections should be phased out in accordance with the UK 
Government’s upcoming strategy. 

• Electric Vehicle Charging Schemes: Emissions from road transport are responsible for 46% of Oxfordshire’s 
total emission. The upcoming Transport Decarbonisation Plan and Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle 
Charging Infrastructure Strategy indicate the scale of charging infrastructure required, however, 
intervention is likely to be needed to ensure universal coverage across the county, particularly in rural 
areas.  

• Zero Emission Zones: There is an opportunity to utilise Oxford’s emerging zero emission zone as a 
platform for wider scheme implementation across Oxfordshire’s wider towns to promote modal shift 
and accelerate the transition to the use of electric vehicles.  

• Freight Decarbonisation Hubs: There is a need to identify schemes which support the rapid 
recharging of electric or hydrogen freight vehicles to ensure zero carbon goods deliveries. 

Page 52



Page | 23  
 

• Zero Carbon Public Transport Schemes: There is a need for future infrastructure schemes to enable 
zero carbon emissions from public transport (e.g. through bus recharging facilities, use of solar power  
and rail electrification schemes). It is proposed that Oxford will be one of the first zero-emission bus 
areas in the UK, and once in place should be able to offer opportunities and lessons learnt for other 
towns in the country. 

• Strategic Flood Alleviation Schemes: Strategic schemes (beyond the Oxford Flood Alleviation Scheme) 
which combat the impact of climate change to protect existing and future planned homes from 
flooding. 

• Habitat & Biodiversity Restoration Schemes: There are limited identified strategic schemes to fulfil 
Oxfordshire’s need to achieve biodiversity net gain across the county. There is an opportunity 
through the emerging Oxfordshire Nature Recovery Strategy to identify schemes in the Nature 
Recovery Zone to enhance habitat restoration and to integrate this with wider infrastructure types 
such as flood alleviation and transport. 

• Renewable Energy Schemes: The electrical and gas networks account for 36% of all County carbon 
emissions. Analysis of the potential for renewable energy sources, is needed to set out a strategy to 
support zero carbon production and consumption as well as understanding the need for carbon offsetting and 
managing residual gaps.  

• Waste Disposal Infrastructure: There is a need for further waste disposal schemes to be identified 
such as Household Waste and Recycling Centres to fulfil future demands as a result of population 
growth. 

5.2.2. Health Related Scheme Gaps 

The identified schemes do not fully address Oxfordshire’s needs for a more preventative approach to enhancing 
people’s physical and mental health. In particular, the COVID-19 crisis has raised the profile of the role that 
access to green space and space for physical activity plays in addressing health inequalities and enhancing 
people’s mental health and wellbeing.  

 
Recommended Additional Future Schemes to Address Health Needs to 2040 

• Outdoor Green Space Schemes: In some districts, there is a lack of identified strategic outdoor green 
space schemes within some Districts, such as parks, to address Oxfordshire’s future need to improve 
people’s physical activity levels, mental health and social integration. Preventative measures like this, 
which are now embedded in health policy and strategies, allow the opportunity to encourage healthy 
lifestyles and reduce health inequalities across Oxfordshire.  

• Indoor and Outdoor Sport Schemes: Some District Councils do not identify specific strategic indoor 
and outdoor sport and leisure schemes, such as swimming pools, sports halls and playing pitches, to 
address the future need to improve people’s physical activity levels, and mental health. There is an 
opportunity for District Councils to identify strategic schemes as part of upcoming reviews 

• GP & Health Centres: The funding limitations of the OCCG the  mean there is a lack of tangible GP 
and health centre schemes to address Oxfordshire’s future need to ensure sufficient primary care 
access in locations, particularly to serve allocations that have only recently been designated in Local 
Plans (e.g. South Oxfordshire Local Plan). This includes sites such as south of Grenoble Road, 
Northfield, land north of Bayswater Brook, Wallingford and Kingston Bagpuize alongside growth in 
Oxford. There is an opportunity for greater partnership working and additional capital contributions 
to ensure that schemes are developed in line with trajectories of future site delivery.  

• Social Care Schemes: There is an absence of adult social care schemes currently identified to address 
Oxfordshire’s future needs to accommodate for the ageing population.  

See also Zero Emission Zone Scheme Gap in Environment 

Page 53



Page | 24  
 

5.2.3. Place-Shaping Related Scheme Gaps 

Whilst there are several identified schemes, such as active travel improvements, which address many of the 
place-shaping needs, there is lack of schemes intended to address Oxfordshire’s needs to improve social 
cohesion and perception of crime occurring.   

 
Recommended Additional Future Schemes to Address Place-Shaping Needs to 2040 

• Community Safety Schemes: There is a lack of schemes, such as public realm or area-wide lighting 
improvements, which are specifically intended to address Oxfordshire’s need to improve community safety. 

• Strategic Cycling Schemes: Whilst there are several schemes associated with the emerging Local 
Cycling & Walking Implementation Plans to enhance active connectivity within the confines of some 
of Oxfordshire’s towns and villages, there is a lack of identified schemes to strategically connect these 
communities together, particularly rural villages. Through partnership working between the 
Oxfordshire Local Authorities, there is an opportunity to develop an Oxfordshire-wide cycling 
network to ensure a more integrated approach. 

• Cycle Infrastructure in OxIS Rural Communities: There are some established and future Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure Plans in towns across the county, however, these should be completed 
for all OxIS Towns and Surrounds and OxIS Rural Communities, particularly in South Oxfordshire, to 
ensure suitable cycle infrastructure supporting growth is provided. 

• Library & Arts Centre Schemes: In anticipation of the upcoming OCC Cultural Strategy, there is currently a 
lack of identified cultural schemes, such as libraries and arts centres, to address Oxfordshire’s future needs. 

• Rural Community Hubs and Places to Meet: The COVID-19 crisis has increased Oxfordshire’s need to 
enhance social integration to reduce rising rates of loneliness. There is an opportunity to develop schemes, 
such as community hubs or public squares, which are specifically intended to improve social cohesion as well 
as provide alternative ways of providing key local services. 

5.2.4. Productivity Related Scheme Gaps 

Gaps to address the productivity needs are primarily associated with education schemes, concerning Special 
Educational Needs alongside adult education schemes. There is also an absence of schemes, such as community 
hubs or transport schemes, which are specifically intended to address Oxfordshire’s socio-economic inequalities. 

 
Recommended Additional Future Schemes to Address Productivity Needs to 2040 

• Special Educational Needs Schemes: There is a need for the development of schemes to alleviate the 
shortage of special school places by increasing capacity across the county. 

• Adult Education Schemes: The economic impacts of COVID-19 combined with the need to build a 
global innovation ecosystem, means there is a requirement for additional adult education schemes 
across Oxfordshire to upskill and retrain adults to align with the future workforce requirements. 

• Schemes Specifically Targeting Socio-Economic Inequalities: There is a need for intervention schemes which 
address the need to reduce socio-economic inequalities (e.g. Blackbird Leys in Oxford, Ruscote in Banbury).  

• Affordable Housing Schemes: The delivery of approximately 70,000 new homes during the Core Local Plan 
Period will address the historic housing shortfall in Oxfordshire, however, it is essential that a considerable 
proportion of these homes are truly affordable to fulfil the need to attract and retain talent in the county. 

• Rural Business Hubs: Supporting greater self-containment and liveability of rural communities through 
provision of hubs with the ability to support small business growth.  

Page 54



Page | 25  
 

5.2.5. Connectivity Scheme Gaps 

There are significant shortcomings in the existing digital infrastructure, particularly in urban areas. This has been 
amplified by the recent spike in home working and shopping, as well as significant global uptake in digital 
technology. Other needs are highlighted by the recent National Bus Strategy, which requires the development 
of a Bus Service Improvement Plan to set out the county’s plan for improving bus services for passengers.  

 
Recommended Additional Future Schemes to Address Connectivity Needs to 2040 

• Non-Commercial Full Fibre Broadband Schemes: Oxfordshire has 16.5% of the county covered by full-
fibre broadband which is behind the national average, although marginally higher than comparable 
neighbouring counties. There is a future need for subsidised localised schemes through established 
national schemes such as Project Gigabit, Voucher Schemes alongside funding from OCC to bridge 
this connectivity gap, where roll-out is commercially unviable.   

• Digital Upgrade of Public Assets: The onset of 5G and the Internet of Things means there is an 
opportunity for further schemes to be identified (e.g. digitalisation of street furniture) 

• Electricity Supply Grid Capacity Schemes: There is currently an absence of tangible strategic schemes 
identified by Oxfordshire’s Distribution Network Operators (DNOs) to address the combined 
challenge of additional grid demand placed by future housing growth in the county alongside 
increasing electric vehicle charging infrastructure.  

• Wastewater Schemes: There is a lack of strategic schemes currently identified to ensure that the 
need for sufficient wastewater processing and receipt capacity across Oxfordshire continues to be 
met in the context of future population growth. Partnership working with Thames Water is required to 
identify any forthcoming schemes. Wastewater schemes that are fully funded by Thames Water are excluded 
from scheme appraisal.  

• Rapid Transit Schemes: Similar to bus priority, rapid transit schemes in the form of quality bus, tram 
or rail services are internationally recognised to provide multiple benefits to address key OxIS needs. 

Page 55



Page | 26  
 

6. Outcome of OxIS Stage 1: Multi-Criteria Scheme Appraisal 
This OxIS Stage 1 includes an objective and logical needs- and growth-based multi-criteria appraisal underpinned 
by the Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s (formerly Oxfordshire Growth Board) growth priorities.  

A growth appraisal was added to recognise the importance of schemes (e.g. utilities infrastructure) which may not 
explicitly score well within the needs-based appraisal, yet remain critical to enabling, unlocking and unblocking 
delivery of development sites. It is therefore intended to complement the needs based appraisal score.  

 

Factors impacting the scheme’s relative deliverability, incorporating a consideration of the delivery timescales, 
technical complexity and level of required partnership working, has been considered post-appraisal as part of a 
Red Amber Green (RAG) assessment. This is intended to provide context only to the scheme’s future 
prioritisation rather than form an intrinsic part of the overall score assigned.  

This is for the following reasons:  

• Delivery & Funding Channel Uncertainty: It is likely that there will be significant future changes in 
national policy (e.g. Planning White Paper), delivery mechanisms (e.g. Spatial Framework for the 
Oxford-Cambridge Arc) and funding opportunities which is likely to materially change the relative 
deliverability of schemes in the short term 

• Fluidity of Technology: There may be schemes which are critical to fulfilling Oxfordshire’s future needs 
yet may be technically challenging to deliver at the present time (e.g. hydrogen). These barriers are 
likely to erode over time to 2040, as new technology is developed 

• Established Partnerships: The strong partnership working established through the Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership (formerly Oxfordshire Growth Board) means that collaborative working with key 
stakeholders is not necessarily a barrier to delivery of a scheme 

A consideration of scheme deliverability post appraisal also considers the required timescales for scheme 
delivery based upon the information established in the original source documents and verified in discussions 
with Oxfordshire’s District Councils and key strategic infrastructure providers. 

All schemes included in OxIS will be subject to the appropriate planning process. Inclusion in OxIS does not 
represent endorsement of schemes. 

 

Page 56



Page | 27  
 

6.1.   Scheme Appraisal: Regional Schemes 

The following sections incorporate the outcomes of the multi-criteria and deliverability appraisal for regional scale 
schemes. The detailed components of the scoring assigned across each of the 25 needs is available in Appendix B. 

6.1.1. Sub-National Schemes 

Type OxIS Sub-National Scheme  

Needs Based Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

H
ea

lt
h

 

P
la

ce
 S

h
ap

in
g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

IF2 ORC6: Grade Separation of Didcot East Rail Junction 4 4 3 8 6 24 12 36 

6.1.2. Cross-County Schemes 

Type Scheme  

Needs Based Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

H
ea

lt
h

 

P
la

ce
 S

h
ap

in
g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

IF2 SO30: Thame to Haddenham cycle route 3 7 7 5 2 24 9 33 

IF7 
VoWH106: Restoration of the Wilts and Berks Canal from Melksham to Swindon, 
Wantage/Grove and Abingdon 

8 6 4 4 1 23 9 32 

6.1.3. Oxfordshire County-Wide Schemes 

Type Scheme  

Needs Based 
Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

H
ea

lt
h

 

P
la

ce
 S

h
ap

in
g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

IF2 BSIP1: County-wide traffic signals upgrade to enable bus priority 4 4 3 5 5 21 9 30 

IF2 IHUB9:  MaaSCAV: Smart Traffic lights  0 3 1 1 4 9 9 18 

IF2 IHUB10: DRIVEN Project: Updating of ATC to live blackcats.  0 1 1 1 2 5 9 14 

IF2 IHUB12: Endeavour Project: Parking bay sensors  0 1 0 2 2 5 9 14 

IF2 IHUB13: 5G Heart project: Fibre connectivity to roadside assets  2 2 3 4 3 14 9 23 

IF2 ORC1: Oxford Station Additional Through Platform & Line Upgrades 3 3 2 6 4 18 12 30 

IF2 
ORC2: Cowley Branch Line Improvements including two new stations at Oxford Science 
Park & Oxford Business Park 

3 5 4 9 5 26 12 38 

IF2 ORC7: Didcot Parkway station – additional platform 3 4 2 5 3 17 12 29 

IF2 ORC8: Didcot Goods Line upgrade & line extension to Milton Junction 3 4 2 6 3 18 12 30 

IF2 ORC9: Wolvercote Rail Junction Capacity Upgrades 2 3 2 5 4 16 12 28 

IF2 
ORC11: Hanborough Station additional platform including Cotswolds line capacity 
upgrades 

2 3 2 4 4 15 12 27 

IF2 ORC13: New Rail station at Grove 2 3 4 5 5 19 12 31 

IF2 ORC14: Grove – rail line loop extension and additional crossovers 2 3 4 5 5 19 12 31 

IF2 ORC15: Oxford North Rail Junction – additional line bypassing junction  3 4 3 4 4 18 12 30 

IF2 ORC16: Oxford Canal Rail Junction – crossover between Up and Down Bletchley Lines 2 2 3 4 4 15 12 27 

IF2 ORC17: New rail station at Begbroke 4 4 4 5 5 22 9 31 

IF2 ORC18: Didcot North Junction – third rail line north of junction 2 2 3 4 4 15 9 24 

IF6 OIP6: Space AI and Autonomy Lab, Harwell -1 3 2 9 0 13 4 17 

IF6 OIP8: Locate Oxford Global Innovation Campus -3 2 3 12 0 14 16 30 

IF6 OIP20: West End Global Innovation District -2 2 4 11 0 15 16 31 

 

  

Page 57



Page | 28  
 

6.1.4. Cross-District Schemes 

Type Scheme  

Needs Based Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

H
ea

lt
h

 

P
la

ce
 S

h
ap

in
g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

IF1 OC2: Yarnton Bulk Supply Point Reinforcement 2 2 2 8 5 19 16 35 

IF2 BSIP3: A34 Bus Priority Scheme Phase 1 - Hinksey Hill A34 Northbound Exit 5 6 3 6 5 25 9 34 

IF2 BSIP4: Bus priority improvements at Pear Tree Park & Ride junction 4 4 2 5 4 19 9 28 

IF2 C83: P&R at London Oxford Airport (approx. 1,100 Spaces) 2 5 2 4 2 15 12 27 

IF2 
C86: Junction improvements facilitating cross-corridor bus movements A44 to / from 
A4260 

4 5 4 7 3 23 16 39 

IF2 C87: Bus priority on the A44 between Langford Lane and Bladon Roundabout 4 5 4 8 3 24 16 40 

IF2 OC23: Abingdon Road Corridor Improvements 4 7 5 5 2 23 9 32 

IF2 OC25: Banbury Road & Oxford Road Corridor Improvements 3 8 7 5 2 25 9 34 

IF2 OCCP&R1: Park & Ride at Cumnor (1,200 Spaces) 3 5 3 4 2 17 9 26 

IF2 OLCWIP1: Canal Path Walking and Cycling Improvements 3 7 3 3 1 17 9 26 

IF2 OLCWIP3: Woodstock Road Active Travel Improvements 3 8 6 4 2 23 12 35 

IF2 OLCWIP13: Barracks Lane and Horspath Active Travel  2 4 4 5 1 16 9 25 

IF2 OLCWIP21: South Oxford Path Walking and Cycling Improvements 3 6 2 4 1 16 9 25 

IF2 OLCWIP25: Botley Road Walking and Cycling Improvements 3 6 4 4 2 19 9 28 

IF2 SO21: Science Vale Active Travel Network 5 10 8 7 2 32 12 44 

IF2 
SO23: Cycle Connection between Berinsfield/Culham to Oxford via the Roman Road 
bridleway 

3 8 8 7 2 28 12 40 

IF2 
SO40: Strategic Rapid Transit Park and Ride & Bus Priority Improvements on A4074 
corridor 

4 7 4 10 5 30 12 42 

IF2 
SO53: A40 Link Road through Bayswater Brook from the A40 at Marsh Lane interchange 
to east of Sandhills 

-2 1 3 5 2 9 12 21 

IF2 
SO69: New and upgraded cycling connections to Oxford, Berinsfield & Watlington via 
B480 and Burcot Lane / Dorchester Road / Stadhampton Road 

3 8 8 6 2 27 12 39 

IF2 SO74: B480 Gateway Scheme including cycle lanes and bus priority measures 3 7 5 10 3 28 12 40 

IF2 SO75: Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge over A40 Northern Bypass 1 6 5 4 1 17 12 29 

IF2 
VoWH22: A34 Bus Priority Phase 2 - bus lane between Lodge Hill-Hinksey Hill & Lodge 
Hill Park and Ride 

4 7 4 6 6 27 12 39 

IF2 WO55: Cycle Route from Eynsham - Oxford on B4044 3 8 9 6 2 29 9 37 

IF4 OCCE1: New SEN School serving southern Oxfordshire 0 7 4 9 0 20 16 36 

6.1.5. District-Wide Schemes 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

Type Scheme  

Needs Based Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

H
ea

lt
h 

Pl
ac

e 
Sh

ap
in

g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

C
h

er
w

el
l IF2 

C69: Improvements to A41 gateway corridor to Bicester including bus 
priority measures 

3 7 4 6 5 26 12 37 

IF2 C125: M40 Junction 10 capacity improvements  -3 -3 2 7 5 8 16 24 

IF2 C131: Access to Banbury North (New M40 Slips) -3 -2 1 4 5 5 9 14 

O
xf

o
rd

 C
it

y 

IF1 
OC1: Uprating of a section of the 132kV cable at Osney Lane Bulk Supply 
Point  

2 2 2 8 5 19 16 35 

IF2 OC3: Cycle Hire Stations 1 8 5 6 2 22 12 34 

IF2 OC6: Emergency Active Travel Schemes 2 8 7 6 2 25 12 37 

IF2 OC39: Zero Emission Zone (Phase II) 6 9 7 6 4 32 12 44 

IF2 OC40: Controlled Parking Zones (city-wide)  1 5 4 4 3 17 12 29 

IF2 OCCP&R2: Park & Ride Extension at Thornhill (465 Spaces) 2 4 2 4 1 13 9 22 

IF2 OLCWIP28: Oxford Ring Road Active Travel Improvements 2 5 2 5 1 15 9 24 

Page 58



Page | 29  
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
Type Scheme  

Needs Based Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

H
ea

lt
h 

Pl
ac

e 
Sh

ap
in

g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

IF2 OLCWIP31: Low Traffic Neighbourhoods 3 6 4 2 1 16 9 25 

IF2 OLCWIP32: Signing and parking Active Travel Improvements 1 3 1 2 1 8 9 17 

So
u

th
 O

xf
o

rd
sh

ir
e 

IF2 
SO20: Retrofitting to install Air Source Heat Pumps and Solar PV cells at 
South Oxfordshire Council Leisure Centres 

2 5 2 3 3 15 9 24 

IF2 SO24: Improvements to cycle routes to rail stations 1 4 2 3 1 11 9 20 

IF2 SO26: Benson to Wallingford cycle route minor improvements 2 5 5 3 1 16 9 25 

IF2 SO45: Culham Railway Station Enhancements 1 2 2 7 2 14 12 26 

IF2 SO48: A4074 Golden Balls Roundabout Improvement and B4015 Widening -1 0 1 6 3 9 16 25 

IF4 
SO119: Expansion of secondary school capacity by 2fe, potentially at Icknield 
Community College 

0 1 4 7 1 13 16 29 

V
al

e 
o

f 

W
h

it
e 

H
o

rs
e IF1 

VoWH19: Retrofitting to install Air Source Heat Pumps and Solar PV cells at 
Vale of White Horse Leisure Centres 

2 5 2 3 3 15 9 24 

IF2 VoWH59: A34 Lodge Hill Interchange Upgrade including South Facing Slips -1 2 2 5 5 13 16 29 

W
es

t 
O

xf
o

rd
sh

ir
e 

IF2 WO37: Bablock Hythe crossing of River Thames 0 5 6 2 1 14 9 23 

IF2 WO52: Witney to Carterton cycleway 3 7 7 5 2 24 12 36 

IF2 
WO57: Footpath / cycleway connecting Hanborough through Bladon to 
Woodstock 

2 5 5 3 1 16 9 25 

IF2 
WO84: Improve access by road to Carterton including upgrade of B4477 and 
West facing slips at A40/B4477 

-1 -1 3 4 4 9 12 21 

IF7 
WO144: Evenlode Green Ribbon & Catchment Schemes including habitat 
restoration 

6 6 3 3 0 18 9 27 

IF8 
WO161: Enhanced Library Provision at Witney, Carterton, Chipping Norton, 
Eynsham and Woodstock 

0 2 5 3 0 10 9 19 

IF11 WO180: New waste transfer station 4 1 0 6 0 11 16 27 

IF13 WO187: New one pump 2 bay fire station in Carterton 0 1 4 6 0 11 12 23 

IF13 
WO188: Various Thames Valley Police schemes including adaptation of 
Witney, Carterton, and Woodstock Police Stations 

0 0 2 2 0 4 9 13 

IF13 WO189: 2-3 ambulance standby points in the District including ambulances 0 1 2 3 0 6 12 18 

 

Page 59



Page | 30  
 

6.2. Scheme Appraisal: Local Schemes – OxIS Towns & Surrounds 

O
xI

S 
To

w
n

s 
&

 

Su
rr

o
u

n
d

 

Type Scheme 

Needs Based Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

 
H

ea
lt

h 

Pl
ac

e-
Sh

ap
in

g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

1.
 O

xf
o

rd
 C

it
y 

IF1 OC3: New substation required to support the Diamond Place regeneration 2 2 2 8 5 19 16 35 

IF2 BSIP2: Barton Waynflete Road Link (One Way Bus Only Road) 3 5 2 6 4 20 9 29 

IF2 BSIP6: Horspath Driftway bus priority scheme 3 6 2 5 4 20 9 29 

IF2 OC8: Broad Street Part Pedestrianisation and Public Realm Improvements 2 6 6 6 2 22 12 34 

IF2 
OC24: B4495 Corridor Improvements (Hollow Way/ Between Towns Road/ 
Donnington Bridge) 

2 5 3 3 1 14 12 26 

IF2 OC27: Iffley Road Corridor Improvements 3 7 6 6 2 24 9 33 

IF2 OC28: Cowley Road/ Garsington Road/ Watlington Road Corridor Improvements 3 10 6 7 2 28 9 37 

IF2 
OC31: Eastern Bypass corridor improvements / A3133 Kennington to Cowley Bus Priority 
Improvement Scheme  

3 6 5 7 5 26 12 38 

IF2 
OC32: Northern Bypass corridor improvements between Cutteslowe Roundabout to Mash 
Lane including bus lanes 

3 5 5 5 5 23 9 32 

IF2 OC36: Traffic Filters and Supporting Measures 2 6 4 2 1 15 12 27 

IF2 OCCTA1: A40 Crossing at Collinwood Road 1 4 5 4 1 15 12 27 

IF2 OLCWIP2: Walton Street Active Travel Improvements 2 5 3 3 1 14 9 23 

IF2 OLCWIP5: North Oxford Path 2 4 2 2 1 11 9 20 

IF2 OLCWIP6: Marston Active Travel Improvements 2 4 3 3 2 14 9 23 

IF2 OLCWIP8: Northway & Barton Active Travel Improvements 2 6 2 4 1 15 9 24 

IF2 OLCWIP9: Headington Path 2 5 2 4 1 14 9 23 

IF2 OLCWIP 10: Headington Active Travel Improvements 3 7 6 4 2 22 9 31 

IF2 OLCWIP12 Old Road Active Travel Improvements 3 7 6 4 2 22 9 31 

IF2 OLCWIP15 Blackbird Leys Active Travel Improvements 3 10 4 7 2 26 9 35 

IF2 OLCWIP16 Littlemore Active Travel Improvements 2 6 3 6 1 18 9 27 

IF2 OLCWIP18 Rose Hill Active Travel Improvements 2 5 2 6 1 16 9 25 

IF2 OLCWIP29: City Centre Active Travel Improvements 2 7 5 7 1 22 9 31 

IF2 OLCWIP30: Jackdaw River Bridge  2 4 2 4 1 13 9 22 

IF2 OXG1: Oxford Smaller Scale Active Travel Schemes 2 8 4 4 2 20 9 29 

IF4 
OC44: Extensions to primary schools equivalent to 0.5FE, to cater for Oxford North and 
cumulative sites 

0 3 3 6 1 13 12 25 

IF4 OC55: 0.5FE Expansion to Barton Park Primary School 0 3 4 6 1 14 16 30 

IF6 OIP1: The Energy Systems Accelerator 1 2 2 9 1 15 16 31 

IF6 OIP2: Clinical Biomanufacturing Facility  -1 3 2 6 0 10 4 14 

IF6 OIP3: BioEscalator 2 (Global Health & Life Sciences Cluster) -1 2 2 8 0 11 4 15 

IF6 OIP7: Oxford – Singapore AI and Human-Machine Collaboration Institute -1 2 2 7 0 10 4 14 

IF6 OIP21: Creative and Cultural Industries Hub -1 2 4 7 0 12 4 16 

IF8 OC49: Blackbird Leys Regeneration New Community Hub 0 6 6 6 0 18 9 27 

IF9 OC56: Refurbishment and extension of Ferry Leisure Centre -1 5 5 4 0 13 9 22 

IF10 OC51: New Health Centre in Diamond Place, Summertown 0 6 2 4 0 12 16 28 

2.
 A

b
in

gd
o

n
 

IF2 VoWH50: Marcham Bypass and Frilford Junction -3 3 4 3 3 10 16 26 

IF2 VOWH52: Shippon & Abingdon Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge 2 6 3 4 1 16 12 28 

IF2 VOWH53: Barrow Road / unamed road (to Gozzards Ford) junction upgrade 0 1 2 4 1 8 16 24 

IF2 VOWH54: Unnamed road (to Gozzards Ford)/A415 junction upgrade 0 1 1 4 1 7 16 23 

IF2 VOWH55: Long Tow/Wootton Road junction upgrade 0 1 1 4 1 7 16 23 

IF2 VOWH56: A415/A420 link road -1 2 2 4 2 9 16 25 

IF4 VoWH70: Two form-entry primary school at Dalton Barracks 0 4 6 7 1 18 12 30 

IF4 VoWH71: One form entry primary school, East of Kingston Bagpuize 0 4 6 6 1 17 12 29 

Page 60



Page | 31  
 

O
xI

S 
To

w
n

s 
&

 

Su
rr

o
u

n
d

 
Type Scheme 

Needs Based Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

 
H

ea
lt

h 

Pl
ac

e-
Sh

ap
in

g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

IF4 SO107: Two Two Form Entry primary schools at Culham (including early years) -1 4 6 8 1 18 16 34 

IF4 SO108: 900 place secondary school at Culham  -1 5 6 8 1 19 16 35 

IF7 VoWH83: Dalton Barracks Parkland 6 7 5 5 0 23 12 35 

IF10 VoWH186: New GP Surgery in Abingdon 0 6 4 5 0 15 12 27 

IF10 SO210: New GP surgery provision at Culham 0 5 4 5 0 14 16 30 

3.
 B

an
b

u
ry

 

IF1 C9: 300m of expansion and realignment in the gas infrastructure around Banbury -2 -1 2 4 -1 2 16 18 

IF2 C72: Rejuvenating or Reloating Banbury Bus Station to provide enhanced capacity 1 6 4 5 2 18 12 30 

IF2 C96: Re-designing Banbury Station forecourt to improve multi-modal interchange  2 6 5 5 3 21 9 30 

IF2 
C114: Improving capacity & bus priority of Cherwell Street/ A4620 Windsor Street 
corridor  

0 -1 3 5 3 10 16 26 

IF2 C117: East-west strategic movements: Hennef Way corridor A422 Improvements  -1 -1 3 5 3 9 16 25 

IF2 C118: East-west strategic movements: Warwick Road Corridor Improvements -1 -3 1 4 3 4 12 16 

IF2 C120: Review of Banbury Town Centre traffic circulation 0 -3 2 3 1 3 12 15 

IF2 C132: Banbury South East Link Road east of M40 J11 -2 -2 1 4 3 4 12 16 

IF2 C112: Car parking routeing and guidance system 1 3 2 2 1 9 12 21 

IF4 C151: 2FE primary school - South of Salt Way 0 4 4 8 1 17 16 33 

IF4 C152: Expansion of Longford Park Primary School from 1.5FE to 2FE 0 3 4 7 1 15 16 31 

IF4 C168: New secondary school provision in Banbury -1 5 4 7 1 16 16 32 

IF7 C182: Banbury Country Park Improvements 6 7 2 4 0 19 9 28 

IF9 C282: Relocation of Banbury United Football Club 0 2 3 7 1 13 12 25 

IF10 C305: Additional GP provision in North Banbury 0 5 3 6 0 14 12 26 

IF10 C306: Additional GP provision in South Banbury 0 7 3 6 0 16 16 32 

IF13 C339: Relocation of Banbury Fire Station -1 1 3 4 0 7 12 19 

4.
 B

ic
es

te
r 

IF1 C1: CHP and use of heat from Ardley Energy Recovery Facility to cover Bicester 1 2 2 7 3 15 9 24 

IF2 C16: Market Square walking and cycling improvements 1 6 5 4 1 17 12 29 

IF2 C17: Banbury Road walking and cycling improvements 1 6 6 5 1 19 12 31 

IF2 C18: Buckingham Road walking and cycling improvements 1 6 6 5 1 19 12 31 

IF2 C100: London Road level crossing - solution for closure 0 2 5 5 2 14 12 26 

IF2 C102: Bicester Eastern Corridor highway capacity improvements -2 -3 0 6 3 4 16 20 

IF2 
C103: Additional highway capacity on Charlbridge Lane including new bridge to 
Gavray Drive 

-3 -3 0 6 3 3 16 19 

IF2 C104: Bicester south east perimeter road -3 -2 2 6 4 7 16 23 

IF2 C109: Bicester A4905 Realignment Scheme -1 -3 0 5 3 4 16 20 

IF2 C126: Central corridor: Kings End and Queens Avenue through to Field Street 1 5 5 5 1 17 12 29 

IF2 CG1: Bicester Active Travel Package 2 5 5 5 1 18 12 30 

IF4 C144: Primary School 2 FE (NW Eco Town) 0 3 5 8 1 17 16 33 

IF4 C145: Primary School 2 FE (NW Eco Town) 0 3 5 8 1 17 16 33 

IF4 C146: Primary School 2FE (NW Eco Town) 0 3 5 8 1 17 16 33 

IF4 C147: Gagle Brook Primary School Phase 2 (1 FE) 0 3 5 8 1 17 16 33 

IF4 
C166: New secondary school provision in North West Bicester including shared use 
cultural facilities 

0 5 6 8 1 20 16 36 

IF7 
C178: Community Woodland (43ha) – Chesterton (Burnehyll Community 
Woodland) 

5 7 4 4 0 20 9 29 

IF7 
C218: Improving blue and green infrastructure in multiple green spaces in Bicester 
including Bure Park, Langford Brook Park 

5 7 2 3 0 17 9 26 

IF10 C304: New GP Surgery to serve South Bicester 0 6 4 5 0 15 16 31 

IF10 C347: New GP premises to serve North West Bicester  0 6 4 5 0 15 16 31 

Page 61



Page | 32  
 

O
xI

S 
To

w
n

s 
&

 

Su
rr

o
u

n
d

 
Type Scheme 

Needs Based Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

 
H

ea
lt

h 

Pl
ac

e-
Sh

ap
in

g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

IF13 C338: Relocation of Bicester Fire Station -1 1 3 4 0 7 12 19 

5.
 C

ar
te

rt
o

n
 

IF2 WOG2: Carterton Active Travel Improvement Scheme Package 1 4 3 3 1 12 8 20 

IF4 WO118: Expansion of Carterton Community College 0 3 4 6 1 14 8 22 

IF9 WO169: Provision of ATP plus potential additional changing facilities, Burford 0 5 4 3 0 12 8 20 

IF9 
WO172: Additional outdoor playing pitch provision and changing facilities, 
Carterton 

0 5 5 4 0 14 5 19 

IF9 
WO175: Enhanced community use, changing and reception areas at Carterton 
Community College Sports Hall and ATP 

0 5 4 3 0 12 5 17 

6.
 C

h
ip

p
in

g 

N
o

rt
o

n
 IF2 

WO85: Remove Primary Route Status from A44 and implement weight restrictions 
in town centre 

1 3 2 1 1 8 3 11 

IF2 WO108: 2FE Primary school (including nursery), East of Chipping Norton 0 4 6 7 1 18 10 28 

IF10 WO191: Expansion of Chipping Norton Health Centre 0 5 3 4 0 12 6 18 

7.
 D

id
co

t 
&

 W
al

lin
gf

o
rd

 

IF2 VoWH26: Access improvements to the A4185 at Harwell Campus -1 -1 1 5 2 6 12 18 

IF2 VOWH51: Milton Heights Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge 1 4 3 5 1 14 12 26 

IF2 
VoWH57: Steventon Signalised Junction and A4130 Widening (West of Milton 
Interchange) 

0 2 2 3 3 10 12 22 

IF2 VoWH58: Rowstock Roundabout Improvement 0 3 4 6 3 16 16 32 

IF2 SO27: Didcot Town Cycle Improvements 2 6 5 6 1 20 9 29 

IF2 SO28: Garden Line Cycle Improvements 3 6 2 5 1 17 9 26 

IF2 SO29: Premium cycle route between Didcot, Crowmarsh Gifford and Wallingford 4 9 6 7 2 28 9 37 

IF2 SO31: Didcot Parkway interchange cycling improvements 1 4 1 3 1 10 9 19 

IF2 SO76: Central Didcot Corridor improvement Scheme  3 7 8 7 2 27 12 39 

IF2 SO83: Didcot Northern Perimeter Road Phase 3 -2 0 3 6 3 10 16 26 

IF2 SO88: Town-wide Controlled Parking Zone in Didcot 1 4 3 3 1 12 9 21 

IF2 BSIP5: Benson Lane, Crowmarsh junction bus priority scheme 3 4 2 5 4 18 9 27 

IF4 SO120: One new 8 Form Entry secondary school in Didcot North East -1 5 5 8 1 18 16 34 

IF6 OIP4: Gateway to the UK Space Sector, Harwell -1 3 2 9 0 13 10 23 

IF6 OIP5: Disruptive Innovation in Space Centre, Harwell -1 3 2 8 0 12 4 16 

IF6 OIP22: Facility for Industrial Scale-Up Support, Harwell -1 3 2 8 0 12 4 16 

IF6 OIP31: Howbery Park Centre of Excellence in Climate Change 2 3 2 7 0 14 4 18 

IF7 SO140: Didcot North East Nature park and Green Infrastructure Corridor 5 7 5 4 0 21 12 33 

IF10 VoWH192: New GP surgery at Great Western Park in Didcot 0 7 4 5 0 16 16 32 

IF10 SO216: New or expanded GP premises to serve Wallingford 0 6 3 4 0 13 12 25 

IF10 SO217: Expansion of Woodlands Medical Centre 0 6 2 4 0 12 9 21 

IF10 S059: New GP Surgery at Valley Park 0 7 3 5 0 15 16 31 

8.
 W

an
ta

ge
 &

 

G
ro

ve
 

IF2 VoWH41: Grove Northern Link Road Missing Link -1 1 4 5 2 11 14 25 

IF4 VoWH72: New Primary School serving NW Grove Development 0 3 5 7 1 16 10 26 

IF10 VoWH190: New GP Surgery at Mably Way in Wantage 0 6 4 5 0 15 10 25 

9.
 W

it
n

ey
 

IF1 WO5: 0.5km of improvements to the gas network around Witney -2 -1 2 4 -1 2 10 12 

IF1 
WO6: Gas network reinforcement equivalent to 450M x 250mm in 
Witney 

-2 -1 2 5 -1 3 10 13 

IF2 
WO16: Pedestrian Cycle improvements from Curbridge Road along Thorney Leys to 
Station Lane employment 

1 4 2 3 0 10 10 20 

IF2 WO58: East Witney Active Travel Package 1 4 3 3 0 11 10 21 

IF2 WO78: Shores Green Slip Roads on A40 -1 2 2 5 4 12 14 26 

Page 62



Page | 33  
 

O
xI

S 
To

w
n

s 
&

 

Su
rr

o
u

n
d

 
Type Scheme 

Needs Based Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

 
H

ea
lt

h 

Pl
ac

e-
Sh

ap
in

g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

IF2 
WO79: Improvements to Bridge Street & Staple Hall junctions including public 
realm and traffic management 

1 5 4 4 0 14 10 24 

IF2 WO80: Improvements to Oxford Hill/Cogges Hill Road/Jubilee Way junction 0 0 1 4 1 6 14 20 

IF2 
WO81: Re-designating the A4095 via Jubilee Way, Oxford Hill, A40 at Shores Green 
to Ducklington Lane and Thorney Leys. 

0 3 1 3 0 7 10 17 

IF2 WO86: Provision of additional off street public car parking spaces  -1 -1 0 2 1 1 10 11 

IF2 WOG1: Witney Walking and Cycling Package of Improvements  2 6 4 5 2 19 10 29 

IF3 
WO98: West End Link Road flood storage area on the flood plain of the River 
Windrush  

5 2 1 6 2 16 7 23 

IF3 WO99: Flood storage upstream of Hailey Road in Witney 5 2 1 4 2 14 10 24 

IF3 WO94: Flood storage upstream and downstream of Crawley 4 2 1 4 2 13 10 23 

IF4 WO106: 2FE Primary school, North Witney 0 4 5 7 1 17 14 31 

IF4 
WO110: Improvements and capacity increases to existing primary school provision 
by approximately 1 form entry in Witney and surrounding area.  

0 3 3 7 1 14 14 28 

IF4 
WO114: Secondary school additional provision (Either Expansion of Woodgreen 
School and/or Henry Box School) 

0 5 5 7 1 18 14 32 

IF4 WO119: New adult learning centre 0 1 4 9 0 14 10 24 

IF8 WO157: Witney Arts Centre 0 2 7 5 0 14 7 21 

IF9 
WO171: Additional outdoor playing pitch provision and changing facilities in 
Witney 

0 5 4 5 0 14 10 24 

IF9 WO173: Replacement of Windrush Leisure Centre -1 7 5 4 0 15 10 25 

 

Page 63



Page | 34  
 

6.3. Scheme Appraisal: Local Schemes – OxIS Rural Communities 

OxIS Rural 
Community Ty

p
e 

Scheme  

Needs Based 
Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

H
ea

lt
h 

Pl
ac

e 
Sh

ap
in

g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

10. Berinsfield 

IF2 SO62: New access on to A4074 from Berinsfield allocation -2 0 3 5 3 9 12 21 

IF2 SO64: Berinsfield Roundabout (A4074 / A415) Junction Upgrade -1 1 2 4 3 9 12 21 

IF4 SO102: Primary School capacity Increases including at least one new school  0 3 4 8 1 16 12 28 

IF8 
SO168: Upgrade of Abbey Sports Centre & Library to accommodate new 
community facilities in a 'community hub' 

0 6 7 6 0 19 8 27 

IF10 SO208: GP Provision at Berinsfield 0 6 3 5 0 14 12 26 

11. Chalgrove 

IF2 
SO65: Stadhampton & Chiselhampton Bypass: Associated with Chalgrove 
connecting with the B480 

-3 1 4 4 3 9 12 21 

IF2 SO66: Cuxham Bypass connecting with the B480 -2 1 4 4 2 9 12 21 

IF4 SO106: Two x 2 Form Entry primary schools at Chalgrove  -1 4 5 8 1 17 12 29 

IF4 SO116: One new consolidated 1,500 place secondary school -1 3 5 8 1 16 12 28 

IF10 SO209: New GP surgery in the Chalgrove area 1 6 5 5 1 18 12 30 

12. Eynsham & 
Long Hanborough 

IF2 
WO59: Cycle Route between Eynsham and Hanborough Station and other 
bridleway upgrades  

1 6 6 5 1 19 9 28 

IF2 WO60: Saltcross Garden Village crossings over A40 1 3 4 5 0 13 12 25 

IF2 WOG3: Eynsham Active Travel Improvement Package 1 3 2 4 1 11 12 23 

IF4 WO105: New 1.5FE Primary School, West Eynsham  0 4 6 7 1 18 16 34 

IF4 
WO107: Up to 2 x 2FE Primary schools (including nursery), to serve Saltcross 
Garden Village 

-1 4 6 8 1 18 16 34 

IF4 WO116: New secondary school or split-site expansion of Bartholomew School -1 3 6 8 1 17 16 33 

13. Grenoble Road 
& Northfield  

IF4 S109: One new 3-form-entry primary school at Grenoble Road -1 5 6 8 1 19 14 33 

IF4 SO112: Three Form Entry Primary School at Northfield (including early years) -1 4 6 8 1 18 14 32 

IF4 SO117: A 1,500 place secondary school at Grenoble Road -1 5 6 8 1 19 14 33 

14. South Cherwell 
area & Woodstock 

IF2 C41: Pedestrianisation of part of Kidlington High Street 2 5 5 5 1 18 12 30 

IF2 
C47: Public realm improvements on the A4260 between Benmead Road & 
Yarnton Road  

1 4 4 4 1 14 12 26 

IF2 C50: Sandy Lane – pedestrian and cycle new link over railway  1 4 5 5 1 16 16 32 

IF2 C58: Upgrade existing footbridge over the railway linking to Northern Gateway  1 4 2 4 1 12 16 28 

IF2 C62: Cycle and pedestrian improvements along Langford Lane  1 4 4 5 1 15 16 31 

IF2 C84: Bus priority and bus stop improvements along the A4260 / A4165  4 5 4 7 4 24 16 40 

IF2 C89: Expansion of Oxford Parkway P&R (approx. 1,000 spaces) 1 5 2 5 2 15 12 27 

IF4 
WO113: Capacity increases at existing primary schools in Woodstock, 
Eynsham, Enstone and Stanton Harcourt / Sutton 

0 3 3 7 1 14 16 30 

IF4 WO117: Extensions to Marlborough School, Woodstock 0 3 5 6 1 15 12 27 

IF4 C160: Primary School 2FE at Land East of Oxford Road 0 3 4 7 1 15 16 31 

IF4 C161: Additional permanent accommodation at Edward Field Primary School 0 3 3 7 1 14 16 30 

IF4 C162: Primary School 3FE at Land East of the A44 -1 3 4 7 1 14 16 30 

IF4 C163: Primary School 2FE at Land East of the A44  0 3 4 7 1 15 16 31 

IF4 
C164: Enhancements to William Fletcher Primary School including additional 
playing field land and expansion by 0.5 FE 

0 5 3 7 1 16 16 32 

IF4 C165: Secondary school (1100- place) at Land East of the A44 -1 5 5 8 1 18 16 34 

Page 64



Page | 35  
 

OxIS Rural 
Community Ty

p
e 

Scheme  

Needs Based 
Appraisal 

G
ro

w
th

  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Sc
o

re
 

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

H
ea

lt
h 

Pl
ac

e 
Sh

ap
in

g 

P
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
ti

vi
ty

 

To
ta

l N
ee

d
s 

IF7 
C231: Nature conservation area incorporating community orchard and with 
potential to link to and extend Stratfield Brake DWS 

5 6 4 3 0 18 9 27 

IF7 
C234: Nature conservation area on land to the east of the railway line and 
north of Sandy Lane 

5 6 4 4 0 19 12 31 

IF7 C236: New community woodland to the east of Dolton Lane 5 6 4 4 0 19 12 31 

IF7 C250: Local Nature Reserve based on Rowel Brook at Land East of the A44  5 6 4 4 0 19 12 31 

IF7 
C216: Measures for the protection and enhancement of the Oxford Canal 
corridor and towpath including habitat restoration 4 5 3 4 1 17 12 29 

IF7 C235: Local Nature Reserve at Land West of Yarnton 4 4 2 4 0 14 12 26 

IF7 C251: Local Nature Reserve on Frogwelldown Lane 4 4 2 4 0 14 12 26 

IF9 WO167: Outdoor floodlit training area and/or ATP, Woodstock 0 6 4 3 0 13 9 22 

IF9 
C275: Development of Kidlington Leisure Centre, including focus on additional 
learner pool provision 

0 6 4 3 0 13 9 22 

IF9 C292: Formal sport pitches provision at Land South East of Kidlington  0 5 4 4 0 13 12 25 

IF9 C293: Sports hall at new Secondary School for shared community use 0 5 4 4 0 13 12 25 

IF9 
C294: Additional swimming pool space by replacement pool of 25m x 6 lane 
pool plus teaching pool at Kidlington and Gosford Leisure Centre 

0 6 4 4 0 14 12 26 

IF9 
C291: Converting existing Hockey AGP at Kidlington and Gosford Leisure 
Centre to 3G 

0 5 4 4 0 13 12 25 

IF10 WO176: Relocation of GP practices in Woodstock 0 5 2 4 0 11 12 23 

IF10 C311: New or expanded GP premises in Kidlington area 0 5 2 5 0 12 16 28 

15. Upper Heyford IF4 
C159: Expansion of Heyford Park School plus equivalent of a new 1 - 1.5 FE 
primary school 

0 3 5 7 1 16 12 28 

16. Faringdon & 
Shrivenham 

IF2 
VoWH25: Signalised Junction Improvements at the A420 / Cowell Road 
Junction 

0 1 1 4 2 8 10 18 

IF4 VoWH74: New Primary School facilities on Land south of Park Road, Faringdon 0 3 4 8 1 16 10 26 

IF4 VoWH75: 1FE primary school at North Shrivenham 0 3 4 6 1 14 10 24 

IF10 VoWH187: Expansion of Faringdon GP Surgery 0 5 2 4 0 11 6 17 

17. Bayswater 
Brook 

IF4 
SO111: New 1.5 FE Primary School at Bayswater Brook site (including early 
years) 

0 4 6 8 1 19 10 29 

IF10 SO214: Expansion / reconfiguration of Morland House Surgery 0 5 2 4 0 11 10 21 

 

Page 65



Page | 36  
 

7. OxIS Stage 1 Scheme Funding & Deliverability 
Based on our collation of Strategic Infrastructure Schemes, to date, there is set to be a considerable funding 
gap, in OxIS Stage 1 to 2040. However, Identifying and prioritising strategic infrastructure requirements is just 
part of the challenge, with the securing of adequate funding often providing the greatest risk to its delivery.  

This section will cover some of the traditional routes to funding, an update on the funding opportunities 
identified in OxIS-17 and highlight emerging and new funding opportunities available for OxIS Stage 1. COVID-19 
has significantly restricted the revenue streams available within the public sector, and within this report 
alternative opportunities available to the public sector have been identified to generate revenues that could 
contribute to the capital funding requirement. 

This section covers the current, known and emerging funding opportunities, however in the period to 2040 it 
must be acknowledged that both the resulting impact of COVID-19 and the increased political pressure to reach 
Net Zero by 2050 are known factors that will impact funding opportunities. Further to this, the requirement for 
resilience and diversity of funding opportunities continues to be of value to reduce risk. 

7.1. The Funding Gap 

The total cost of the infrastructure schemes included within OxIS Stage 1 for appraisal to 2040 is £10.1 billion. 
Known funding for these projects currently stands at £77 million, with a further £2.9bn anticipated to be met by 
the private sector, resulting in a funding requirement of £6.4 billion.  

It is recognised that the strategic infrastructure schemes included within OxIS are reflective of the infrastructure 
types that are the responsibility of the key stakeholders and providers for Oxfordshire, and as such the funding 
requirement does not reflect the significant private sector funding that will be made in some sectors such as for 
energy and digital infrastructure. Even within the sectors that the county will provide infrastructure, the source 
of funding for some of these infrastructure projects will come from the private sector where there is a 
commercial opportunity.  

It should also be noted that the funding requirements and gaps identified in this report are reflective of the 
infrastructure schemes that have been available to be assessed for OxIS Stage 1, and that where further 
infrastructure schemes are developed to meet needs gaps, additional funding will be required. 

Known funding figures have only been included in the summary where they are certain, and as such, there are 
potential, unallocated, funding pots that could also contribute to these infrastructure projects that have not 
been included due to their current uncertainty, such as Section 106 funds or competitive bidding funds. For 
example, of the schemes assessed in OxIS Stage 1 to 2040, 44% of the infrastructure schemes have noted an 
expectation to be funded, or part-funded through Section 106 or Community Infrastructure Levy funds.  

Further to this, funding policy and opportunities have been constantly transforming over the last year as the 
country adapts to COVID-19 and reacting to the wider impact on society and business, looking to strengthen the 
economy through a focus on sustainable infrastructure that will increase resilience.    

7.1.1. Since 2017 

A key positive is that, since the publication of the previous OxIS-17, there has been the release of the UK 
Government’s National Infrastructure Strategy (November 2020) which outlines an increase in the level of 
central Government funding with a particular focus on economic infrastructure, levelling up the UK and 
decarbonising the economy. It is hoped that this commitment will alleviate some previous funding gaps. 

One of the key outcomes of OxIS-17 was the ability to secure significant funding for infrastructure, particularly 
for projects funded by the Growth Deal and the Housing Infrastructure Fund. A key learning from OxIS-17 was 
the ability for a well-defined infrastructure strategy and needs identification to support closing the funding gap 
through a demonstratable growth and needs case for each infrastructure project as documented by the multi-
criteria assessment. The OxIS Stage 1 report has aimed to address this.   

Page 66



Page | 37  
 

7.2. Funding Responsibility & Streams by Infrastructure Type 

The responsibility for constructing and maintaining Oxfordshire’s infrastructure falls upon a diverse group of 
public and private bodies, supported by a diverse array of funding streams.  

Infrastructure 
Type  

Sub-Category Responsible for Building  Current Funding Streams 

IF1: Energy IF1A: District Heating Network OCC, Councils, private energy/heat 
providers 

Heat Network Delivery Unit, Private 
operator investment 

IF1B: Energy Transmission Network National Grid, SSEN Private energy provider investment 

IF1C: Gas Distribution Network National Grid, SGN Private energy provider investment 

IF2: Transport  IF2A: Active Travel  OCC, Councils Local authority, DfT, OxLEP 

IF2B: Bus, Coach & Rapid Transit Bus companies Customer fares 

IF2C: Rail Network Rail Allocated funding under Control P6 

IF2D: Road National Highways, OCC National Highways, local authority, DfT 

IF2E: Traffic Management OCC, Councils Local authority 

IF2F: Electric or Hydrogen Vehicle 
Charging Infrastructure 

OCC, Private Companies, Social Enterprises Local authority, private investment 

IF2G: Aviation Private companies Private investment. 

IF3: Flood 
Alleviation 

IF3A: Flood Alleviation OCC, Environment Agency, District 
Councils 

UK Government , Thames Water 

IF3B: Sustainable Drainage OCC, Environment Agency, Thames Water UK Government, Thames Water   

IF4: Education  IF4A: Early Years Education Facilities OCC, private providers DfE/ESFA, private investment 

IF4B: Primary Schools OCC, private schools 

IF4C: Secondary Schools OCC, private schools 

IF4D: Higher Education Facilities  OCC, colleges, private schools 

IF4E: Special Education Needs Schools OCC, private schools 

IF5: Digital 
Connectivity  

IF5A: Superfast Broadband Network OCC, Councils, private operators UK Government, private investment 

IF5B: Cellular Towers & Networks Private operators 

IF6: Innovation  IF6A: Innovation Hubs / Labs Private & social enterprises, universities Local authority, private investment 

IF7: Green & Blue 
Infrastructure  

IF7A: Green Infrastructure OCC, Councils, Environment Agency, 
Private Landowners, other LAs, Water 
Utilities, NGO’s. 

Local authority, Environment Agency, 
Water Utilities, Private Investment, 
Competitive/Grant Funding 

IF7B: Blue Infrastructure 

IF8: Community 
& Cultural  

IF8A: Museums, Tourist Attractions & 
Public Art 

OCC, Councils, private companies Local authority, private investment 

IF8B: Cemeteries & Crematoriums  OCC, Councils, Religious organisations Local authority, religious organisations 

IF8C: Points of Interest OCC, Councils, private companies Local authority, private investment 

IF8D: Large Community Hubs OCC, Councils Local authority  

IF9: Sport & 
Leisure  

IF9A: Indoor Sport Facilities OCC, Councils, private companies Local authority, private investment 

IF9B: Outdoor Sport Facilities 

IF10: Primary 
Healthcare 
& Adult Social 
Care 

IF10A: Health Centres OCCG, NHS Hospital Trusts, NHS England, 
NHS Property Services, Community Health 
Partnerships 

NHS England, competitive funds 

IF10B: Community Hospitals OCC, private providers 

IF11: Waste & 
Recycling 

IF11A: Waste Processing Facilities OCC, District Councils Local authority, private investment 

IF12: Water 
Supply 

IF12A: Wastewater Treatment Plants Thames Water OFWAT (Customer charges) 

IF12B: Potable Water Supply 

IF13: Emergency 
Services 

IF13A: Fire Stations Oxfordshire Fire & Rescue Services Central Government, council tax 
allocation IF13B: Police Stations Thames Valley Police 

IF13C: Ambulance Depots South Central Ambulance Service NHS Trust NHS England 

Page 67



Page | 38  
 

7.3.   New & Emerging Funding Streams 

The below fifteen funding sources (see Section 8.4 of the OxIS Stage 1 Technical Report) provide a breadth (community, 
productivity, land, homes, environmental, transport & innovation) of additional opportunities to fund new infrastructure. 

 
Borrowing opportunities are also outlined in the OxIS Stage 1 Technical Report including Bonds, Public Works 
Loan Board, tax increment financing and business rate retention schemes. 

7.4. Current Scheme Funding 

The funding gap has been broken down by infrastructure type outlining the significant funding gap in relation to 
Transport, Innovation & Enterprise and Education.  

In some areas of infrastructure, such as Energy and Digital, the development of schemes is fully managed by the 
private sector. Where this is the case, it can obscure the visibility of both the funding need and the funding 
commitment. The result of this is that, in some cases funding for specific infrastructure will appear low if 
considered without the wider context.  A good example of this is Digital – there is an expectation that full fibre 
in urban areas will be fully funded commercially by the private sector. 

Innovation & Enterprise shows a public sector funding gap of just 14% (£475m), the remaining funding 
requirement has been designated as private sector funding. The security of the private sector contributions has 
not been assessed and it therefore not yet guaranteed. This level of private sector and commercial investment 
is not reflected in other infrastructure types due to commercial sensitivities.  

Commercial sensitivities also limit the degree to which schemes have been listed. The below therefore shows no 
funding need for IF5 and no funding committed. This is clearly not the case.  

 

UK Infrastructure 
Bank

The Community 
Ownership Fund

Future High 
Streets Fund

Getting Building 
Fund

Green Recovery 
Challenge Fund

National Home 
Building Fund

The Levelling Up 
Fund

Brownfield Land 
Release Fund

National Home 
Building Fund

Zero Emission Bus 
Regional Areas 

Scheme

Bus Back Better
Other Innovation 

Funding
UK Shared 

Propensity Fund
Green Homes 

Grant
Home Upgrade 

Grant

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000

IF11: Waste & Recycling

IF3: Flood Alleviation

IF8: Community & Cultural

IF13: Emergency Services

IF1: Energy

IF9: Sport & Leisure

IF10: Primary Healthcare & Adult Social Care

IF7: Green & Blue Infrastructure

IF4: Education

IF6: Innovation & Enterprise

IF2: Transport

£m

Known Funding Funding to be determined

Page 68



Page | 39  
 

As shown below, rail represents the largest funding requirement for transport infrastructure schemes, hence 
rail representing half of the 10 largest schemes. Transport funding will primarily be sourced from Central 
Government and the DfT.  DfT Capital expenditure for the South East (incorporating Oxfordshire) has averaged 
£2.1bn per annum over 2015-2019. In the year 2019/20 this expenditure increased by 31% to £3bn. 

 
The 10 largest schemes appraised in OxIS make up 63% of the funding requirement. These schemes are 
Transport (mostly rail) and Innovation & Enterprise.  

Scheme Infrastructure Type Total Cost 
Estimate 

Private 
Sector 
Estimate 

Public Sector 
Estimate 

OIP20: West’s End Global Innovation 
District 

IF6A: Innovation Hubs / Labs £1.53bn £1.48bn £46m 

ORC6: Grade Separation of Didcot East 
Rail Junction 

IF2C: Rail £1.3bn  £1.6bn 

OIP8: Locate Oxford Global Innovation 
Campus 

IF6A: Innovation Hubs / Labs £1.3bn £1.2bn £90m 

ORC1: Oxford Station Additional 
Through Platform & Associated Line 
Capacity Upgrades 

IF2C: Rail £675m  £675m 

VoWH106: Restoration of the Wilts and 
Berks Canal from Melksham to 
Swindon, Wantage/Grove and 
Abingdon 

IF7A: Green Infrastructure £500m  £500m 

ORC14: Grove – rail line loop extension 
and additional crossovers 

IF2C: Rail £304m  £304m 

OIP1: The Energy Systems Accelerator IF6A: Innovation Hubs / Labs £172m £76m £96m 

OC31: Eastern Bypass A423 / A3133 
Kennington to Cowley Bus Priority 
Improvement Scheme 

IF2D: Road £158m  £158m 

ORC15: Oxford North Rail Junction – 
additional line bypassing junction on 
Up side 

IF2C: Rail £142m  £142m 

ORC8: Didcot Goods Line upgrade & 
line extension to Milton Junction 

IF2C: Rail £140m  £140m 

Of the schemes assessed, 44% of the schemes expect to derive some, or all, of their funding from developer 
contributions (Either Section 106 or Community Infrastructure Levy, see Section 8.3 of the Technical Report). 
However, in real terms, this represents just 15% of the funding requirement with the total cost of these 
schemes totalling £1.5bn. As at 31/03/2020, Oxfordshire released a Section 106 Infrastructure Funding 
Statement identifying secured funding totalling £257m (OCC, 2020). Community Infrastructure Levy charges 
remain with the district councils, as at 31/03/2020 only three of the five district councils had formally adopted 
Community Infrastructure Levy policies, and the summary of their funds is provided in the OxIS Stage 1 
Technical Report. 

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000 3,500

IF2E: Traffic Management

IF2B: Bus, Coach and Rapid Transit

IF2A: Active Travel

IF2D: Road

IF2C: Rail

£m

Known funding Funding to be determined

Page 69



Page | 40  
 

 

7.5. Funding Summary 

Whilst this analysis highlights the funding gaps for known infrastructure schemes, the below looks to provide an 
indication of funding availability where there are scheme deficits across the core OxIS Infrastructure Types.  

An example of this will be for Environmental Schemes, where there have been insufficient schemes proposed to 
meet the needs of Oxfordshire to 2040, but where specific funding is available to meet that criteria have been 
identified, for many infrastructure types. Using this knowledge, schemes can be built and proposed that can 
target the funding opportunity whilst addressing the needs of the county.  

 

IF
1:

 E
n

er
gy

 

IF
2:

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

IF
3:

 F
lo

o
d

 A
lle

vi
at

io
n

 

IF
4:

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

IF
5:

 D
ig

it
al

 

IF
6:

 In
n

o
va

ti
o

n
 

IF
7:

 G
re

en
 &

 B
lu

e 

IF
8:

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

IF
9:

 S
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 L

ei
su

re
 

IF
10

: H
ea

lt
h

ca
re

 

IF
11

: W
as

te
 a

n
d

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 

IF
12

: W
at

er
 a

n
d

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 

IF
13

: E
m

er
ge

n
cy

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

Basic Need Central Government 
Grant Scheme 

   ✓          

Priority School Building Programme    ✓          

Section 106 agreements  ✓  ✓    ✓ ✓ ✓    

Community Infrastructure Levy  ✓  ✓    ✓ ✓ ✓    

Health Infrastructure Plan 3          ✓    

UK Infrastructure bank ✓ ✓     ✓       

Innovation funding ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

The Community Ownership Fund      ✓  ✓ ✓     

Future High Streets Fund  ✓    ✓  ✓      

Getting Building Fund ✓    ✓ ✓  ✓      

Green Recovery Challenge       ✓ ✓      

The Levelling Up Fund  ✓   ✓ ✓  ✓      

Brownfield Land Release Fund      ✓        

Home Building Fund      ✓        

UK Shared Prosperity Fund  ✓  ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓     

Zero Emission Bus Regional Areas 
Scheme 

 ✓            

Landscape Recovery       ✓       

National Lottery Community Fund ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓  ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓    

DfT Rail Network Enhancements  ✓            

Bonds ✓   ✓ ✓ ✓  ✓ ✓ ✓   ✓ 

Public Works Loans Board ✓   ✓ ✓ ✓  ✓ ✓ ✓   ✓ 

Tax Increment Financing ✓   ✓ ✓ ✓  ✓ ✓ ✓   ✓ 

Business Rate Retention ✓   ✓ ✓ ✓  ✓ ✓ ✓   ✓ 

Propensity for Private Sector 
Funding 

✓    ✓ ✓  ✓ ✓  ✓ ✓  

Page 70



Page | 41  
 

8. Conclusions 
As outlined throughout this OxIS Stage 1 Report, Oxfordshire has many needs to be addressed by strategic 
infrastructure, over the period to 2040. Although there are many schemes identified from a variety of sources 
(e.g. District IDPs & Funding Statements, District Local Plans, Oxfordshire Local Transport Plan 4 (Area & 
Corridor Strategies), Oxford Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure Plan, Oxfordshire Rail Corridor Study, Thames 
Water Resource Management Plan, Oxfordshire Investment Plan, OCCG Primary Care Estates Strategy), there 
are many needs not addressed.  

This is particularly relevant for the Environment Need, where many of the IDPs (for example) were developed 
prior to each Councils’ declaration of a Climate Emergency. 

Although similar to OxIS-17, there remains a funding gap, as outlined within Section 8 of the OxIS Stage 1 
Technical Report, there are a number of avenues to address this. The gap is not as stark as in 2017.  
Additionally, the OxIS needs have been specifically aligned with central government policy to ensure access to 
key funding opportunities. This is not withstanding of the private sectors role in supporting delivery of strategic 
infrastructure in some sectors (e.g. Energy and Digital). 

8.1. Next Steps on OxIS Stage 2 to 2050 

This Report will be followed by an OxIS Stage 2 Report, which plans to: 

• Consider strategic infrastructure required to meet Oxfordshire’s needs to 2050  

• Form a core part of the evidence base underpinning the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

• Align with Regulation 19 of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 consultation 

• Apply a broadly similar appraisal approach adopted in the Stage 1 Report 

• Identify and rank new strategic infrastructure requirements emerging from the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
growth options 

• Reflect outcomes of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 consultation process 

 

Page 71



   

 

  

To:      Future Oxfordshire Partnership  

Title of Report:    Delivering a Zero Carbon Oxfordshire Route Map and Action 
Plan Proposal       

Date:    25 January 2022 

Report of:  Sarah Gilbert, Climate Action Team Leader on behalf of 
Environment Advisory Group Officers’ Group 

 

 

Executive Summary and Purpose: 

This report responds to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s Environmental 
Advisory Group (EAG) review of the Pathways to Zero Carbon Oxfordshire 
(PaZCO) report.  The EAG strongly supported the evidence in the report and 
requested for the Officer Group to scope the work required to develop a multi-
stakeholder route map and implementation plan for Oxfordshire to deliver the 
outcomes in the report.   This report proposes a scope of work and approach, 
governance, costs, and next steps.   
 

How this report contributes to the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision Outcomes: 

The work supports the Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s vision of achieving 
carbon neutrality and the guiding principles to embrace technological changes, 
support a prosperous and inclusive economy, and maximise the benefits of strong 
collaboration.    The proposed piece of work would set out local action to support 
this outcome. 
 

Recommendations: 

That, subject to budget provision being made available by each council, and 
agreement by the councils that the Partnership will oversee the EAG’s role as a 
member steering group for this work, the Future Oxfordshire Partnership: 

 
1. Endorse the development of a zero-carbon route map for Oxfordshire 

 
2. Amend the terms of reference for EAG to provide a steering group function 

to the officer project group and the (PaZCO) Route Map and Action Plan, 
which will form a principal part of the EAG work programme.  

 

3. The Future Oxfordshire Partnership request the chair of the EAG to provide 
updates on behalf of EAG to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership in respect 
of this work.   

 

Appendices: None 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 72

Agenda Item 7

https://futureoxfordshirepartnership.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/Strategic-Vision-summary.pdf


Introduction 

1. Each of the councils in Oxfordshire have all formally committed to climate action 
through their own declarations, corporate plans and collectively through signing 
up to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership Vision.  All councils are at different 
places in their planning for reaching their respective targets.  

2. Alongside this planning on individual council boundaries, there are many areas 
that need to be tackled with a joined-up approach in order to meet each 
council’s ambition:  
- where there is cross- boundary issue,  
- where scale is needed for delivery e.g. domestic retrofit  
- where multiple local partners have a role in supporting an outcome e.g. 

green construction.   

3. A report  commissioned by all councils and the LEP (Pathways to a zero carbon 
Oxfordshire (PaZCO)) was published in June 2021 addressing the question of 
how Oxfordshire can achieve net-zero emissions in the context of rapid growth.  

4. At its September and November meetings the EAG supported a proposal to 
develop an ambitious route map associated with PaZCO to 2030 and 
particularly identify those areas in which the Future Oxfordshire Partnership 
members could work together locally as local authorities to accelerate progress 
across Oxfordshire.  

5. The remainder of this report details a proposal for this work. The work supports 
the Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s Vision of achieving carbon neutrality and 
the guiding principles to embrace technological changes, support a prosperous 
and inclusive economy, and maximise the benefits of strong collaboration.   

 
Proposed Scope for a PAZCO route map and action plan 

Proposed Objectives for the work 

6. To define an Oxfordshire-wide route map to 2030 that can provide a 
springboard for action and a shared reference point for all Oxfordshire 
stakeholders.  The route map should be realistic, but ambitious identifying how 
Oxfordshire can exceed national carbon budgets to 2030 targets by local action.    

7. To articulate Oxfordshire’s ‘asks’ for central government on investment and 
policy that are needed to accelerate decarbonisation in the county1. 

8. Identify a collective action plan from Future Oxfordshire Partnership members 
to particularly focus on identifying and workshopping a small number of areas 
to identify delivery plans where collaboration amongst Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership members, their supporting officers, and appropriate wider 
stakeholders can accelerate emission reduction work.  

9. To identify a short set of measurable key performance indicators (KPIs) to track 
progress made and the outcomes of an action plan in the County. 

Proposed Outputs 

                                                           
1 For example, the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) developed similar pathfinder plans 
which included ten ‘asks’ of Government, stressing the need for a ‘local first’ approach to help the 
region make greater strides in tackling climate change, and include: a regional programme for the 
wide-scale retrofitting of homes; a new model for investment in major energy infrastructure; keeping 
control over energy levies raised in the region and local retention of the Energy Company Obligation 
(ECO) – worth over £50m to the region. 

Page 73

https://www.eci.ox.ac.uk/publications/downloads/PazCo-final.pdf
https://www.eci.ox.ac.uk/publications/downloads/PazCo-final.pdf
https://futureoxfordshirepartnership.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/Strategic-Vision-summary.pdf
https://www.wmca.org.uk/media/4667/net-zero-proposal-v3.pdf


10. PaZCO route map to 2030 – an easily engageable plan, set by theme/sector 
(assumed to follow the same chapter headings as the PaZCO report), and 
including clear steps (to achieve acceleration of action in the early years), set 
against local and national milestones.  The route map should be clearly 
evidenced to the Oxfordshire context, relating to local industrial, social and 
economic mix and levels of housing growth, rather than ‘generic’ ones and build 
on the PaZCO Oxfordshire Leading the Way scenario. Where available, the 
work will look to provide an estimate of costs associated with actions, carbon 
emissions reductions, and an indication of co-benefits (particularly, but not 
limited to, health and job creation).   

11. The route map should effectively communicate: 

- A ‘vision-setting’ reference point for Oxon stakeholders to use in allocating 
focus and developing actions going forwards. 

- Identified KPIs that could measure against readily available data 

- A timeline of the key changes and outcomes required against each carbon 
emissions milestone.  Communicate what is baseline emissions data and 
anticipated emissions data over time.  

- The case for accelerating the pace of action, reflecting the PaZCO 
Oxfordshire Leading the Way scenario 

- Articulate Oxfordshire’s asks of central government/ private investment.  

- Include a short publishable version - with strong design element and plan to 
communicate vision to residents – summarising the above outputs.   

 
12. A small number (Max 5) of themed workshops focussing on areas where joint 

work locally can accelerate decarbonisation and creating delivery plans.  
Themes will be decided with project working group and consultant, and could 
include domestic and commercial retrofit, role of green bonds. 

13. First three-year Action Plan – bringing together actions for local authorities, 
OxLEP and wider Future Oxfordshire Partnership members where relevant, 
identifying  joint working opportunities. 

14. A copy of supporting datasets including an up to date carbon footprint (as 
the baseline position for the route map and action plan) for the county broken 
down by district. 

Co-dependencies and exclusions 

15. Oxfordshire County Council is delivering a workstream under the Local Energy 
Oxfordshire (LEO) project bringing together datasets into a tool to help inform 
local area energy planning. This data can be made available to the consultancy 
delivering the report. 

16. The report will be signposted to actions already agreed in the Zero Carbon 
Oxford Partnership (ZCOP) report and route map, and look for opportunities to 
support these.  The Oxfordshire scale report will however involve different 
actions given the more rural nature of the districts, and the need for activity in 
the wider county to enable the ZCOP outcomes. 

17. The report will focus on the scope of the PAZCO report - ‘production emissions’ 

(Scope 1 and 2) as this follows the scope of the County and district targets, and 

Future Oxfordshire Partnership vision, on net zero within their areas.  The route 

Page 74



map will therefore not focus heavily on nature recovery and biodiversity which 

are more in scope for the Local Nature Partnership, or Scope 3.  Scope 3 

emissions fall outside the scope of the PaZCO report, so for consistency the 

same approach is taken for this report. It is noted that Scope 3, and the mapping 

of actions for wider climate change mitigation and adaptation across the 

County, is in itself an important consideration and where there are links to this 

future work in the action plan, these should be highlighted.  

 

18. The report will focus on the county but consultants will be asked to suggest any 
actions that could be enabled through wider geographies. 

Governance and Delivery 

19. The EAG is keen to keep the continuity with all the work and rigour of the 
PaZCO report.   The authors, the Environmental Change Institute (ECI) at 
University of Oxford, have confirmed that they would not bid for delivery of this 
work but could work alongside the councils in an intelligent client function – 
providing continuity with the original work, methodology and data 
sources/models and providing challenge / steer as expert stakeholders in the 
preparation of the final report. ECI have provided a daily rate for officer time. 

20. It is proposed that each local authority agrees for the EAG to take on 
responsibility as the steering group for the work, and that the Groups Terms of 
Reference be amended to confirm this role and allow the group if needed to co-
opt experts and stakeholders, and engage more widely, as required to inform 
the project. 

21. A small project group could be established including a nominated Future 
Oxfordshire Partnership SRO, County, Districts, OXLEP and rep of ECI. Other 
potential partners drawn from the original PaZCO steering group e.g. SSE, Low 
Carbon Hub may be invited.    

22. The work will be overseen by the Future Oxfordshire Partnership, subject to 
agreement by the local authorities, with the goal of the EAG recommending a 
joint route map and action plan to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership for their 
endorsement, which will then progress to be adopted by each of the constituent 
councils through their own local decision making for each authority to own the 
delivery of subsequent priority actions.  

Financial Implications 

23. It is proposed that a maximum budget of £70,000 is made available to develop 
the route map and action plan. 

24. It is proposed that the County Council could cover 50% of cost and seek 
contributions of up to £7,000 from the City Council and Districts. 

25. It is suggested that £5,000 is retained to engage ECI support with this work. 

26. It should be noted that implementation of the action plan will require separate 
funding, however until the route map and action plan are developed this 
requirement is unknown. 

Legal Implications  

27. There are no legal implications associated with this work. 

Timeline and proposed next steps 

28. Below is an indicative timeline 

Page 75



 

Tasks and Milestone Proposed date 

Recommendations endorsed by Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership 

25th January 2022 

Draft Brief  End January 2022 

Request for Tender  February 2022 

Select Preferred Tender Proposal and contract signed 
and mobilisation 

March 2022 

Engagement for route map April 2022 

Review draft route map (milestone 1) 

 

May 2022 

Theme based workshops with Local Authority officers 
and members, and key partners - reviewing milestones 
and input for the development of the First three-year 
Action Plan and acceleration areas 

May 2022 

Draft report writing for action plan  June 2022 

Review draft action plan (milestone 2) July 2022 

Final Draft submitted for EAG endorsement August 2022 

Final Draft submitted for Future Oxfordshire Partnership 
endorsement 

September 2022 

 

Conclusions and next steps 

29. In their 26 November 2021 meeting the EAG made the following 
recommendations:  

- To request for the Future Oxfordshire Partnership Executive Officer Group 
(EOG) to consider the proposal and to socialise within their respect 
authorities options for possible funding and associated governance.   
Advise on identifying any areas it wishes to workshop for acceleration. 

- To seek Future Oxfordshire Partnership endorsement that the EAG will 
provide a steering group function to the officer project group [subject to 
agreement by each of the councils] and the (PAZCO) Route Map and 
Action Plan will form a principal part of the EAG forward plan.  

- To seek Future Oxfordshire Partnership endorsement of the EAG chair to 
provide a link between EAG and the Future Oxfordshire Partnership on 
this work.    

The recommendations for the Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s endorsement 
are as set out in the recommendations section at the start of this report. 

Page 76



 

 

Report Author: Sarah Gilbert, Climate Action Team Leader on behalf of EAG 
Officers Group 

Contact information: sarah.gilbert@oxfordshire.gov.uk  

Page 77

mailto:sarah.gilbert@oxfordshire.gov.uk


   

 

  

 

 
To:  Future Oxfordshire Partnership  

(formerly the Oxfordshire Growth Board)  

Title of Report:  Feedback from the 14 October Joint Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership and Health and Wellbeing Board Workshop 

Date:    25 January 2022 

Report of:  Rosie Rowe, Head of Healthy Place Shaping, on behalf of 
Oxfordshire County Council. 

Stefan Robinson, Future Oxfordshire Partnership Manager 

Status:  Open  

 

 

Introduction 
1. A networking and workshop event was held between members of the Future 

Oxfordshire Partnership and the Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board on 14 
October 2021.  The purpose of this event was to provide an informal opportunity 
for system leaders to discuss areas of common interest and priorities, and to 
consider how they might work together to address such issues. It also provided 
an opportunity to brief key stakeholders on the strategic landscape with respect 
to the Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy, local recovery from the 
Pandemic, the developing Oxfordshire Plan 2050, and the Oxford to Cambridge 
Arc.  
 

Key Areas of Discussion 
2. The meeting heard from the Director of Public Health about the long term 

impacts of Covid-19 in Oxfordshire, including the significant impact that the 

Executive Summary and Purpose: 

This report provides a summary of the discussion and feedback gathered as 

part of a recent workshop held between the Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing 

Board and the Future Oxfordshire Partnership. 

 

How this report contributes to the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision Outcomes: 

Improving the health and wellbeing of Oxfordshire’s residents sits at the heart of 

recently agreed Strategic Vision, which also features a guiding principle to 

maximise the benefits of strong collaboration within Oxfordshire. Regular 

engagements between these two strategic bodies offers the opportunity to share 

information, align priorities and identify actions to support delivery.  

 

Recommendation: 

That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership notes this report and the date of the 

next joint meeting on 9 March 2022.  

 

Page 78

Agenda Item 8

https://www.oxfordshiregrowthboard.org/projects/oxfordshire-strategic-vision/


pandemic has had on young people aged 16-24 as well as on some residents 
who now have “long Covid.” The priorities for the coming years, as agreed in a 
recent review of the Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy, included:  
 

• Retain the life course approach of start well, live well and age well – noting 

the importance of good end of life care and ‘dying well’ 

• Renewed focus on reducing inequalities which have been exacerbated by the 

pandemic 

• Need to improve mental wellbeing throughout the life course  

• Focus on healthy weight, physical activity, and tobacco control as being 

central to our prevention strategy 

• Address the needs of 16-24 age group 

• Sustain and build community capacity to enable independence and to create 

a strong voluntary and community sector that can support people’s health and 

wellbeing 

• Upskilling our staff so that they can signpost people to local resources and 

organisations that promote health and wellbeing using training such as Make 

Every Contact Count (MECC) and mental health awareness 

 

3. The meeting identified the interrelated and cross-cutting nature of personal 

health and wellbeing with healthy place shaping which seeks to create a healthy, 

sustainable, and accessible environment. Specifically, healthy communities are 

more likely to thrive if they have easy access to high quality green space and 

clean air, as well as integrated active travel options which are developed through 

a planning system that prioritises healthy and sustainable travel modes. This 

was identified as a golden thread which runs through the ambitions of both 

committees and is featured throughout the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision and 

NHS/OCC Prevention Framework. The meeting also identified the importance of 

healthy and sustainable food choices as a means for supporting healthy eating 

and climate action.  

 

4. There was a strong consensus among the meeting that the wider social 

determinants of health must be tackled at source. Improved housing, 

employment, education, infrastructure, and connectivity would help to reduce 

some of the significant health inequalities that exist within Oxfordshire, and 

Covid-19 has served to highlight and exacerbate these challenges in some 

areas. An increased focus on prevention through intelligent planning is needed 

alongside closer collaboration to meet the challenges of the future, building on 

some of the lessons learnt from the pandemic to address the twin challenges of 

the climate emergency and the need to address health inequalities. 

 

5. The meeting identified the need to continue to lobby for greater freedoms and 

flexibilities with respect to land use planning, higher building standards and 

building genuinely affordable homes. The high cost of housing was creating 

challenges for recruiting and retaining key workers, and more generally is a key 

issue for inequalities in Oxfordshire.  

 

6. In receiving updates on both the developing Oxfordshire Plan 2050 and the Arc 

Spatial Framework, the meeting agreed that these were two priory routes 

Page 79



through which to secure greater powers and freedoms to deliver on local health 

priorities.  Whilst there were structured routes for council leaders and university 

leaders to influence the Arc’s development, there was not an equivalent space 

for health system leaders to input, despite the health of residents being a priority 

within the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision.   

 

7. Continued collaboration between the two committees would provide a route to 

feed into the Arc discussions, though a more direct space for health leaders to 

input would be preferable. A first step to providing direct public health input into 

development of the Arc has been taken with a workshop of public health 

directors from across the Arc providing a collective response to the consultation 

on its Vision statement. However, a formal mechanism is needed to ensure that 

the Arc embeds healthy place shaping principles into its approach and takes 

account of integrated care system geographies and digital healthcare.  

 

8. A key theme emerging from the meeting concerned the need to be bold and 

realistic in any propositions to HM Government regarding the powers and 

flexibilities we need to deliver on local and national priorities. Oxfordshire’s 

unique assets and its close partnership networks should be utilised to ensure 

that a clear message is delivered to HM Government in this respect. Cross 

sectoral discussion will continue to be important to draw together common 

themes of delivering the health and wellbeing of our residents. 

 

9. It was agreed that the two groups should meet again in six months; the date of 

the next workshop has been scheduled for 9 March 2022. 

 

 
 

Report Authors:   

Rosie Rowe, Head of Healthy Place Shaping, on behalf of Oxfordshire County 
Council. 

Stefan Robinson, Future Oxfordshire Partnership Manager  

Contact information: rosie.rowe@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Page 80



Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Advisory Group notes - 18 November 2021 

Notes 

OF A MEETING OF THE 

 

The Future Oxfordshire Partnership 

Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Advisory Group 

 

HELD ON THURSDAY 18 NOVEMBER 2021 AT 10.00 AM 

VIRTUAL VIA MS TEAMS 
 

 

Present: 
 
Councillors Emily Smith (Chair), Colin Clarke, Duncan Enright, Jeff Haine, Debby Hallett, 
Alex Hollingsworth and Anne-Marie Simpson 
 
Officers: Adrian Colwell (Oxfordshire Plan Team), Giles Hughes (West Oxfordshire 
District Council), Kevin Jacob (Future Oxfordshire Partnership), Michelle Smith, 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Team) and Philip Wadsworth (Oxfordshire Plan Team) 
 
 

37 Apologies for absence and notifications of substitutions; 
declarations of interest; Chair's announcements  
 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 
There were no declarations of interest or Chair’s announcements. 
 

38 Notes of the previous meeting  
 
The notes of the meeting held on 14 October 2021 were agreed as a correct summary. 
 

39 Introduction to Philip Wadsworth, new Oxfordshire Plan lead  
 
Philip Wadsworth, the incoming Programme Lead for the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
introduced himself to the members of the advisory group and set out a summary of his 
professional planning and spatial planning experience. 
 

40 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Regulation 18 consultation responses and 
outcomes  
 
Andrew Thompson, Principal Planner Oxfordshire Plan 2050, provided a presentation 
setting out high level, initial and interim observations arising from responses to the public 
Regulation 18 Part 2 consultation. It was stressed that the responses received continued 
to be considered carefully and that a full and detailed report setting out a complete 
analysis of the responses would be provided in the New Year. This report would be 

Page 81

Agenda Item 9b



Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Advisory Group notes - 18 November 2021 

considered by the advisory group and ways to take the report through the public overview 
and scrutiny committees of the partner councils so as to inform and involve as many 
councillors as possible were also being investigated.  
 
With regard to responses, it was noted that some 300 participants had taken part in six 
webinar events and to date, there had been approximately 3830 questionnaire responses 
from 420 individuals and organisations.  
 
In discussion, members of the advisory group acknowledged the interim nature of the 
findings, noting that detailed analysis was required given the importance of the responses 
in the development of the Regulation 19 process. Members referred to the importance of 
providing as part of the final report an analysis of the source of responses in terms of 
geographic information, demographics, type of organisation, (i.e., interest group, developer 
group etc). It was felt that this would be important in understanding key findings from the 
consultation and understanding the richness and context of the responses, not just a 
snapshot of numerical data.  
 
The updated was noted. 
 

41 Next Steps in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 process  
 
Giles Hughes, Chief Executive, West Oxfordshire District Council and Philip Wadsworth, 
Programme Lead for the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 led a discussion around next steps in the 
development of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 following the conclusion of the Regulation 18 
consultation process.  
 
The advisory group was informed that as the incoming Programme Lead, Mr Wadworth 
had been asked to reflect on the Plan’s work programme, considering the importance of 
correct sequencing leading up the decisions of the councils to approve a draft plan and 
authorise the Regulation 19 consultation process. The opportunity would also be taken to 
reflect upon the totality of the response to the Regulation 18 consultation and if 
appropriate, further work undertaken on different aspects of the draft Plan including 
policies and growth options.   
 
Officers commented that they recognised that in order to get to a common position which 
could be supported by all Oxfordshire councils, a substantial amount of work needed to be 
undertaken beforehand. This would include the development of options and engagement 
about those options with the advisory group, council leaders and councillors within the 
partner councils generally.  
 
In discussion, members acknowledged that as the Plan moved from consultation on a 
range of potential policy options as part of the Regulation 18 process towards the formal 
Regulation 19 consultation stage with specific recommended proposals there would be 
some challenging issues to work through and difficult choices to be made. It was felt 
therefore, that there was a case for some face to face meetings of the advisory group in 
the New Year.  
 
Members also made comments relating to the following: 
 

 The importance of considering the impact of employment locations as part of the 
overall analysis of growth and spatial options. 

Page 82



Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Advisory Group notes - 18 November 2021 

 The need to consider affordable housing as part of the overall analysis of growth and 
spatial options. 

 The need to consider behavioural changes, for example the increase in working from 
home as part of the consideration of spatial options, alongside consideration of 
matters such as spatial transport corridors.  

 Planning for required NHS infrastructure provision 

 The ongoing consideration of matters best dealt with strategically at an Oxfordshire 
level as part of the Plan, and those matters which would best remain as the Local Plan 
level.  

 The impact of second homes on housing provision within the county. 

 Issues around the definition of ‘affordable housing and whether a common definition 
across the county would be useful. 

 

42 Future joint advisory group workshops and meetings  
 
The advisory group discussed the potential for joint workshops with other advisory groups 
in the lead into the publication of the Plan at Regulation 19 stage and specifically with the 
members of the Housing Advisory Group to discuss issues relating to affordable housing 
and the Plan. This was supported and officers agreed to explore the options around dates 
and timings. 
 

43 Future meetings  
 
The advisory group noted its future meeting dates as set out in the agenda with the 
potential addition of a joint workshop with the Housing Advisory Group.  
 
The Chair requested that if possible, updated information on the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
work programme and next steps be brought to the next meeting. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 11.30 am 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 83



Environment Advisory Group Notes - 26 November 2021 

Notes 

OF A MEETING OF THE 

 

The Future Oxfordshire Partnership 

Environment Advisory Group 

 

HELD ON FRIDAY 26 NOVEMBER 2021 AT 10.00 AM 

VIRTUAL VIA MS TEAMS 
 

 

Present: 
 
Councillors: David Harvey, Tom Hayes, Andrea Powell, David Rouane,  
Pete Sudbury, Catherine Webber and Barry Wood 
 
Officers: Sarah Gilbert, (Oxfordshire County Council), Suzanne Malcolm, (Deputy Chief 
Executive - Place, South and Vale Councils), Heather Saunders, (South and Vale 
Councils), Michele Smith, (Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Team) and Babatunde Ogundele, 
(South and Vale Councils)  
 
 

18 Appointment of temporary Chair for this advisory group meeting  
 
The clerk opened the meeting, as there was no current Chair. The meeting agreed that 
Councillor David Rouane be appointed as Chair for the meeting. 
 

19 Apologies for absence and notification of substitutions; 
declarations of interest and Chair's announcements  
 
Apologies were submitted by Councillor Dan Sames, Cherwell District Council, (substituted 
by Councillor Barry Wood). 
 

20 Notes of the previous meeting  
 
The notes from the previous meeting were accepted as an accurate record of matters 
discussed during the meeting. 
 

21 Delivering a Zero Carbon Oxfordshire Route Map and Action Plan 
Proposal  
 
The advisory group considered a report presented by Sarah Gilbert, Climate Action Team 
Leader, Oxfordshire County Council which set out a proposed scope of work and 
approach, governance, costs and next steps arising the advisory groups review of the 
Pathways to Zero Carbon Oxfordshire, (PaZCO) She highlighted the fact that the advisory 
group has been very interested in sending officers away to look at how academic reports 

Page 84

Agenda Item 9c



Environment Advisory Group Notes - 26 November 2021 

could  be converted into something that gives a delivery plan for Oxfordshire and how the 
councils could  work collectively and communicate to residents. 
 
It was highlighted that PaZCO is aiming to achieve net zero by 2050. 
 
Sarah Gilbert proposed a short/medium term piece of work which would be a piece of 
consultancy work that would bring together the partners of the Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership, NHS and wider key stakeholders in the county to develop a more short-term 
map based on the PaZCO map and this will have a 2030 focus instead, which was more 
reasonable, and progress could in turn be tracked more efficiently.  
 
The piece of work would report to the Environment Advisory Group and would be 
governed by a small stakeholder group that will include the Environmental Advisory Group 
Officer Group, and it would also bring in several other key stakeholders including the 
Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership, (OxLEP). 
 
It was also highlighted that the Environmental Change Institute who wrote the original 
PaZCO report were willing to render help where they could. 
 
Members were asked to give feedback on this piece of work and if they supported the 
recommendation that the report go to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership meeting on the 
25th of January 2022 via the Executive Officer Group on the 16th of December 2021. 
 
In terms of ambition, it was agreed that there should be greater focus on the current 
decade to improve efficiency. 
 
The importance of lobbying the government for funding through the Future Oxfordshire 
Partner and putting pressure on MPs was also highlighted. 
 
It was also highlighted that no mention had been made on big infrastructure structures like 
the proposed Abingdon reservoir, and how such structures would have an impact on 
carbon footprint. 
 
Councillor Tom Hayes spoke about the importance on working with sector leaders, 
particularly regarding transport. 
 
Members acknowledged there were significant budgetary implications for implementation 
of PaZCO and of the wider ambitions around environment and climate. 
 

22 Retrofitting Presentation  
 
Heather Saunders, Energy Strategy and Projects Officer, South and Vale Councils 
presented a group of slides that set out an overview of current action by Oxfordshire 
councils on domestic retrofitting and which sought a steer from the Environment Advisory 
Group on the shape of a programme of work. 
 
It was agreed the slides should be circulated with the minutes.  
 
In discussion, Councillor Peter Sudbury asked how the figure presented which put carbon 
price at £60 a tonne came about. Officers responded that this figure was taken from the 
London Plan requirements and it is believed this had now  gone up to £90 a tonne. 
 

Page 85



Environment Advisory Group Notes - 26 November 2021 

Councillor Andrea Powell highlighted the need for lower income households to be 
prioritised as they would not have the available funds to pay in order to upgrade their 
homes. 
 
Councillor Tom Hayes proposed requesting a representative of OxLEP to come and 
present what they were doing to try and stimulate heat pump installation across the 
County. This was a particular issue, due to the lack of trained engineers to undertake the 
installation. This suggestion was welcomed by the group. 
 

23 HM Government Climate Action- Policy Announcements  
 
It was requested to have the briefing notes on HM Government’s Net Zero Strategy and 
Heat and Buildings Strategy as separate PDF documents so they could be shared. 
 

24 Environment Advisory Group communications approach  
 
Michele Smith, Communications and Engagement Advisor, Oxfordshire Plan 2050, 
updated the advisory group on initial work across the county with regard to climate action 
communications and communications relating to the advisory group. It was noted a 
communications strategy had not yet been fully developed, and it was agreed that it would 
come back to the next meeting. 
 

25 Future work programme  
 
The group agreed that communication needed to be looked upon and the need to invite 
OxLEP for a presentation relating to stimulating the provision of heat pumps installation 
across the County.  
 
It was concluded that ‘Ideas and Innovation’ should be put on the work programme for the 
next meeting. 
 
The group considered a representation from Jayne Manley, Chair of the Oxfordshire 
Environment Board, (OEB) regarding opportunities for the OEB and the advisory group to 
work together and around potential representation of the OEB within the membership of 
the advisory group. In discussion, members felt that the group should focus on local 
authority activity, however that would not preclude involving external 
organisations/representations, like the OEB, in the future. 
 

26 Dates of future meetings  
 
28/01/2022 – 10:00 – 12:00 
24/03/2022 – 10:00 – 12:00 
 
 

 
 

Page 86



 

 

 

 
Future Oxfordshire Partnership Forward Plan 

(Formerly the Oxfordshire Growth Board)1   
 

The Forward Plan sets out all forthcoming issues scheduled for meetings of the Future Oxfordshire Partnership. The Plan will be updated and 
published on the Partnership’s website each month. Where matters for consideration are likely to require the disclosure of exempt information, 
and the exclusion of the press and public (pursuant to Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972) this will be made clear in the 
Forward Plan.  

 

25 January 2022 – Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury OX15 4AA 

   
The Oxford to 
Cambridge Arc 

To receive any updates in respect of regional developments within the Oxford to Cambridge 
Arc.   

Andrew Down, 
Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership Director 

Oxfordshire 
Infrastructure Strategy: 
Stage 1 Final Report  

To consider the outcomes of the Stage 1 report for the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy 
and confirm scope of Stage 2. 

John Disley, County 
Council 
Infrastructure 
Manager 

Oxfordshire Connect 
Rail Programme  

To receive an update from Network Rail on progress with the Oxfordshire Connect 
Programme.  

John Disley, County 
Council 
Infrastructure 
Manager 

Delivering a Zero 
Carbon Oxfordshire 
Route Map and Action 
Plan Proposal 

To receive a proposal from the Environment Advisory Group concerning the next steps that 
can be taken following the recently published “Pathways to a Zero Carbon Oxfordshire 
Report.” This will also provide the opportunity to for wider questions concerning the work of 
the Environment Advisory Group.  

Suzanne Malcolm, 
Deputy Chief 
Executive, South 
and Vale Councils 

                                                           
1 The Oxfordshire Growth Board was renamed the Future Oxfordshire Partnership on 19 July 2021.  

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 10



 

 

Feedback from Joint 
meeting with the 
Oxfordshire Health and 
Wellbeing Board  

To receive feedback and note any actions arising from a joint meeting between the Future 
Oxfordshire Partnership and the Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board.  

TBC 

 
 

22 March 2022 – Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury OX15 4AA 

Item Description Contact 
The Oxford to 
Cambridge Arc 

To receive any updates in respect of regional developments within the Oxford to Cambridge 
Arc.   

Andrew Down, 
Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership Director 

Q3 Housing and 
Growth Deal Progress 
Report 

To receive the 2021/22 Quarter 3 Year 4 (2021/2022) progress report for the Oxfordshire 
Housing and Growth Deal and endorse any amendments to the programmes of work as 
necessary.  

Paul Staines, 
Interim Head of 
Programme 

Q3 Housing and 
Growth Deal Financial 
Report 

To receive the financial summary for Quarter 3 Year 4 (2021/22) for the Oxfordshire Housing 
and Growth Deal. 

Lorna Baxter, 
Oxfordshire County 
Council  

Oxfordshire’s 
Innovation Ecosystem 
Update (provisional)  

To consider a report concerning Oxfordshire’s Innovation Ecosystem, and opportunities to 
support its development.  

TBC 

Enhanced partnership 
with local bus 
operators (provisional) 

To receive an update concerning the enhanced partnership with local bus operators.  John Disley, County 
Council 
Infrastructure 
Manager 

Oxfordshire’s 
Economic Recovery 
Plan 

To receive an update concerning the Oxfordshire Economic Recovery Plan.  Nigel Tipple, 
Oxfordshire Local 
Enterprise 
Partnership 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 88



 

 

7 June 2022 – Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury OX15 4AA 

Item Description Contact 
The Oxford to 
Cambridge Arc 

To receive any updates in respect of regional developments within the Oxford to Cambridge 
Arc.   

Andrew Down, 
Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership Director 

 
 

26 July 2022 – Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury OX15 4AA 

Item Description Contact 
The Oxford to 
Cambridge Arc 

To receive any updates in respect of regional developments within the Oxford to Cambridge 
Arc.   

Andrew Down, 
Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership Director 

Q4 Housing and 
Growth Deal Progress 
Report 

To receive the 2021/22 Quarter 4 Year 4 (2021/2022) progress report for the Oxfordshire 
Housing and Growth Deal and endorse any amendments to the programmes of work as 
necessary.  

Paul Staines, 
Interim Head of 
Programme 

Q4 Housing and 
Growth Deal Financial 
Report 

To receive the financial summary for Quarter 4 Year 4 (2021/22) for the Oxfordshire Housing 
and Growth Deal. 

Lorna Baxter, 
Oxfordshire County 
Council  

 
 

Items to be scheduled  

   
Oxfordshire’s Visitor 
Economy (provisional) 

To consider a report from the Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s Executive Officer Group 
concerning Oxfordshire’s Visitor Economy. Note, the specific scope of this work is in 
development and provisional at this time.   

To be confirmed 

 

P
age 89



   

 

  

 

To:  Future Oxfordshire Partnership (formerly the Oxfordshire 
Growth Board)  

Title of Report:  Partnerships network 

Date:    25 January 2022 

Report of:   Andrew Down, Future Oxfordshire Partnership Director 

Status:  Open 

 

 

Introduction 
1. Partnership activity in Oxfordshire has grown stronger and become more 

extensive in recent years, and it is not always easy to visualise how the different 
activities are related.   
 

2. This report has been drafted to illustrate the network of partnership activities 
most closely linked to the Future Oxfordshire Partnership (FOP), either formally 
or informally.  It is not intended to incorporate every aspect of partnership 
working in the county. 

 

3. The diagram at Appendix 1 shows the main links to the FOP.  It is a snapshot in 
time and can be expected to evolve further.   
 

Local Nature Partnership (LNP) 
4. Much progress has been made towards the establishment of a Local Nature 

Partnership for Oxfordshire.  This has been a careful process in which many 
stakeholders have been consulted and considerable consensus has been 
achieved.  A written report was provided to the FOP meeting of 19 July 2021 and 
can be found here: 

Executive Summary and Purpose: 

This report provides a brief update on partnership activities linked to the Future 

Oxfordshire Partnership, with an illustration of how they are related. 

 

How this report contributes to the Oxfordshire Strategic Vision Outcomes: 

The various partnerships enable a wide range of bodies to come together to 

work towards delivering our strategic outcomes, aligning to the Vision’s Guiding 

Principles to maximise the benefits of strong collaboration within and beyond 

Oxfordshire. 

 

Recommendations: 

That the Future Oxfordshire Partnership notes this update. 

 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1 – diagram illustrating partnership links 

Page 90

Agenda Item 11



 
https://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/documents/s50976/11.%20LNP%20Upd
ate%20report.pdf  
 

5. The LNP is still in its early formative stages.  Updated information can be found 
on the Wild Oxfordshire website here: 

 

https://www.wildoxfordshire.org.uk/biodiversity/oxfordshire-nature-partnership/ 
 

6. The Chair of the FOP’s Environment Advisory Group is a member of the newly 
established Board for the LNP. 
 

7. Subject to each council’s budget setting processes, it is intended that the FOP 
officer team will provide programme and secretariat support for the LNP in the 
form of a dedicated resource. 

 
Oxfordshire Inclusive Economy Partnership (OIEP) 
8. Development of Oxfordshire’s Local Industrial Strategy, itself a commitment 

made in the Housing and Growth Deal, led to some joint work on the principles 
of an inclusive economy as they might be applied in Oxfordshire.  A series of 
four seminars was run jointly by Oxford City Council, the Oxford Strategic 
Partnership, and the Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership between October 
2019 and January 2020. 
 

9. This led to the formal establishment of the Oxfordshire Inclusive Economy 
Commission (as it was initially known), all described in a report to the then 
Growth Board on 24 November 2020: 

 

http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=543&MId=278

1  

 
10. Officers were tasked at that meeting with agreeing next steps and how they 

should be resourced.  Since then a steering group and four working groups have 
been established covering the following areas: 

 

 Educational attainment 

 Social value and procurement 

 Inclusive employers 

 Place based interventions. 
 
11. A brief summary can be found here: 
 

https://www.councils.coop/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/Oxford-Inclusive-
Economy-Partnership.pdf  
 

12. As the work programme is being developed, work on the OIEP is now 
broadening and extends across the whole of Oxfordshire.  A strength is the wide 
range of participants from many sectors including a variety of local businesses. 
 

13. As activity expands there is greater need for dedicated resources, and subject to 
budget setting the intention is for a role to be created within the FOP team with a 

Page 91

https://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/documents/s50976/11.%20LNP%20Update%20report.pdf
https://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/documents/s50976/11.%20LNP%20Update%20report.pdf
https://www.wildoxfordshire.org.uk/biodiversity/oxfordshire-nature-partnership/
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/oxsp/downloads/download/100/oxfordshire_inclusive_economy_seminar_series_report
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=543&MId=2781
http://democratic.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=543&MId=2781
https://www.councils.coop/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/Oxford-Inclusive-Economy-Partnership.pdf
https://www.councils.coop/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/Oxford-Inclusive-Economy-Partnership.pdf


specific remit to drive and support the OIEP work programme.  Progress reports 
will be provided regularly to FOP. 

 
Oxfordshire Strategic Transport Forum (OSTF) 
14. The Chair of the OSTF is co-opted as a member of the FOP’s advisory group for 

infrastructure and is thereby able to bring strategic transport matters forward for 
discussion at those meetings. 
 

15. Topics for joint working have included active travel, rail and bus services, 
transport infrastructure and the emerging Local Transport and Connectivity Plan. 
 

Conclusion   
16. Partnership working in the county goes from strength to strength as councils and 

many other stakeholders collaborate to work towards the outcomes identified in 
the Strategic Vision for Oxfordshire.  This brief paper has highlighted some 
particular examples, and the relationships are illustrated in the diagram at 
Appendix 1. 

 

 

 
 

Report Author:  Andrew Down 

Future Oxfordshire Partnership Director 

Contact information:  andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk 

Page 92



Page 1

Draft January 4th 2022Future Oxfordshire Partnership – partnership network 

Future Oxfordshire 
Partnership 

(FOP)

Oxfordshire Councils x 
6:

• County
• West
• Cherwell
• City
• South
• Vale

OxLEP

University of Oxford
Oxford Brookes 

University 

Oxfordshire Clinical 
Commissioning 

Group 

Joint Plans strategies/policies:

• Oxfordshire Strategic Vision
• Oxfordshire Plan 2050
• OxIS
• Oxfordshire Industrial Strategy
• Oxfordshire Investment Plan 
• Oxfordshire Energy Strategy 
• Local Transport and Connectivity plan 
• Oxfordshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy 
• Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy
• Climate Action Framework 
• Minerals and Waste Local Plan 
• Strategic Economic Plan 
• Oxfordshire Environment and Economic Investment 

Plan 

Homes England
Environment Agency 

Oxfordshire Housing and 
Growth Deal:

• Housing and 
Affordable Housing

• Infrastructure
• Productivity
• Oxfordshire Plan 2050

Scrutiny 
panel 

Councils/
Partners/

other 
stakeholders

Key: 

Boards/
partnerships

Plans/
Policies/

strategies 

Oxfordshire 
Housing and 
Growth Deal 

LA plans/policies/strategies 

• LA visions /corporate 
plans 

• District Local Plans

Infrastructure 
Advisory group

Housing  
Advisory group

Environment  
Advisory group

Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050

Local Nature 
Partnership 

Oxfordshire 
Strategic 
Transport 

Forum

Oxfordshire 
Inclusive 
Economy 

Partnership 

Oxfordshire Health 
and Wellbeing 

Board 

Page 93


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Oxfordshire Connect Rail Programme
	6 Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS)- Stage 1
	6. OxIS Stage 1 Summary Report 04012022

	7 Delivering a Zero Carbon Oxfordshire Route Map and Action Plan Proposal
	8 Feedback from Joint meeting with the Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board
	9b Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Advisory Group update
	9c Environment Advisory Group update
	10 Future Oxfordshire Partnership Forward Plan
	11 Partnership network
	11. Future Oxfordshire Partnership FOP wiring diagram January 2022
	Future Oxfordshire Partnership FOP wiring diagram  V2.vsdx
	Page-1




